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To Our Stockholders

2011 was significant and memorable year for LinkV4ffliQQnsincludmg our becoming publicly

traded and welcoming many new investors to the companydpite many exciting changes atjeast one thing

remains the same our unwavering focus on developing the core of Linkedln platform

At heart Linkedln connects talent with opportunity at massive scale We believe this is an unprecedented

opportunity made possible by the convergence of two trends Fitst the existence of scalable infrasmicture that

allows hundreds of millions if not billions of people to connect mere milliseconds and second the behavioral

changes taking place as result of this infrastructure the way people now go ótline to represent their identities

connect with friends family and colleagues and share ideas information knowledge and opimons It is

fundamentally changing the world the way we live the way we play and in the case of Linkedln the way the

world works

Linkedln brings this dynamic to life through our mission statement to connect the worlds professionals to make

them more productive and successful This mission statement manifests itself in everrthing we do from our

member value propositions of Professional Identity Insights andEverywhere to the value we create for our

customers across our three product segments Hiring Solutions Marketing Solutions and Premium

Subscriptions

At LinkedIn we put our members first and during the year we increased both the value delivered to each of our

members and the overall reach and power of our platform We added 55 million new members growing our

member base by 60% to 145 million The Linkedln membership is truiy global with more than 60% of members

coming from outside the United States Linkedln is now available in 1.7 languages and used by people in more

than 200 countries and territories In addition to the growth of our member base we also witnessed record levels

of engagement According to comScore in 2011 unique visitors to Linkedin grew by 62% with an average of

92 million users visiting over the fourth quarter and page views grew by an even greater 63% reaching 29

billion for the year excluding mobile usage

Over the course of the year we launched and improved several key products around our three core member value

propositions

Identity Linkedln solidified its position as leading destination on the Internet for professionals to connect fmd

and be found In 2011 members performed over four billion professionally oriented searches on our platform

reinforcing Linkedins position as the definitive professional search engine These searches were not just

comprised of recruiters looking for the ideal candidate or job seekers looking for their dream job theyre also

entrepreneurs seeking to raise financing investors looking for the ideal investment vehicle sales people looking

to convert cold calls into warm prospects and general professionals looking to tap each others expertise in order

to be great at the jobs they are already in

Major identity-based initiatives in 2011 included revamping our profile page adding profile fields like volunteer

experiences and skills creating products specific to college students and recent alums our fastest growing

demographic and continuing to improve the relevancy and value of our search capability

Insights We are ôommitted to delivetlng unique and valuable business intelligence that can only be found by

leveraging the power of the Linkedln platform This starts with the Linkedln Home Page increasingly our

members professional dashboard where they take the pulse of their network and companies they follow In

March 2011 we took another major step towards this goal by introducing our professionally focused social news

product Linkedln Today and it has quickly become central way for members to read news relevant to their

professional identities and networks The product is also evolving into major traffic driver to business focused

Web publishers Linkedln Groups also remains strong source of insights for members and we now have more

than one million professionally oriented groups on Linkedin



Everywhere Wçant Linkedln to work everywhere our members work and no longer expect our users to be

tethered to their desktops or Linkedln.com Along those lines in August we introduced new smartphone apps for

iOS and Android as well as new mobile website The simplified experience sparked an acceleration in

engagement by mobile users and Apple honOred us by making Linkedln featured app of the week and top

social app of 2011 Subsequently mobile became our fastest growing product or service by asubstantial inrgin

We also want to extend members Linkedin experience lyOnd our core site nd in the spring we opened up full

access to our platform We now have more than 50QPO developers leveraging Linkedln APIs who are powering

the professional web

The Business of Connecting Talent with Opportunity In addition to our mepers our tusiness grew at

healthy pace 2011 Total revenue increased 1% year over year to $522 miihon acceleratmg versus the prior

year Through the end of Q4 revenue grew greater than 100% for six consecutive quarters underscoring the

businesss rapid pace of expansion thnng Solutions our largest and fastest growmg business grew 156% to

$261 million Marketing Solutions also experienced strong traction in 2011 growing 97% to $156

million Premium Subscriptions outpaced our expectations in 2011 by wide margin growing 70% to $105

million

Talent isnt just the business were inits also the cornpays top operating priority and our ongoing growth

enables us to continue investment in building world-class team In 2011 we increased our employee base by

114% to over 2100 with investment focused specifically onsCajiig our product and engineering organization as

well as growing our salesfçrce ona global basis We finished the year with local sales and marketing offices in

22 cities around the world We are encouraged by the teams continued ability to maintain our values and culture

in each of those new offices as well as our ability to achieve high recruiting yields and close rates with new

candidates We also had great success in establishing our internship and university recruiting programs thus

building strong long-term foundation for future recruiting efforts as well

Despite the magnitude of investment we made in 2011 bottom line performance outpaced ourown expectations

Adjusted EBITDA ended the year at $99million 19% margin

It was an exciting year for ourcompany andwe are proud of our accomplishments Wed like to thank our

members employees and investors for their support throughout the year and we look forward to the

opportunities ahead

Jeffrey Weiner

Chief Executive Officer

To supplement its consolidated financial statements which are prepared and presented in accordance with

GAAP Linkedln uses certain non-GAAP financial measures including adjusted EB1TIYA Net inconià for 2011

was approximately $11.9 million For full reconciliation of net income aqd adjusted EBITDA please see page

41 of the annual report attached to this letter

Sincerely
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Special Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of

Section 1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended or the Exchange Act particularly in Part

Item Business Part Item 1A Risk Factors and Part Item Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations These statements are often identified by the use of words such

as may will expect believe anticipate intend could should estimate or continue and

similarexpressions or variations All statements other than statements of historical fact could be deemed

forward-looking including but not limited to

our ability to timely and effectively scale and adapt our existing technology and network infrastructure

our ability to increase engagement of our solutions by our members enterprises and professional

organizations

our ability to protect our users information and adequately address privacy concerns

our ability to maintain an adequate rate of revenue growth

the effects of increased competition in our market

our ability to effectively manage our growth

our ability to retain our existing subscribers and our hiring and marketing solutions customers

our ability to successfully enter new markets and manage our international expansion

to maintain protect and enhance our brand and intellectual property

costs associated with defending intellectual property infringement and other claims

the attraction and retention of qualified employees and key personnel and

other risk factors included under Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

For discussion of some of the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our forward-

looking statements see the discussion on risk factors that appear in Part Item 1A Risk Factors of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K and other risks and uncertainties detailed in this and our other reports and filings

with the Securities and Exchange Commission or SEC The forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K represent our views as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K We anticipate that subsequent

events and developments will cause our views to change However while we may elect to update these forward-

looking statements at some point in the future we have no current intention of doing so except to the extent

required by applicable law You should therefore not rely on these forward-looking statements as representing

our views as of any date subsequent to the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K



PART

Item Business

Overview

We are the worlds largest professional network on the Internet with more than 150 million members in over

200 countries and territories as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K Through our proprietary

platform members are able to create manage and share their professional identity online build and engage with

their professional network access shared knowledge and insights and find business opportunities enabling them

to be more productive and successful We believe we are the most extensive accurate and accessible network

focused on professionals

Our comprehensive platform provides members with solutions including applications and tools to search

connect and communicate with business contacts learn about attractive career opportunities join industry

groups research organizations and share information At the core of our platform are our members who create

profiles that serve as their professional profiles and are accessible by any other member as well as unless

member chooses otherwise anyone with an Internet connection We believe that our platform allows our

members to compete more effectively make better decisions faster and manage their careers to achieve their full

potential The cornerstone of our business strategy is to focus on our members first We provide the majority of

our solutions to our members at no cost We believe this approach provides the best way to continue to build

critical mass of members resulting in beneficial network effects that promote greater utilization of our solutions

higher levels of engagement and increased value for all of our members

We generate revenue from enterprises and professional organizations by selling our hiring solutions and

marketing solutions offline through our field sales organization or online on our website We also generate

revenue from members acting as individuals or on behalf of their enterprise or professional organization who

subscribe to our premium services We strive to ensure that our hiring solutions marketing solutions and

premium subscriptions provide both high level of value for our customers and also high degree of relevance

for our members We believe this monetization strategy properly aligns objectives among members customers

and our entire network and supports our financial objective of sustainable revenue and earnings growth over the

long term

We were incorporated in Delaware in March 2003 under the name Linkedln Ltd and changed our name to

Linkedln Corporation in January 2005 Our principal executive offices are located at 2029 Stierlin Court

Mountain View CA 94043 and our telephone number is 650 687-3600 Our website address is

www.linkedin.com We completed our initial public offering in May 2011 and our Class common stock is

listed on the New York Stock Exchange LLC NYSE under the symbol LNKD Unless the context requires

otherwise the words Linkedln we Company us and our refer to Linkedln Corporation and our

wholly owned subsidiaries

Our Mission

Our mission is to connect the worlds professionals to make them more productive and successful Our

members come first We believe that prioritizing the needs of our members is the most effective and ultimately

the most profitable way to accomplish our mission and to create long-term value for all of our stakeholders We
will continue to concentrate on opportunities we believe are in the best interests of our members Our long-term

approach enables us to invest innovate and pioneer in unexplored segments of our industry to increase the value

proposition of our proprietary platform and extensive data

Our solutions are designed to enable professionals to achieve higher levels of performance and professional

success and enable enterprises and professional organizations to find and connect with the worlds best talent
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Our Vision

Our vision is to create economic opportunity for every professional in the world This vision not only

applies to each of our employees but
every Linkedln member each of whom has the ability to create economic

opportunities for others We believe this is the fundamental power of our network

Our Strategy

Our mission is to connect the worlds professionals to make them more productive and successful The key

elements of our strategy are

Foster Viral Member Growth With 145 million members as of December 31 2011 and over

150 million members currently we will continue to pursue initiatives that promote the viral growth of

our member base These initiatives include registration optimization enhanced search engine

optimization seamless integration with other applications and enhancements to our communications

capabilities Viral growth is critical element in our mission to connect the worlds professionals

Serve as the Professional Profile of Record By maintaining the trust we have developed with our

members and through continued improvements such as enhancing our profile tools and search engine

optimization we seek to be the professional profile for every professional worldwide Using our

platform any member can find connect with and learn about other professionals

Be the Essential Source of Professional Insights As the amount of information being shared across

the Internet continues to rapidly increase we seek to be the essential source for relevant shared

professional knowledge and data Our platform enables members to easily contribute and share

information at their discretion We are uniquely positioned to continue to create more value from this

information by providing relevant and timely business and career intelligence insights and

recommendations to our members enabling them to be more productive and successful

Work Wherever Our Members Work We believe the value proposition of our network is most

powerful when it is accessible wherever and whenever our members work As result we plan to

continue to grow our developer community by making our products and services available via open

application programming interfaces or APIs and embeddable widgets to enable access to our solutions

anywhere professionals work In addition we will continue to make our platform accessible on large

number of mobile and other Internet-connected devices to ensure members have constant access to our

network

Increase Monetization While Creating Value for Our Members We intend to leverage our unique

business model to further monetize our platform while adding value to members enterprises and

professional organizations on global basis For example by providing our members with better tools

to share their professional skills and insights our hiring solutions can more efficiently and effectively

identify specific active and passive candidates for particular opportunity resulting in benefits for both

members and customers core part of our strategy is making our solutions more relevant for our

members and customers by significantly investing in targeting capabilities and analytics

Expand Our International Presence We have seen significant growth in our international member
base and have established operations in Australia Brazil Canada France Germany India Ireland

Italy Japan the Netherlands Singapore Sweden and the United Kingdom We intend to expand our

sales technical and support operations in additional international locations and expand our

international member base by making our platform available in more languages and further developing

our brand across various international geographies

Our Solutions

Our solutions are designed to make professionals more productive and successful and to connect talent with

opportunity at massive scale To date our focus has been to develop products that enable our members to create

manage and share their professional
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identities online build and engage with their professional networks access shared knowledge and business

insights and find business opportunities

Our principal free and monetized solutions are described below

Free Solutions

Enhanced Ability to Build

and

Ability to Manage Engage with Access to Knowledge Insights

Professional Identity Professional Networks and Opportunities Ubiquitous Access

Profile Linkedln Connections Network Updates Mobile

Public Profile Invitations Groups APIs

Profile Stats Search Linkedln Today Widgets

Skills Introductions Signal

People You May Know Company Profiles

Addressbook Importer Polls

Events

InApps

Answers

Personalization Platform

Apply with Linkedln

Linkedln Alumni

Monetized Solutions

Hiring Solutions Marketing Solutions Premium Subscriptions

Linkedln Corporate
Linkedln Ads Business

Solutions/Recruiter Display Ads Business Plus

Linkedln Referral Engine Custom Groups Executive

Linkedln Recruitment Media Sponsorships InMail

Linkedln Career Pages Whitepapers Profile Organizer

Linkedln Jobs Recommendation Ads Linkedln For Salesforce

Talent Basic Talent Finder

Talent Pro

Job Seeker Basic Job Seeker

Job Seeker Plus

beta product

Free Solutions

Most of our member solutions are available at no cost and are designed to provide compelling professional

benefits

Ability to Manage Professional Identity

Profile Our core offering provides every member an online professional profile members profile is

accessible to all members on our network and includes user-generated information including current

job title and employer education career history domain expertise accomplishments skills and

additional professional information such as honors awards association memberships patents

publications certifications and languages spoken Members populate their own profile information

enabling them to ensure their professional identity is accurate current and under their control
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Profile Stats Profile Stats provide real-time analytics to help members better manage their professional

profile including information on whos viewed their profile top search keywords used to reach their

profile and other details and trends on the demographics of the audience that has viewed their profile

Additional features of this product are available for members with premium subscriptions

Skills beta Members are able to both specify skills on their professional profiles and search for skills

and expertise across our network which surfaces key people within community top locations related

companies relevant jobs and groups where members can interact with like minded professionals

Enhanced Ability to Build and Engage with Professional Networks

Linkedln Connections Once two members are connected their profile information is shared and

subject to privacy settings each member has access to the other members list of connections for

further networking Connections across the network are classified to three degrees first degree

connections are members who agree to connect second degree connections are members who share

one or more mutual connections and third degree connections are related via two connections

Members can retrieve the contact information of their first degree connections and browse their second

and third degree connections in order to find additional opportunities to network and connect

Invitations Members can expand their networks by sending invitations Any non-member accepting an

invitation simultaneously becomes Linkedln member connected to the sender after completing the

registration process

Search Our proprietary search technology allows users to conduct real-time multilingual searches of

our rich dataset in completely personalized manner as members profile and network affect

relevance and ranking of results Our search covers

People Faceted structured search across all member profiles

Job Postings Faceted structured search across all of the available jobs listed on our network

Companies Faceted structured search of enterprises and professional organizations

Groups Search all professional groups on our network

Network Updates Search our networks shared content updates

Answers Search all professional questions and answers posted on our network

Inbox Messages Search inbox messages

Addressbook Detailed structured search across all of the connections member has on

Linkedln

We also provide other products to help our members develop their professional networks including

Introductions which allows one member to request an introduction to another member through mutual

connection People You May Know which recommends members whom you may already know and with whom

you may want to create first degree connection and Addressbook Importer which allows members to quickly

and easily import contact information from their existing digital address books to Linkedln

Access to Knowledge Insights and Opportunities

Network Updates Network Updates provide real-time stream of data from professionals and

professional sources personalized for each member The streams allow each member to control and

select data by relevancy and remain up-to-date on what is happening in their professional world

Groups Groups provide forum for our members to discuss topics of interest and meet and interact

with other professionals who share those interests and have opinions and domain expertise in specific

areas Group members are able to discuss share comment and make their group memberships part of

their profiles
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Linkedin Today Linkedln Today enables our members to be better informed on the job every day by

showing them relevant news that has been collected and organized by the members in their networks

and fellow professionals in their industries

Signal Signal is search tool that enables member to do real-time search on any news or updates

shared by the members in their network

Company Profiles Company Profiles provide members with holistic view of company By

aggregating data across the members employed at particular company we can show which members

have recently joined company recently changed their title at company or recently left company
Members can also see who they know at particular company Companies can add information to their

profiles including information about products and services they provide and information about careers

at the company and can insert feeds to be displayed on the company profile Members can follow

companies and automatically receive recent updates and recommend products and services

Apply with Linkedln Apply with Linkedln enables members to submit their profiles for job

applications by clicking the Apply with Linkedln button on company websites Member can choose

to update their profiles in real time and members will also be shown their professional connections that

work at the company where the profile is submitted

Linkedin Alumni Linkedln Alumni provides our members with insights about the alunmi of their

schools enabling members to easily explore alumni career trends make connections and find

opportunities The product allows members to dynamically analyze the career trends of their fellow

alumni by providing an interactive tool to view alumni by location company and job function

We also provide other products to help our members access knowledge insights and opportunities

including Polls which provides simple platform for professionals to create structured questions and share them

broadly Events which allows members to share with their connections the events they are sponsoring or

attending InApps which allows third parties to build and deploy new features as part of our members online

experience Answers which allows members to ask questions and receive answers on any professional topic and

Personalization Platform which has number of analytically driven customized products such as Jobs You

May Be Interested In Groups You May Like Companies To Follow People Who Viewed This Profile Also

Viewed and People Who Viewed This Job Also Viewed

Ubiquitous Access

Because professionals constantly require access to critical information our platform is accessible online

anytime and anywhere including on mobile devices

Linkedin Mobile Linkedln mobile applications are provided across range of platforms and

languages including the Android Blackberry iPad and iPhone For example CardMunch our

application that automatically transcribes business cards is available for the iPhone

Robust set of APIs We believe that every modem business application is more useful and productive if

it is personalized according to professionals profile and his or her network of connections In 2009

we launched public website that allows any developer to agree to standard set of guidelines and

terms and then integrate our content and services into their applications leveraging standards-based

technology These applications can be hosted on third-party websites or deployed on our platform We

also recently announced Certified Developer Program which is network of developers screened to

help marketers agencies and companies use Linkedln to connect with their audiences Third parties are

increasingly leveraging our APIs

Widgets We provide set of simple embeddable widgets for standard features to allow any web

developer to include rich content from our network into their website or application without complex

programming We currently provide the following widgets
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Profile Widget Displays the public profile of given member

Company Insider Displays information about whom the member knows at particular company

Sharing Displays simple button to help members easily share content with their network

Recommendation Displays simple button to help members easily recommend product or

service offered by company to their network

Monetized Solutions

In addition to our free solutions we also charge for certain solutions that provide members enterprises and

professional organizations with enhanced functionality and additional benefits

Hiring Solutions

Our hiring solutions include Linkedln Corporate Solutions Linkedln Jobs and Subscriptions Our solutions

aim to be the most effective way for enterprises and professional organizations to efficiently identify and acquire

the right talent for their needs

Linkedln Corporate Solutions Linkedln Corporate Solutions include the following five products

Linkedin Recruiter Our flagship hiring solution enables enterprises and professional organizations to

find contact and hire highly qualified active and passive candidates We believe that substantial

majority of our members are passive in that they are not actively looking to change jobs Recruiter

provides premium functionality including

Advanced Searches Ability to search and view every profile on our network giving most

recruiters access to tens of millions more profiles than they would have available with our free

offering Advanced searches can be conducted using keywords found anywhere in members

profile such as schools attended and languages spoken or by data derived from profiles such as

years of experience

Project Management As enterprises and professional organizations find relevant profiles they

are able to organize them into project folders add notes and add reminders for follow-up

InMail Enterprises and professional organizations can send messages directly to candidates to

tell them more about their organization or the specific opportunity subject to the members

discretion

Collaboration Recruiters in the same enterprise or professional organization can see which

profiles their colleagues have viewed saved or annotated

Job Slots Job Slot entitles an enterprise or professional organization to post job The job that is

posted can be changed updated or modified at any time over the life of the contract

Linkedln Referral Engine Referral Engine enables enterprises and professional organizations to

leverage the networks of their employees to find qualified candidates for open positions For each job

posting Referral Engine automatically looks across the connections of the organizations employees to

find candidates qualified for that position Referral Engine then presents matches to the organizations

employees enabling them to make referrals they think are appropriate in just few clicks

Linkedin Recruitment Media Enterprises and professional organizations can target career-related

messaging to qualified candidates We provide promotional material in the form of advertisements

videos or emails to specific audiences defined by enterprises and professional organizations based on

professional profile data
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Linkedln Career Pages Enterprises and professional organizations are able to customize the career

section of Company Profiles and content on Career Pages to allow potential candidates to learn more

about what it is like to work at the enterprise or professional organization whom to contact if they are

interested in position and what relevant opportunities are available

We also recently announced the development of new product Linkedln Talent Pipeline which will be

solution for recruiters that will give them the ability to more easily manage all of their talent leads in one place

Linkedln Talent Pipeline will be available as standalone solution or as part of Recruiter

Linkedln Jobs Enterprises and professional organizations of all sizes are able to advertise job opportunities

on our network Jobs includes

Self-service Posting This service enables recruiters and hiring managers to post and manage job

opportunities on our network

TalentMatch Candidate recommendations are presented to job poster Once job is posted

TalentMatch evaluates the characteristics of the job and automatically finds the most relevant member

profiles TalentMatch customers can view these recommendations and directly message relevant

candidates

Jobs You May Be Interested In JYMBII We use profile data to display relevant job postings to

members even if they are not conducting job search Job recommendations are displayed on

members homepage and can also be displayed on other websites

Work With Us Enterprises and professional organizations can elect to display the JYMBII module as

an add-on to each of their employees profiles allowing them to leverage their employee base to attract

relevant candidates

Subscriptions

Talent Basic Talent Finder and Talent Pro The Talent family of products enables recruiters and

hiring managers to find contact and manage potential candidates leveraging Premium Search Filters

InMail Profile Organizer and other premium features

Job Seeker Basic Job Seeker and Job Seeker Plus The Job Seeker family of products enables

members to stand out to recruiters and hiring managers via the Job Seeker badge which is visible on

their profile and in search results Featured Applicant status in the applicant list for jobs they apply to

and InMail

Marketing Solutions

The goal of our marketing solutions is to enable marketers and advertisers to reach and engage with the

most relevant audience and connect them to relevant products and services

Linkedin Ads Our self-service platform enables advertisers to build and target their advertisement to our

members based on information in their profile Linkedln Ads includes the following features

Targeting Ads are targeted to specific members based on their profile information Targetable

attributes include the members title function employer industry and geography

Daily Campaign Budgets maximum daily budget can be set for advertisements

Campaign Management Advertisers can set up and manage multiple campaigns as well as multiple

ad units per campaign

Reporting Advertisers can continuously monitor clicks impressions click-through rates average

cost-per-click and total budget spent by ad
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Linkedin Ads for Enterprise These marketing solutions target larger advertisers which receive dedicated

account management and have access to additional marketing solutions

Display Ads Advertisers can use the same targeting engine used for Linkedln Ads to serve ads in

variety of sizes and formats including rich media

Custom Groups Advertisers can set-up Group around topic company or product and customize

content in key modules of the group Polls videos feeds and news can be included in these custom

modules

Sponsorships Marketers can sponsor specific areas of our website including Answers Polls Events

InMail and variety of applications built by third parties on our platform

Whitepapers Marketers can target whitepapers using the same targeting engine used for Linkedln

Ads The download pages
for whitepapers have pre-filled fields with members profile data reducing

friction and maximizing leads for marketer

Recommendation Ads These ad units include the number of members who have recommended

companys product or service Members can share or recommend the product or service directly from

the ad unit

Premium Subscriptions

Our premium subscription services target small- and medium-sized enterprises and professional

organizations individual members and business groups in larger enterprises Our Business Business Plus and

Executive subscription packages are designed for general professionals to manage their professional identity

grow their business and connect with talent These subscriptions bundles are sold at different price points Key

features found in the subscription bundles include

Profile Organizer productivity suite allowing members to save and categorize profiles and add

notes

InMail message that can be sent directly to member to whom the sender is not connected

Premium Search Filters Advanced filters for narrowing search based on derived data

Saved Searches Members can save search and be notified when profiles that fit their criteria are

found

3rd Degree Name Visibility Expands network visibility of the searcher by exposing full names for 3rd

degree members

Profile Stats Pro Members see more information about who is viewing their profile the keywords

used by others members to arrive at their profile and the number of times they have shown up in

search results

Linkedin For Salesforce Linkedln For Salesforce subscription offering that allows Linkedln

members to access sales insights from Linkedln within salesforce.com displaying credible self-

described professional profiles from Linkedln alongside key opportunity and account information

within Salesforce

We also offer subscriptions to InMail Profile Organizer and Linkedln for Salesforce on standalone basis

Sales Marketing and Customer Support

Depending on the specific product we sell our hiring and marketing solutions offline through our field sales

organization or online on our website We sell our premium subscriptions primarily online on our website Our

field sales organization uses direct sales force to solicit customers agencies and resellers In the United States
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our field sales organization is located in Chicago New York and the San Francisco Bay Area Outside of the

United States we have additional field sales offices in Australia Brazil Canada France Germany India

Ireland Italy Japan the Netherlands Singapore Sweden and the United Kingdom

For our hiring solutions we divide our field sales organization between account executives who are

responsible for new business and relationship managers who focus on renewing and selling additional seats and

solutions to existing customers Some of our hiring solutions products such as Talent Finder and Job Seeker are

sold online on our website

For our marketing solutions our field sales organization focuses on advertising agencies large brand

advertisers and performance advertisers that want to target professionals on our website We also sell our

marketing solutions to online advertisers that use our automated online self-service system to establish accounts

create ads target members and launch and manage their advertising campaigns

To date our member base has grown virally based on members inviting other members to join our network

Through this word-of-mouth marketing we have been able to build our brand with relatively low marketing

costs We use the quality of our own products and solutions as our most effective marketing tool and

word-of-mouth momentum continues to drive member awareness and trust worldwide

We believe that customer support is critical to retaining and expanding both our member base and

customers Our global customer operations group responds to both business and technical inquiries from

individual members and enterprises and professional organizations relating to their accounts and how to use our

features and products Self-service support is available through our website and customers can also contact us via

e-mail We have specific premium support teams dedicated to premium subscribers online advertisers and our

hiring solutions customers

Customers

Our customers include individuals enterprises and professional organizations No individual customer

represented more than 10% of our net revenue in 2011 2010 or 2009

Technology Infrastructure

Our technology platform is designed to create an engaging professional networking experience for our

members and is built to enable future growth at scale We employ technological innovations whenever possible

to increase efficiency and scale our business

Our products rely upon and leverage the massive amounts of data in our network This rich dataset has

grown exponentially requiring scalable computing resources We will continue to invest in building proprietary

and using open sourced technologies around our data search and solutions Our product development expense

was $132.2 million $65.1 million and $39.4 million in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Our key technology platforms are described below

Professional Graph Our fully distributed system is comprised of graph engine where nodes can

represent individuals companies schools and other entities and edges can be connection follow

or an employee at given company The professional graph holds an individuals real-time network

and enables variety of complex calls like establishing the degree by which two nodes are connected

e.g 2nd degree vs 3rd degree

Search Our proprietary search technology combines structured and free-form content to allow users to

search across numerous parameters Our search is powered by our rich dataset based on facets and key

words and is fundamentally personalized as all search requests use members network to affect

relevance and ranking Our search is real time distributed and multilingual and serves the needs of

both members and enterprises and professional organizations
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Customized Content Matching Targeting and Recommendations We have developed proprietary

intelligence and recommendation engine for extracting professional insights by utilizing our rich

dataset This engine enables us to provide our users with customized content and recommendations

For example based on members profile their 2nd and 3rd degree connections their viewing and

clicking history and host of other criteria our algorithms can provide intelligence and

recommendations around Talent Match People You May Know Groups You May Like Jobs You

May Be Interested In or Companies You May Be Interested In Our targeting and recommendation

technologies continue beyond just members profile by providing intelligence around similarprofile

views and similarjob views

Ad Targeting Platform We use combination of traditional and proprietary ad targeting and delivery

technologies The combination is optimized to work with our respective partners to provide the optimal

user experience Our proprietary systems leverage our feature extraction information retrieval and

matching systems to provide the most relevant ads

Open Sourced Technologies We deploy aspects of our technology into the open source community to

help increase the speed at which the technology can mature The combination of open source and

proprietary technologies used in our platforms increases the speed at which we can deploy our products

at scale For example Hadoop is an open source project used to batch compute data for different

features on our website based on our members data and traffic patterns Hadoop enables us to scale

our calculations on an expanding set of data and to do these calculations more frequently

Operations

We have developed our website and related infrastructure with the goal of maximizing the availability of

our platform to our members enterprises and professional organizations Our website and related infrastructure

are hosted on network located in multiple third-party facilities Our material data center facilities are provided

by Equinix Operating Co Inc pursuant to master service agreement with Equinix dated February 2008 Under

this agreement Equinix provides us with data center space in various locations

Intellectual Property

We protect our intellectual property rights by relying on federal state and common law rights as well as

contractual restrictions We control access to our proprietary technology in part by entering into confidentiality

and invention assignment agreements with our employees and contractors and confidentiality agreements with

third parties

In addition to these contractual arrangements we also rely on combination of trade secret copyright

trademark trade dress domain name and patents to protect our intellectual property We pursue the registration

of our domain names trademarks and service marks in the United States and in certain locations outside the

United States Our registered trademarks in the United States include Linkedln and the in design mark as

well as others and as of December 31 2011 we owned or had licenses to three issued U.S patents related to

online networking which expire in 2017 2027 and 2029 and 25 patent applications on file in the United States

and internationally

Circumstances outside our control could pose threat to our intellectual property rights For example

effective intellectual property protection may not be available in the United States or other countries in which our

products and solutions are distributed Also the efforts we have taken to protect our proprietary rights may not be

sufficient or effective Any significant impairment of our intellectual property rights could harm our business or

our ability to compete Also protecting our intellectual property rights is costly and time-consuming Any
unauthorized disclosure or use of our intellectual property could make it more expensive to do business and harm

our operating results
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Companies in the Internet social media technology and other industries may own large numbers of patents

copyrights and trademarks and may frequently request license agreements threaten litigation or file suit against

us based on allegations of infringement or other violations of intellectual property rights From time to time we

face and we expect to face in the future allegations that we have infringed the trademarks copyrights patents

and other intellectual property rights of third parties including our competitors and non-practicing entities As

we face increasing competition and as our business grows we will likely face more claims of infringement

Competition

We face significant competition in all aspects of our business Specifically we compete for members

enterprises and professional organizations the bases upon which we compete differ among these areas as

discussed below

MembersProfessional Networks The market for online professional networks is new and rapidly

evolving Other companies such as Facebook Google Microsoft and Twitter are developing or could

develop competing solutions Further some of these companies are partnering with third parties to

offer products and services that could compete with ours We face competition from number of

smaller companies in international markets such as King in Germany and Viadeo in France that

provide online professional networking solutions as well as Internet companies in the customer

relationship management market such as salesforce.com Chatter and Jigsaw Because membership

on our website is available at no cost we dont compete for members on the basis of price Instead we

compete primarily on the basis of the value and relevance of the products for professionals ease of use

and availability of our website and our products and solutions and the total number of professional

members and relevant data available

Enterprises and Professional OrganizationsHiring Solutions With respect to our hiring solutions

we compete with established online recruiting companies such as Monster-i-HotJobs CareerBuilder and

Indeed.com talent management companies such as Taleo which recently announced an agreement to

be acquired by Oracle and traditional recruiting firms Additionally other companies including

newcomers to the recruiting industry may partner with internet companies including social

networking companies to provide services that compete with our solutions either on their own or as

third party applications such as BranchOut In this area we compete primarily on the basis of the

efficiency and usefulness of our solutions for enterprises and professional organizations which are

influenced by the number and engagement of our members

Enterprises and Professional OrganizationsAdvertising and Marketing With respect to our

marketing solutions we compete with online and offline outlets that generate revenue from advertisers

and marketers In this area we compete to attract and retain advertisers by giving them access to the

most relevant and targeted audiences for their products or services

Other companies that provide content for professionals could develop more compelling offerings that

compete with our premium subscriptions and adversely impact our ability to sell and renew subscriptions to our

members Additionally companies that currently focus primarily on social networking could expand into

professional networking or users of social networks could choose to use or increase the use of those networks

for professional networking

We believe that we have competitive strengths that position us favorably in our markets However our

industry is evolving rapidly and is becoming increasingly competitive Larger and more established companies

may focus on professional networking and could directly compete with us Smaller companies could also launch

new products and services that we do not offer and that could gain market acceptance quickly

Government Regulation

We are subject to number of foreign and domestic laws and regulations that affect companies conducting

business on the Internet many of which are still evolving and could be interpreted in ways that could harm our
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business In the United States and abroad laws relating to the liability of providers of online services for

activities of their users and other third parties are currently being tested by number of claims including actions

based on invasion of privacy and other torts unfair competition copyright and trademark infringement and other

theories based on the nature and content of the materials searched the ads posted or the content provided by

users Any court ruling or other governmental action that imposes liability on providers of online services for the

activities of their users and other third parties could harm our business In addition rising concern about the use

of social networking technologies for illegal conduct such as the unauthorized dissemination of national secunty

information money laundering or supporting terrorist activities may in the future produce legislation or other

governmental action that could require changes to our products or services restrict or impose additional costs

upon the conduct of our business or cause users to abandon material aspects
of our service

In the area of information security and data protection many states have passed laws requiring notification

to users when there is security breach for personal data such as the 2002 amendment to Californias

Information Practices Act or requiring the adoption of minimum information security standards that are often

vaguely defined and difficult to practically implement The costs of compliance with these laws may increase in

the future as result of changes in interpretation Furthermore any failure on our part to comply with these laws

may subject us to significant liabilities

We are also subject to federal state and foreign laws regarding privacy and protection of member data We

post on our website our privacy policy and user agreement which describe our practices concerning the use

transmission and disclosure of member data Any failure by us to comply with our posted privacy policy or

privacy related laws and regulations could result in proceedings against us by governmental authorities or others

which could harm our business In addition the interpretation of privacy and data protection laws and their

application to the Internet is unclear evolving and in state of flux There is risk that these laws may be

interpreted and applied in conflicting ways from state to state country to country or region to region and in

manner that is not consistent with our current data protection practices or that new regulations will be enacted

Complying with these varying domestic and international requirements could cause us to incur additional costs

and change our business practices Further any failure by us to adequately protect our members privacy and data

could result in loss of member confidence in our services and ultimately in loss of members and customers

which could adversely affect our business

In addition because our services are accessible worldwide certain foreign jurisdictions have claimed and

others may claim that we are required to comply with their laws including in jurisdictions where we have no

local entity employees or infrastructure

Our Values and Company Culture

Our values and unique company culture serve as the foundation to our success Our values are the principles

by which we manage our day-to-day business and facilitate decision-making Our core values are

Our Members Come First We encourage employees to know and understand our members and to

ensure that we foster the long-term vitality of the Linkedln ecosystem

Relationships Matter By fostering trust with colleagues and partners we all succeed We

fundamentally believe that doing what is right is more important than being right

Be Open Honest and Constructive We expect our employees to communicate with clarity and

provide feedback with consistency in constructive way

Demand Excellence Our employees are encouraged to lead by example seek to solve big challenges

set measureable and actionable goals and continuously learn iterate and improve

Take Intelligent Risks Taking intelligent risks has been paramount in building the company to date

No matter how large the company becomes we strive to never lose our startup mentality

-13-



Act Like an Owner Talent is our most important asset We expect employees to act as an owner in

each decision they make no matter how big or small

Our company culture reflects who we are and the company we aspire to be Our culture is shaped in large

part by our values and is best defined by

Transformation People who work at Linkedln are here because they seek to make positive and

lasting impact on the world help realize the full potential of Linkedln and fundamentally alter the

trajectory of their careers

Integrity We dont believe the ends justify the means Rather we expect employees to do the right

thing no matter what

Collaboration Much like the network effects inherent in our business model we believe that as

valuable as we are as individuals we are all exponentially more valuable when aligned and working

together

Humor Fulfilling our mission and vision requires an intense focus so we believe it is important to not

take ourselves too seriously and try to have some fun while doing it

Results We set clear actionable goals and have high expectations for our performance We count on

our employees to consistently deliver excellent results seek leverage through greater efficiency and

effectiveness and demonstrate leadership at all levels throughout the organization

We believe we have assembled an extremely talented group of employees and strive to hire the best

employees to solve very significant challenges As of December 31 2011 we had 2116 employees consisting of

972 employees in engineering product development and customer operations 844 employees in sales and

marketing and 300 employees in general and administrative

While we encourage collaboration we also embrace individual thinking and creativity For example one of

our key approaches to attracting and retaining technical talent and fostering continued innovation is through our

company-sponsored InDays and hackdays where our employees are encouraged to take the time to explore

and implement new ideas Participants then present their ideas in front of the whole company with prizes

awarded for the best ideas Some of our significant new products have been developed as result of inDays and

hackdays

Information about Segment and Geographic Revenue

Information about segment and geographic revenue is set forth in Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements under Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Seasonality

Our business is affected by both cyclicality in business activity and seasonal fluctuations in Internet usage

We believe our rapid growth has masked the cyclicality and seasonality of our business As our revenue growth

rate slows we expect that the cyclicality and seasonality in our business may become more pronounced and may
in the future cause our operating results to fluctuate In particular we expect sales of hiring solutions to be

weaker in the first quarter of the year due to budgetary cycles and sales of our marketing solutions to be weaker

in the third quarter of the year as Internet usage during the summer months generally slows

Available Information

Our website is located at www.linkedin.com and our investor relations website is located at hap
investors.linkedin.coml The following filings are available through our investor relations website after we file

them with the SEC Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and our Proxy Statements
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for our annual meetings of stockholders These filings are also available for download free of charge on our

investor relations website We also provide link to the section of the SECs website at www.sec.gov that has all

of our public filings including Quarterly Reports on Form l0-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K all amendments

to those reports our Proxy Statements and other ownership related filings Further copy of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K is located at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street NE Washington D.C 20549

Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room can be obtained by calling the SEC at

-800-SEC-0330

We webcast our earnings calls and certain events we participate in or host with members of the investment

community on our investor relations website Additionally we provide notifications of news or announcements

regarding our financial performance including SEC filings investor events press and earnings releases and

blogs as part of our investor relations website Investors and others can receive notifications of new information

posted on our investor relations website in real time by signing up for email alerts and RSS feeds Further

corporate governance information including our certificate of incorporation bylaws governance guidelines

board committee charters and code of conduct is also available on our investor relations website under the

heading Corporate Governance The contents of our websites are not intended to be incorporated by reference

into this Annual Report on Form 10-K or in any other report or document we file with the SEC and any

references to our websites are intended to be inactive textual references only

Item 1A Risk Factors

Investing in our Class common stock involves high degree of risk You should carefully consider the

risks and uncertainties described below together with all of the other information in this Annual Report on Form

10-K including our consolidated financial statements and related notes before deciding whether to purchase

shares of our Class common stock If any of the following risks are realized our business operating results

and prospects could be materially and adversely affected In that event the price of our Class common stock

could decline and you could lose part or all of your investment

Risks Related to Our Business

We have short operating history in new and unproven market which makes it difficult to evaluate our

future prospects and may increase the risk that we will not be successfuL

We have short operating history in new and unproven market that may not develop as expected if at all

This short operating history makes it difficult to effectively assess our future prospects You should consider our

business and prospects in light of the risks and difficulties we encounter in this rapidly evolving market These

risks and difficulties include our ability to among other things

increase our number of registered members and member engagement

avoid interruptions or disruptions in our service or slower than expected website load times

continue to earn and preserve our members trust with respect to their professional reputation and

information

responsibly use the data that our members share with us to provide solutions that make our members

more successful and productive and that are critical to the hiring and marketing needs of enterprises

and professional organizations

develop scalable high-performance technology infrastructure that can efficiently and reliably handle

increased member usage globally as well as the deployment of new features and products

increase revenue from the solutions we provide

process store and use personal data in compliance with governmental regulation and other legal

obligations related to privacy
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successfully compete with other companies that are currently in or may in the future enter the online

professional network space

hire integrate and retain world class talent

halt the operations of websites that aggregate our data as well as data from other companies or copycat

websites that have misappropriated our data and

successfully expand our business especially internationally

If the market for online professional networks does not develop as we expect or if we fail to address the

needs of this market our business will be harmed We may not be able to successfully address these risks and

difficulties or others including those described elsewhere in these risk factors Failure to adequately address

these risks and difficulties could harm our business and cause our operating results to suffer

We may not timely and effectively scale and adapt our existing technology and network infrastructure to

ensure that our website is accessible within an acceptable load time

key element to our continued growth is the ability of our members users whom we define as anyone who

visits our website regardless of whether or not they are member enterprises and professional organizations in

all geographies to access our website within acceptable load times We call this website performance We have

experienced and may in the future experience website disruptions outages and other performance problems due

to variety of factors including infrastructure changes human or software errors capacity constraints due to an

overwhelming number of users accessing our website simultaneously and denial of service or fraud or security

attacks In some instances we may not be able to identify the cause or causes of these website performance

problems within an acceptable period of time It may become increasingly difficult to maintain and improve our

website performance especially during peak usage times and as our solutions become more complex and our

user traffic increases If our website is unavailable when users attempt to access it or does not load as quickly as

they expect users may seek other websites to obtain the information for which they are looking and may not

return to our website as often in the future or at all This would negatively impact our ability to attract members

enterprises and professional organizations and increase engagement on our website We
expect to continue to

make significant investments to maintain and improve website performance and to enable rapid releases of new
features and products To the extent that we do not effectively address capacity constraints upgrade our systems

as needed and continually develop our technology and network architecture to accommodate actual and

anticipated changes in technology our business and operating results may be harmed

We have implemented disaster recovery program which allows us to move production to back-up data

center in the event of catastrophe Although this program is functional it does not yet provide real-time

back-up data center so if our primary data center shuts down there will be period of time that the website will

remain shut down while the transition to the back-up data center takes place

Our systems are also vulnerable to damage or interruption from catastrophic occurrences such as

earthquakes floods fires power loss telecommunication failures terrorist attacks and similarevents Our U.S

corporate offices and certain of the facilities we lease to house our computer and telecommunications equipment

are located in the San Francisco Bay Area and Southern California both regions known for seismic activity

Despite any precautions we may take the occurrence of natural disaster or other unanticipated problems at our

hosting facilities could result in lengthy interruptions in our services

We do not carry business interruption insurance sufficient to compensate us for the potentially significant

losses including the potential harm to the future growth of our business that may result from interruptions in our

service as result of system failures
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If our security measures are compromised or if our website is subject to attacks that degrade or deny the

ability of members or customers to access our solutions members and customers may curtail or stop use of

our solutions

Our solutions involve the storage and transmission of members and customers information some of which

may be private and security breaches could expose us to risk of loss of this information which could result in

potential liability and litigation Like all websites our website is vulnerable to computer viruses break-ins

phishing attacks attempts to overload our servers with denial-of-service or other attacks and similardisruptions

from unauthorized use of our computer systems any of which could lead to interruptions delays or website

shutdowns causing loss of critical data or the unauthorized disclosure or use of personally identifiable or other

confidential information If we experience compromises to our security that result in website performance or

availability problems the complete shutdown of our website or the loss or unauthorized disclosure of

confidential information our members or customers may lose trust and confidence in us and decrease the use of

our website or stop using our website in its entirety Further outside parties may attempt to fraudulently induce

employees members or customers to disclose sensitive information in order to gain access to our information or

our members or customers information Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access disable or

degrade service or sabotage systems change frequently often are not recognized until launched against target

and may originate from less regulated and remote areas around the world we may be unable to proactively

address these techniques or to implement adequate preventative measures Any or all of these issues could

negatively impact our ability to attract new members and increase engagement by existing members cause

existing members to close their accounts or existing customers to cancel their contracts subject us to third-party

lawsuits regulatory fines or other action or liability thereby hanning our operating results

Our core value of putting our members first may conflict with the short-term interests of our business

One of our core values is to make decisions based on the best interests of our members which we believe is

essential to our success in increasing our member growth rate and engagement and in serving the best long-term

interests of the company and our stockholders Therefore in the past we have forgone and may in the future

forgo certain expansion or short-term revenue opportunities that we do not believe are in the best interests of our

members even if our decision negatively impacts our operating results in the short term In addition as part of

our philosophy of putting our members first as long as our members are adhering to our terms of service this

philosophy may cause disagreements or negatively impact our relationships with our existing or prospective

customers This could result in enterprises and professional organizations blocking access to our website or

refusing to purchase our hiring or marketing solutions or premium subscriptions Our decisions may not result in

the long-term benefits that we expect in which case our member engagement business and operating results

could be harmed

The number of our registered members is higher than the number of actual members and substantial

majority of our page views are generated by minority of our members Our business may be adversely

impacted if we are unable to attract and retain additional members who actively use our website

The number of registered members in our network is higher than the number of actual members because

some members have multiple registrations other members have died or become incapacitated and others may
have registered under fictitious names Given the challenges inherent in identifying these accounts we do not

have reliable system to accurately identify the number of actual members and thus we rely on the number of

registered members as our measure of the size of our network Further substantial majority of our members do

not visit our website on monthly basis and substantial majority of our page views are generated by minority

of our members If the number of our actual members does not meet our expectations or we are unable to

increase the breadth and frequency of our visiting members then our business may not grow as fast as we expect

which will harm our operating and financial results and may cause our stock price to decline
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If our membersprofiles are out-of-date inaccurate or lack the information that users and customers want to

see we may not be able to realize the full potential of our network which could adversely impact the growth of

our business

If our members do not update their information or provide accurate and complete information when they

join Linkedln or do not establish sufficient connections the value of our network may be negatively impacted

because our value proposition as professional network and as source of accurate and comprehensive data will

be weakened For example customers of our hiring solutions may not find members that meet their qualifications

or may misidentify candidate as having such qualifications which could result in mismatches that erode

customer confidence in our solutions Similarly incomplete or outdated member information would diminish the

ability of our marketing solutions customers to reach their target audiences and our ability to provide our

customers with valuable insights Therefore we must provide features and products that demonstrate the value of

our network to our members and motivate them to contribute additional timely and accurate information to their

profile and our network If we fail to successfully motivate our members to do so our business and operating

results could be adversely affected

We process store and use personal information and other data which subjects us to governmental regulation

and other legal obligations related to privacy and our actual or perceived failure to comply with such

obligations could harm our business

We receive store and process personal information and other member data and we enable our members to

share their personal information with each other and with third parties There are numerous federal state and

local laws around the world regarding privacy and the storing sharing use processing disclosure and protection

of personal information and other member data the scope of which are changing subject to differing

interpretations and may be inconsistent between countries or conflict with other rules We generally comply with

industry standards and are subject to the terms of our privacy policies and privacy-related obligations to third

parties including voluntary third-party certification bodies such as TRUSTe We strive to comply with all

applicable laws policies legal obligations and industry codes of conduct relating to privacy and data protection

to the extent possible However it is possible that these obligations may be interpreted and applied in new ways

and/or in manner that is inconsistent from one jurisdiction to another and may conflict with other rules or our

practices or that new regulations could be enacted Any failure or perceived failure by us to comply with our

privacy policies our privacy-related obligations to users or other third parties or our privacy-related legal

obligations or any compromise of security that results in the unauthorized release or transfer of personally

identifiable information or other member data may result in governmental enforcement actions litigation or

public statements against us by consumer advocacy groups or others and could cause our members and customers

to lose trust in us which could have an adverse effect on our business Additionally if third parties we work

with such as customers vendors or developers violate applicable laws or our policies such violations may also

put our members information at risk and could in turn have an adverse effect on our business

Public scrutiny of Internet privacy issues may result in increased regulation and different industry standards

which could deter or prevent us from providing our current products and solutions to our members and

customers thereby harming our business

The regulatory framework for privacy issues worldwide is currently in flux and is likely to remain so for the

foreseeable future Practices regarding the collection use storage transmission and security of personal

information by companies operating over the Internet have recently come under increased public scrutiny The

U.S government including the White House the Federal Trade Commission and the Department of Commerce

are reviewing the need for greater regulation for the collection of information concerning consumer behavior on

the Internet including regulation aimed at restricting certain targeted advertising practices The White House

recently published report calling for consumer privacy Bill of Rights that could impact the collection of data

on the Internet In addition the European Union is in the
process

of proposing reforms to its existing data

protection legal framework which may result in greater compliance burden for companies with users in
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Europe Various government and consumer agencies have also called for new regulation and changes in industry

practices Recently the State of California and several other states have adopted privacy guidelines with respect

to mobile applications

Our business including our ability to operate and expand internationally could be adversely affected if

legislation or regulations are adopted interpreted or implemented in manner that is inconsistent with our

current business practices and that require changes to these practices the design of our website products

features or our privacy policy In particular the success of our business has been and we expect will continue to

be driven by our ability to responsibly use the data that our members share with us Therefore our business

could be harmed by any significant change to applicable laws regulations or industry practices regarding the use

or disclosure of data our members choose to share with us or regarding the manner in which the
express or

implied consent of consumers for such use and disclosure is obtained Such changes may require us to modify

our products and features possibly in material manner and may limit our ability to develop new products and

features that make use of the data that our members voluntarily share with us

Our business is subject to variety of U.S and foreign laws many of which are unsettled and still developing

and which could subject us to claims or otherwise harm our business

We are subject to variety of laws in the United States and abroad including laws regarding data retention

privacy and consumer protection that are continuously evolving and developing The
scope

and interpretation of

the laws that are or may be applicable to us are often uncertain and may be conflicting particularly laws outside

the United States For example laws relating to the liability of providers of online services for activities of their

users and other third parties are currently being tested by number of claims including actions based on invasion

of privacy and other torts unfair competition copyright and trademark infringement and other theories based on

the nature and content of the materials searched the ads posted or the content provided by users In addition

regulatory authorities around the world are considering number of legislative and regulatory proposals

concerning privacy and data protection and other matters that may be applicable to our business It is also likely

that as our business grows and evolves and our solutions are used in greater number of countries we will

become subject to laws and regulations in additional jurisdictions It is difficult to predict how existing laws will

be applied to our business and the new laws to which we may become subject

If we are not able to comply with these laws or regulations or if we become liable under these laws or

regulations we could be directly hanned and we may be forced to implement new measures to reduce our

exposure to this liability This may require us to expend substantial resources or to discontinue certain solutions

which would negatively affect our business financial condition and results of operations In addition the

increased attention focused upon liability issues as result of lawsuits and legislative proposals could harm our

reputation or otherwise impact the growth of our business Any costs incurred as result of this potential liability

could harm our business and operating results

We expect our operating results to fluctuate on quarterly and annual basis which may result in decline in

our stock price if such fluctuations result in afailure to meet the expectations of securities analysts or

investors

Our revenue and operating results could
vary significantly from quarter-to-quarter and year-to-year and may

fail to match our past performance because of variety of factors some of which are outside of our control Any
of these events could cause the market price of our Class common stock to fluctuate Factors that may
contribute to the variability of our operating results include

the unproven nature of our business model

our commitment to putting our members first even if it means forgoing short-term revenue

opportunities

the cost of investing in our technology infrastructure may be greater than we anticipate
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our ability to increase our member base and member engagement

disruptions or outages in our website availability actual or perceived breaches of privacy and

compromises of our member data

the entrance of new competitors in our market whether by established companies or the entrance of

new companies

changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors

macroeconomic changes in particular deterioration in labor markets which would adversely impact

sales of our hiring solutions or economic growth that does not lead to job growth for instance

increases in productivity

the timing and costs of expanding our field sales organization and delays or inability in achieving

expected productivity

the timing of certain expenditures including hiring of employees and capital expenditures

our ability to increase sales of our products and solutions to new customers and expand sales of

additional products and solutions to our existing customers

the size and seasonal variability of our customers recruiting and marketing budgets

the extent to which existing customers renew their agreements with us and the timing and terms of

those renewals and

general industry and macroeconomic conditions

Given our short operating history and the rapidly evolving market of online professional networks our

historical operating results may not be useful to you in predicting our future operating results We believe our

rapid growth has masked the cyclicality and seasonality of our business As our revenue growth rate slows we

expect that the cyclicality and seasonality in our business may become more pronounced and may in the future

cause our operating results to fluctuate In particular we expect sales of hiring solutions to be weaker in the first

quarter of the year due to budgetary cycles and sales of our marketing solutions to be weaker in the third quarter

of the year as Internet usage during the summer months generally slows In addition global economic concerns

continue to create uncertainty and unpredictability and add risk to our future outlook Sovereign debt issues and

economic uncertainty in the United States and Europe and around the world raise concerns in markets important

to our business An economic downturn in any particular region in which we do business or globally could result

in reductions in sales of our hiring and marketing solutions decreased renewals of existing arrangements and

other adverse effects that could harm our operating results

We expect our revenue growth rate to decline and as our costs increase we may not be able to generate

sufficient revenue to sustain our profitability over the long term

From 2008 to 2011 our net revenue grew from $78.8 million to $522.2 million which represents

compounded annual growth rate of approximately 88% We expect that in the future as our net revenue

increases to higher levels our revenue growth rate will decline over time We also expect that the growth rates of

each of our three primary business lines will fluctuate and the business lines may not grow at the same rate As

with 2011 our philosophy in 2012 is to continue to invest for future growth We expect to continue to expend

substantial financial and other resources on

our technology infrastructure including website architecture development tools scalability

availability performance and security as well as disaster recovery measures

product development including investments in our product development team and the development of

new features

sales and marketing including significant expansion of our field sales organization
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international expansion in an effort to increase our member base engagement and sales and

general administration including legal and accounting expenses related to being public company

These investments may not result in increased revenue or growth in our business and will increase our

expenses If we fail to continue to grow our revenue and overall business our operating results and business

would be harmed

We expect to face increasing competition in the market for online professional networks from social

networking sites and Internet search companies among others as well as continued competition for

customers of our hiring and marketing solutions

We face significant competition in all aspects of our business and we expect such competition to increase

particularly in the market for online professional networks

Our industry is evolving rapidly and is becoming increasingly competitive Larger and more established

companies may focus on our market and could directly compete with us Smaller companies including

application developers could also launch new products and services that compete with us and that could gain

market acceptance quickly We also expect our existing competitors in the markets for hiring and marketing

solutions to continue to focus on these areas number of these companies may have greater resources than us

which may enable them to compete more effectively Additionally users of social networks may choose to use

or increase their use of those networks for professional purposes which may result in those users decreasing or

eliminating their use of Linkedln Companies that currently focus on social networking could also expand their

focus to professionals We and other companies have historically established alliances and relationships with

some of these companies to allow broader exposure to users and access to data on the Internet We may also in

the future establish alliances or relationships with other competitors or potential competitors To the extent

companies terminate such relationships and establish alliances and relationships with others our business could

be harmed Specifically we compete for members enterprises and professional organizations as discussed

below

MembersProfessional Networks The market for online professional networks is new and rapidly

evolving Other companies such as Facebook Google Microsoft and Twitter are developing or could develop

competing solutions Further some of these companies are partnering with third parties to offer products and

services that could compete with ours We face competition from number of smaller companies in international

markets such as Xing in Germany and Viadeo in France that provide online professional networking solutions

as well as Internet companies in the customer relationship management market such as salesforce.com Chatter

and Jigsaw Our competitors may announce new products services or enhancements that better address

changing industry standards or the needs of members and customers such as mobile access Any such increased

competition could cause pricing pressure loss of market share or decreased member engagement any of which

could adversely affect our business and operating results Internet search engines could also change their

methodologies in ways that adversely affect our ability to optimize our page rankings within their search results

Enterprises and Professional OrganizationsHiring Solutions With respect to our hiring solutions we

compete with established online recruiting companies such as MonsterIiotJobs CareerBuilder and hideed.com

talent management companies such as Taleo which recently announced an agreement to be acquired by Oracle

and traditional recruiting firms Additionally other companies including newcomers to the recruiting industry may

partner with internet companies including social networking companies to provide services that compete with our

solutions either on their own or as third party applications such as BranchOut If the efficiency and usefulness of

our products to enterprises and professional organizations do not continue to exceed those provided by competitors

which factors are influenced by the number and engagement of our members we will not be able to compete

successfully

Enterprises and Professional OrganizationsAdvertising and Marketing With respect to our marketing

solutions we compete with online and offline outlets that generate revenue from advertisers and marketers To
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the extent competitors are better able to provide advertisers with cost-effective access to attractive demographics

either through new business models or increased user volume we may not be successful in retaining our existing

advertisers or attracting new advertisers and our business would be harmed

Finally other companies that provide content for professionals could develop more compelling offerings

that compete with our premium subscriptions and adversely impact our ability to sell and renew subscriptions to

our members

If we fail to effectively manage our growth our business and operating results could be harmed

We continue to experience rapid growth in our headcount and operations which will continue to place

significant demands on our management and our operational and financial infrastructure As of December 31

2011 approximately 52% of our employees had been with us for less than one year
and approximately 82% for

less than two years
As we continue to grow we must effectively integrate develop and motivate large number

of new employees in various countries around the world and we must maintain the beneficial aspects of our

corporate culture In particular we intend to continue to make substantial investments to expand our engineering

research and development field sales and general and administrative organizations and our international

operations To attract top talent we have had to offer and believe we will need to continue to offer highly

competitive compensation packages before we can validate the productivity of those employees We face

significant competition for talent from other internet and high-growth companies which include both publicly

traded and privately-held companies As we have transitioned from private company to public company this

competition has become even more acute in assessing appropriate compensation packages The risks of over-

hiring especially given overall macroeconomic risks or over-compensating and the challenges of integrating

rapidly growing employee base into our corporate culture are exacerbated by our international expansion

Additionally we may not be able to hire new employees quickly enough to meet our needs If we fail to

effectively manage our hiring needs and successfully integrate our new hires our efficiency and ability to meet

our forecasts and our employee morale productivity and retention could suffer and our business and operating

results could be adversely affected

Additionally if we do not effectively manage the growth of our business and operations the quality of our

solutions could suffer which could negatively affect our brand operating results and overall business Further

we have made changes in the past and will in the future make changes to our features products and services that

our members or customers may not like find useful or agree with We may also decide to discontinue certain

features products or services or charge for certain features products or services that are currently free or

increase fees for any of our features products or services If members or customers are unhappy with these

changes they may decrease their engagement on our site or stop using features products or services or the site

generally They may in addition choose to take other types of action against us such as organizing petitions or

boycotts focused on our company our website or any of our services filing claims with the government or other

regulatory bodies or filing lawsuits against us Any of these actions could negatively impact our member growth

and engagement and our brand which would harm our business To effectively manage this growth we will need

to continue to improve our operational financial and management controls and our reporting systems and

procedures by among other things

improving our information technology infrastructure to maintain the effectiveness of our solutions

enhancing information and communication systems to ensure that our employees and offices around

the world are well-coordinated and can effectively communicate with each other and our growing base

of members enterprises and professional organizations

enhancing our internal controls to ensure timely and accurate reporting of all of our operations and

appropriately documenting our information technology systems and our business processes
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These systems enhancements and improvements will require significant capital expenditures and allocation

of valuable management and employee resources If we fail to implement these improvements effectively our

ability to manage our expected growth and comply with the rules and regulations that are applicable to publicly

reporting companies will be impaired

Our international operations are subject to increased challenges and risks

We have offices around the world and our website is available in English as well as Czech Dutch French

German Indonesian Italian Japanese Korean Malay Portuguese Romanian Russian Spanish Swedish and

Turkish We expect to continue to expand our international operations in the future by opening offices in new

jurisdictions and expanding our offerings in new languages However we have limited operating history as

company outside the United States and our ability to manage our business and conduct our operations

internationally requires considerable management attention and resources and is subject to the particular

challenges of supporting rapidly growing business in an environment of multiple languages cultures customs

legal systems alternative dispute systems regulatory systems and commercial infrastructures International

expansion will require us to invest significant funds and other resources Expanding internationally may subject

us to risks that we have either not faced before or increase risks that we currently face including risks associated

with

recruiting and retaining talented and capable employees in foreign countries and maintaining our

company culture across all of our offices

providing solutions across significant distance in different languages and among different cultures

including potentially modifying our solutions and features to ensure that they are culturally relevant in

different countries

increased competition from local websites and services that provide online professional networking

solutions such as Germany-based Xing and France-based Viadeo who may also expand their

geographic footprint

compliance with applicable foreign laws and regulations

longer payment cycles in some countries

credit risk and higher levels of payment fraud

compliance with anti-bribery laws including without limitation compliance with the Foreign Corrupt

Practices Act and the UK Anti-Bribery Act

currency exchange rate fluctuations

foreign exchange controls that might prevent us from repatriating cash earned outside the United

States

political and economic instability in some countries specifically in freland

double taxation of our non-U.S earnings and potentially adverse tax consequences due to changes in

the tax laws of the United States or the foreign jurisdictions in which we operate and

higher costs of doing business internationally

If our revenue from our international operations and particularly from our operations in the countries and

regions on which we have focused our spending do not exceed the expense of establishing and maintaining these

operations our business and operating results will suffer
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Our business depends on strong brand and any failure to maintain protect and enhance our brand would

hurt our ability to retain or expand our base of members enterprises and professional organizations or our

ability to increase their level of engagement

We have developed strong brand that we believe has contributed significantly to the success of our

business Our brand is predicated on the idea that individual professionals will find immense value in building

and maintaining their professional identities and reputations on our platform If our members or potential

members determine that they can use other platforms such as social networks for the same purposes as or as

replacement for our network or if they choose to blend their professional and social networking activities our

brand and our business could be harmed Maintaining protecting and enhancing the Linkedln brand is critical

to expanding our base of members enterprises advertisers corporate customers and other partners and

increasing their engagement with our website and will depend largely on our ability to maintain member trust

be technology leader and continue to provide high-quality solutions which we may not do successfully If we

do not successfully maintain strong brand our business could be hanned

We may not be able to halt the operations of websites that aggregate our data as well as data from other

companies including social networks or copycat webs ites that have misappropriated our data in the past or

may misappropriate our data in the future These activities could harm our brand and our business

From time to time third parties have misappropriated our data through website scraping robots or other

means and aggregated this data on their websites with data from other companies In addition copycat
websites have misappropriated data on our network and attempted to imitate our brand or the functionality of our

website These activities could degrade our brand and harm our business When we have become aware of such

websites we have employed technological or legal measures in an attempt to halt their operations However we

may not be able to detect all such websites in timely manner and even if we could technological and legal

measures may be insufficient to stop their operations In some cases particularly in the case of websites

operating outside of the United States our available remedies may not be adequate to protect us against such

websites Regardless of whether we can successfully enforce our rights against these websites any measures that

we may take could require us to expend significant financial or other resources

Failure to protect or enforce our intellectual property rights could harm our business and operating results

We regard the protection of our trade secrets copyrights trademarks trade dress domain names and patents

as critical to our success In particular we must maintain protect and enhance the Linkedln brand We strive to

protect our intellectual property rights by relying on federal state and common law rights as well as contractual

restrictions We enter into confidentiality and invention assignment agreements with our employees and

contractors and confidentiality agreements with parties with whom we conduct business in order to limit access

to and disclosure and use of our proprietary information However these contractual arrangements and the other

steps we have taken to protect our intellectual property may not prevent the misappropriation of our proprietary

information or deter independent development of similar technologies by others

We pursue the registration of our domain names trademarks and service marks in the United States and in

certain locations outside the United States Effective trade secret copyright trademark trade dress domain name

and patent prosecution is expensive to develop and maintain both in terms of initial and ongoing registration

requirements and the costs of defending our rights We are seeking to protect our trademarks patents and

domain names in an increasing number of jurisdictions process that is expensive and may not be successful or

which may not pursue in every location We may over time increase our investment in protecting our

innovations through increased patent filing that is expensive and time-consuming

Litigation may be necessary to enforce our intellectual property rights protect our respective trade secrets or

determine the validity and scope of proprietary rights claimed by others Any litigation of this nature regardless

of outcome or merit could result in substantial costs and diversion of management and technical resources any
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of which could adversely affect our business and operating results We may incur significant costs in enforcing

our trademarks against those who attempt to imitate our Linkedln brand If we fail to maintain protect and

enhance our intellectual property rights our business and operating results may be harmed and the market price

of our Class common stock could decline

We are and may in the future be subject to legal proceedings and litigation including intellectual property

and privacy disputes which are costly to defend and could harm our business and operating results

We are party to lawsuits in the normal course of business Litigation in general is often expensive and

disruptive to normal business operations We are currently facing and expect to face in the future allegations

and lawsuits that we have infringed the intellectual property and other rights of third parties including patents

privacy trademarks copyrights and other rights Litigation and particularly the patent infringement and class

action matters we are facing or may face may be protracted and expensive and the results are difficult to predict

Adverse outcomes may result in significant settlement costs or judgments require us to modify our products and

features while we develop non-infringing substitutes or require us to stop offering certain features

In addition we use open source software in our solutions and will use open source software in the future

From time to time we may face claims against companies that incorporate open source software into their

products claiming ownership of or demanding release of the source code the open source software and/or

derivative works that were developed using such software or otherwise seeking to enforce the terms of the

applicable open source license These claims could also result in litigation require us to purchase costly license

or require us to devote additional research and development resources to change our solutions any of which

would have negative effect on our business and operating results

Although the results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty and determining reserves for

pending litigation requires significant judgment we do not believe that the final outcome of any matter that we

currently face will have material adverse effect on our business However there can be no assurance that our

expectations will prove correct and even if these matters are not resolved in our favor or without significant cash

settlements these matters and the time and resources necessary to litigate or resolve them could harm our

business our operating results our reputation or the market price of our Class common stock

If we do not continue to attract new customers or if existing customers do not renew their subscriptions

renew on less favorable terms or fail to purchase additional solutions we may not achieve our revenue

projections and our operating results would be harmed

In order to grow our business we must continually attract new customers sell additional solutions to

existing customers and reduce the level of non-renewals in our business Our ability to do so depends in large

part on the success of our sales and marketing efforts We do not typically enter into long-term contracts with our

customers and even when we do they can generally terminate their relationship with us We have limited

historical data with respect to rates of customer renewals upgrades and expansions so we may not accurately

predict future trends for any of these metrics Furthermore unlike traditional software companies the nature of

our products and solutions is such that customers may decide to terminate or not renew their agreements with us

without causing significant disruptions to their own businesses

We must demonstrate that our hiring solutions are an important recruiting tool for enterprises and

professional organizations and that our marketing solutions provide them with access to an audience of one of the

most influential affluent and highly educated audiences on the Internet However potential customers may not

be familiar with our solutions or may prefer other more traditional products and services for their hiring

advertising and marketing needs

The rate at which we expand our customer base or increase our customers renewal rates may decline or

fluctuate because of several factors including the prices of our solutions the prices of products and services
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offered by our competitors reduced hiring by our customers or reductions in their hiring or marketing spending

levels due to macroeconomic or other factors and the efficacy and cost-effectiveness of our solutions If we do

not attract new customers or if our customers do not renew their agreements for our solutions renew on less

favorable terms or do not purchase additional functionality or offerings our revenue may grow more slowly than

expected or decline

Ultimately attracting new customers and retaining existing customers requires that we continue to provide

high quality solutions that our customers value and we focus on customer acquisition and market penetration

rather than pricing In particular our hiring solutions customers will discontinue their purchases of our solutions

if we fail to effectively connect them with the talent they seek and our premium subscribers will discontinue

their subscriptions if they do not find the networking and business opportunities that they value Similarly

customers of our marketing solutions will not continue to do business with us if their advertisements do not reach

their intended audiences Therefore we must continue to demonstrate to our customers that using our marketing

solutions is the most effective and cost-efficient way to maximize their results Even if our marketing solutions

are providing value to our customers advertisers are sensitive to general economic downturns and reductions in

consumer spending among other events and trends which generally results in reduced advertising expenditures

and could adversely affect sales of our marketing solutions If we fail to provide high quality solutions and

convince customers of our value proposition we may not be able to retain existing customers or attract new

customers which would harm our business and operating results

Because we recognize most of the revenue from our hiring solutions and our premium subscriptions over the

term of the agreement significant downturn in these businesses may not be immediately reflected in our

operating results

We recognize revenue from sales of our hiring solutions and premium subscriptions over the terms of the

agreements which is typically 12 months As result significant portion of the revenue we report in each

quarter is generated from agreements entered into during previous quarters Consequently decline in new or

renewed agreements in any one quarter may not significantly impact our revenue in that quarter but will

negatively affect our revenue in future quarters In addition we may be unable to adjust our fixed costs in

response to reduced revenue Accordingly the effect of significant declines in the sales of these offerings may
not be reflected in our short-term results of operations

We depend on world class talent to grow and operate our business and if we are unable to hire retain and

motivate our personnel we may not be able to grow effectively

Our future success will depend upon our continued ability to identify hire develop motivate and retain

world class talent Our ability to execute efficiently is dependent upon contributions from all of our employees

in particular our senior management team Key institutional knowledge remains with small group of long-term

employees and directors whom we may not be able to retain We may not be able to retain the services of any of

our long-term employees or other members of senior management in the future We do not have employment

agreements other than offer letters with any key employee and we do not maintain key person
life insurance for

any employee In addition from time to time there may be changes in our senior management team that may be

disruptive to our business If our senior management team including any new hires that we may make fails to

work together effectively and to execute our plans and strategies on timely basis our business could be harmed

Our growth strategy also depends on our ability to expand and retain our organization with world class

talent Identifying recruiting training and integrating qualified individuals will require significant time expense

and attention In addition to hiring new employees we must continue to focus on retaining our best talent

Competition for these resources is intense particularly in the San Francisco Bay Area where our headquarters is

located We may need to invest significant amounts of cash and equity for new employees and we may never

realize returns on these investments If we are not able to effectively increase and retain our talent our ability to

achieve our strategic objectives will be adversely impacted and our business will be harmed
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We believe that our culture has the potential to be key contributor to our success From 2009 to 2010 we

doubled the size of our workforce and we expect to continue to hire aggressively as we expand especially in

field sales and internationally If we do not continue to develop our corporate culture as we grow and evolve

including maintaining our culture of transparency with our employees it could harm our ability to foster the

innovation creativity and teamwork we believe we need to support our growth In addition we completed our

initial public offering in May 2011 As result employees who have been with us for longer than
year

have

been able to and may continue to realize substantial financial gains in connection with the sales of their shares

from the exercise of their vested options which could result in loss of employees There will likely be

disparities of wealth between those of our employees whom we hired prior to our initial public offering in May
2011 and those who joined us after we became public company which could adversely impact relations among
employees and our culture in general

Many individuals are using devices other than personal computers to access the Internet If users of these

devices do not widely adopt solutions we develop for these devices our business could be adversely affected

The number of people who access the Internet through devices other than personal computers including

mobile telephones personal digital assistants smart phones and handheld tablets or computers has increased

dramatically in the past few years and is projected to continue to increase If we are unable to develop mobile

solutions to meet the needs of our users our business could suffer Additionally as new devices and new

platforms are continually being released it is difficult to predict the problems we may encounter in developing

versions of our solutions for use on these alternative devices and we may need to devote significant resources to

the creation support and maintenance of such devices

The effectiveness of our marketing solutions depends in part on our relationships with advertising serving

technology companies

We rely in part on advertising serving technology companies to deliver our marketing solutions product

Our agreements with these companies may not be extended or renewed after their respective expirations or we

may not be able to extend or renew our agreements on terms and conditions favorable to us If these
agreements

are terminated we may not be able to enter into agreements with alternative companies on acceptable terms or on

timely basis or both which could negatively impact revenue from our marketing solutions

Enterprises or professional organizations including governmental agencies may restrict access to our

website which could lead to the loss or slowing of growth in our member base or the level of member

engagement

Our solutions depend on the ability of our members to access the Internet and our website Enterprises or

professional organizations including governmental agencies could block access to our website or the Internet

generally for number of reasons such as security or confidentiality concerns or regulatory reasons or they may
adopt policies that prohibit listing the employers names on the employees Linkedln profiles in order to

minimize the risk that employees will be contacted and hired by other employers For example the government

of the Peoples Republic of China previously blocked access to our site in China for short period of time We
cannot assure you that the Chinese government will not block access to one or more of our features and products

or our entire site in China for longer period of time or permanently If these entities block or limit access to our

website or adopt policies restricting our members from providing us with accurate and up-to-date information

the value of our network could be negatively impacted which would adversely affect our ability to offer

compelling hiring and marketing solutions and subscriptions to our members enterprises professional

organizations and customers

If Internet search engines methodologies are modified or our search result page rankings decline for other

reasons our member engagement could decline

We depend in part on various Internet search engines such as Google Bing and Yahoo to direct

significant amount of traffic to our website Our ability to maintain the number of visitors directed to our website
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is not entirely within our control Our competitors search engine optimization or SEO efforts may result in their

websites receiving higher search result page ranking than ours or Internet search engines could revise their

methodologies in an attempt to improve their search results which could adversely affect the placement of our

search result page ranking If search engine companies modify their search algorithms in ways that are

detrimental to our new user growth or in ways that make it harder for our members to use our website or if our

competitors SEO efforts are more successful than ours overall growth in our member base could slow member

engagement could decrease and we could lose existing members These modifications may be prompted by

search engine companies entering the online professional networking market or aligning with competitors Our

website has experienced fluctuations in search result rankings in the past and we anticipate similar fluctuations

in the future Any reduction in the number of users directed to our website would harm our business and

operating results

Our business depends on continued and unimpeded access to the internet by us and our members If

government regulations relating to the Internet or other areas of our business change or Internet access

providers are able to block degrade or charge for access to certain of our products and services we could

incur additional expenses and the loss of members and customers

Our products and services depend on the ability of our members and customers to access the internet The

adoption of any laws or regulations that adversely affect the growth popularity or use of the Internet including

laws limiting Internet neutrality could decrease the demand for our subscription service and increase our cost of

doing business For example in late 2010 the Federal Communications Commission adopted so-called net

neutrality rules intended in part to prevent network operators from discriminating against legal traffic that

transverse their networks The rules are currently subject to legal challenge and some of internet providers have

taken or have stated that they may take measures that could degrade disrupt or increase the cost of user access

to the Internet which could result in decreased usage of our products and services by our members and our

customers To the extent that these rules are interpreted to enable network operators to engage in discriminatory

practices or are overturned by legal challenge our business could be adversely impacted Other proposed

regulations like the Stop Online Piracy Act and the Protect IF Act would also impair access to the internet and

our business if enacted

Our growth depends in part on the success of our strategic relationships with third parties

We anticipate that we will continue to depend on relationships with various third parties including

technology and content providers to grow our business Identifying negotiating and documenting relationships

with third parties require significant time and resources as does integrating third-party content and technology

Our agreements with technology and content providers and similar third parties are typically non-exclusive and

do not prohibit them from working with our competitors or from offering competing services Our competitors

may be effective in providing incentives to these parties to favor their solutions or may prevent us from

developing strategic relationships with these parties In addition these third parties may not perform as expected

under our agreements with them and we have had and may in the future have disagreements or disputes with

these parties which could negatively affect our brand and reputation It is possible that these third parties may

not be able to devote the resources we expect to the relationship If we are unsuccessful in establishing or

maintaining our relationships with these third parties our ability to compete in the marketplace or to grow our

revenue could be impaired and our operating results would suffer Even if we are successful these relationships

may not result in improved operating results

If currency exchange rates fluctuate substantially in the future the results of our operations which are

reported in U.s dollars could be adversely affected

As we continue to expand our international operations we become more exposed to the effects of

fluctuations in currency exchange rates We incur expenses for employee compensation and other operating

expenses at our non-U.S locations in the local currency and an increasing percentage of our international
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revenue is from customers who pay us in currencies other than the U.S dollar Fluctuations in the exchange rates

between the U.S dollar and those other currencies could result in the dollar equivalent of such expenses being

higher and/or the dollar equivalent of such foreign-denominated revenue being lower than would be the case if

exchange rates were stable This has resulted in losses on foreign currency exchange in the past and could have

negative impact on our reported operating results

We began to hedge risks associated with foreign currency transactions using forward contracts in December

2011 In the future we may engage in additional hedging strategies such as options or foreign exchange swaps

related to transaction exposures However there can be no assurance that any strategies we implement to mitigate

this risk will eliminate our exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations Additionally hedging programs expose us

to risks that could adversely affect our operating results including the following

We have limited experience in implementing or operating hedging programs Hedging programs are

inherently risky and we could lose money as result of poor trades

We may be unable to hedge currency risk for some transactions or match the accounting for the hedge

with the exposure because of high level of uncertainty or the inability to reasonably estimate our

foreign exchange exposures

We may be unable to acquire foreign exchange hedging instruments in some of the geographic areas

where we do business or where these derivatives are available we may not be able to acquire enough

of them to fully offset our exposure

We may determine that the cost of acquiring foreign exchange hedging instrument outweighs the

benefit we expect to derive from the derivative in which case we would not purchase the derivative

and be exposed to unfavorable changes in currency exchange rates

The intended tax benefits of our corporate structure and intercompany arrangements depend on the

application of the tax laws of various jurisdictions and on how we operate our business

Our corporate structure and intercompany arrangements including the manner in which we develop and use

our intellectual property and the transfer pricing of our intercompany transactions are intended to reduce our

worldwide effective tax rate The application of the tax laws of various jurisdictions including the United States

to our international business activities is subject to interpretation and depends on our ability to operate our

business in manner consistent with our corporate structure and intercompany arrangements The taxing

authorities of the jurisdictions in which we operate may challenge our methodologies for valuing developed

technology or intercompany arrangements including our transfer pricing or determine that the manner in which

we operate our business does not achieve the intended tax consequences which could increase our worldwide

effective tax rate and harm our financial position and results of operations

The enactment of legislation implementing changes in the U.S taxation of international business activities or

the adoption of other tax reform policies could materially impact our financial position and results of

operations

The current administration has made public statements indicating that it has made international tax reform

priority and key members of the U.S Congress have conducted hearings and proposed new legislation Changes

to U.S tax laws including limitations on the ability of taxpayers to claim and utilize foreign tax credits and the

deferral of certain tax deductions until earnings outside of the United States are repatriated to the United States

as well as changes to U.S tax laws that may be enacted in the future could impact the tax treatment of our

foreign earnings Due to the large and expanding scale of our intemational business activities any changes in the

U.S taxation of such activities may increase our worldwide effective tax rate and harm our financial position and

results of operations
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We may require additional capital to support business growth and this capital might not be available on

acceptable terms if at all

We intend to continue to make investments to support our business growth and may require additional funds

to respond to business challenges including the need to develop new features and products or enhance our

existing solutions improve our operating infrastructure or acquire complementary businesses and technologies

Accordingly we may engage in equity or debt financings to secure additional funds For example in November

2011 we completed follow-on offering in which we sold total of approximately 2.6 million shares including

over-allotments of our Class Common Stock If we raise additional funds through future issuances of equity

or convertible debt securities our existing stockholders could suffer significant dilution and any new equity

securities we issue could have rights preferences and privileges superior to those of holders of our Class

common stock Any debt financing we secure in the future could involve restrictive covenants relating to our

capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters which may make it more difficult for us to

obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities including potential acquisitions We may not be

able to obtain additional financing on terms favorable to us if at all If we are unable to obtain adequate

financing or financing on terms satisfactory to us when we require it our ability to continue to support our

business growth and to respond to business challenges could be significantly impaired and our business may be

harmed

Acquisitions and investments could result in operating difficulties dilution and other harmful consequences

that may adversely impact our business and results of operations

Since the beginning of 2010 we have acquired several small private companies While these smaller

acquisitions were primarily to acquire talent and technology we may engage in larger acquisitions in the future

and these transactions could be material to our financial condition and results of operations We also expect to

continue to evaluate and enter into discussions regarding wide array of potential strategic transactions The

process of integrating an acquired company business or technology has created and will continue to create

unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditures The areas where we face risks include

loss of key employees of the acquired company and other challenges associated integrating new

employees into our culture

diversion of management time and focus from operating our business to acquisition integration

challenges

implementation or remediation of controls procedures and policies at the acquired company

integration of the acquired companys accounting human resource and other administrative systems

and coordination of product engineering and sales and marketing function

failure to successfully further develop the acquired technology and

liability for activities of the acquired company before the acquisition including patent and trademark

infringement claims violations of laws commercial disputes tax liabilities and other known and

unknown liabilities

These risks or other problems encountered in connection with our acquisitions and investments could cause

us to fail to realize the anticipated benefits of such acquisitions or investments incur unanticipated liabilities and

adversely affect our business generally

Future acquisitions could also result in dilutive issuances of our equity securities the incurrence of debt

contingent liabilities or amortization expenses or write-offs of goodwill any of which could harm our financial

condition Also the anticipated benefit of many of our acquisitions may not materialize
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Risks Related to Our Class Common Stock

The dual class structure of our common stock as contained in our charter documents has the effect of

concentrating voting control with those stockholders who held our stock prior to our initial public offering

including our founders and our executive officers employees and directors and their affiliates and limiting

our other stockholders ability to influence corporate matters

Our Class common stock has 10 votes per share and our Class common stock has one vote per share

Stockholders who hold shares of Class common stock including our founders and our executive officers

employees and directors and their affiliates together held approximately 93.7% of the voting power of our

outstanding capital stock as of December 31 2011 Our co-founder and Chair Reid Hoffman controlled

approximately 18.7% of our outstanding shares of Class and Class common stock representing

approximately 29.2% of the voting power of our outstanding capital stock as of December 31 2011 Therefore

Mr Hoffman has significant influence over the management and affairs of the company and over all matters

requiring stockholder approval including election of directors and significant corporate transactions such as

merger or other sale of our company or its assets Mr Hoffman will continue to have significant influence over

these matters for the foreseeable future

In addition the holders of Class common stock collectively will continue to be able to control all matters

submitted to our stockholders for approval even if their stock holdings represent less than 50% of the outstanding

shares of our common stock Because of the 10-to-i voting ratio between our Class and Class common

stock the holders of our Class common stock collectively will continue to control majority of the combined

voting power of our common stock even when the shares of Class common stock represent as little as 10% of

the combined voting power of all outstanding shares of our Class and Class common stock This

concentrated control will limit the ability of our Class stockholders to influence corporate matters for the

foreseeable future and as result the market price of our Class common stock could be adversely affected

Future transfers by holders of Class common stock will generally result in those shares converting to

Class common stock which will have the effect over time of increasing the relative voting power of those

holders of Class common stock who retain their shares in the long term If for example Mr Hoffman retains

significant portion of his holdings of Class common stock for an extended period of time he could in the

future control majority of the combined voting power of our Class and Class common stock As board

member Mr Hoffman owes fiduciary duty to our stockholders and must act in good faith in manner he

reasonably believes to be in the best interests of our stockholders As stockholder even controlling

stockholder Mr Hoffman is entitled to vote his shares in his own interests which may not always be in the

interests of our stockholders generally

Our stock price has been and will likely continue to be volatile

The trading price of our Class common stock has been and is likely to continue to be highly volatile and

could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to various factors some of which are beyond our control Since

shares of our common stock were sold in our initial public offering in May 2011 at price of $45.00 per share

our stock price has ranged from $55.98 to $122.70 through December 31 2011 In addition to the factors

discussed in this Risk Factors section and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K factors that may
cause volatility in our share price include

issuance of new or updated research or reports by securities analysts

fluctuations in the valuation of companies perceived by investors to be comparable to us

fluctuations in certain valuation metrics such as our price to earnings ratio

sales of our Class or Class common stock by us or our stockholders including sales of shares by

stockholders who were recently released from lock-up agreements entered into in connection with our

follow-on offering in November 2011
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share price and volume fluctuations attributable to inconsistent trading volume levels of our shares

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our financial condition and operating results

actual or anticipated changes in the growth rate of our non-financial operating metrics including

number of registered members unique visitors and page views

changes in projected operational and financial results

addition or loss of significant customers

changes in laws or regulations applicable to our solutions including changes related to privacy issues

actual or anticipated changes in our growth rate relative to our competitors

announcements of technological innovations or new solutions by us or our competitors

announcements by us or our competitors of significant acquisitions strategic partnerships joint

ventures or capital-raising activities or commitments including initial public offerings of stock by

other companies in our industry

additions or departures of key personnel and

general economic and market conditions

Furthermore the stock markets recently have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have

affected and continue to affect the market prices of equity securities of many companies These fluctuations often

have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies These broad market

and industry fluctuations as well as general economic political and market conditions such as recessions

interest rate changes international currency fluctuations or political unrest may negatively impact the market

price of our Class common stock In the past companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of

their stock have been subject to securities class action litigation We may be the target of this type of litigation in

the future Securities litigation against us could result in substantial costs and divert our managements attention

from other business concerns which could harm our business

There may be limited market for investors in our industry

There are few publicly traded companies in the social and professional networking and related industries at

this time and in fact we were among the first social networking companies to go public In addition other

companies in our industry are in the process of going public and others may do so in the relatively near future

Investors may have limited funds to invest in the social and professional networking sector and as publicly

traded securities in these industries become more available investors who have purchased or may in the future

purchase securities in this sector may choose to sell Linkedln securities that they have already purchased in favor

of these other companies and/or choose to invest in other companies including our competitors As result

demand for our Class common stock could decline which would result in corresponding decline in our stock

price

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of us

more d/ficult limit attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management and limit the

market price of our Class common stock

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws may
have the effect of delaying or preventing change of control or changes in our management Our certificate of

incorporation and bylaws include provisions that

authorize our board of directors to issue without further action by the stockholders up to 100000000

shares of undesignated preferred stock

require that any action to be taken by our stockholders be effected at duly called annual or special

meeting and not by written consent
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specify that special meetings of our stockholders can be called only by our board of directors the Chair

of our board of directors or our Chief Executive Officer

establish an advance notice procedure for stockholder proposals to be brought before an annual

meeting including proposed nominations of
persons

for election to our board of directors

establish that our board of directors is divided into three classes Class Class II and Class III with

each class serving three-year staggered terms

prohibit cumulative voting in the election of directors

provide that our directors may be removed only for cause

provide that vacancies on our board of directors may be filled only by majority of directors then in

office even though less than quorum

require the approval of our board of directors or the holders of supermajority of our outstanding

shares of capital stock to amend our bylaws and certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation

and

reflect two classes of common stock as discussed above

These provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current

management by making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our board of directors which is

responsible for appointing the members of our management In addition because we are incorporated in

Delaware we are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law which

generally prohibits Delaware corporation from engaging in any of broad range
of business combinations with

any interested stockholder for period of three years following the date on which the stockholder became an

interested stockholder

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or publish negative

reports about our business our share price and trading volume could decline

The trading market for our Class common stock depends to some extent on the research and reports that

securities or industry analysts publish about us or our business We do not have any control over these analysts

If one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our shares or change their opinion of our shares our

share price would likely decline If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company or fail to

regularly publish reports on us we could lose visibility in the financial markets which could cause our share

price or trading volume to decline

The requirements of being public company may strain our resources divert managements attention and

affect our ability to attract and retain qualified board members

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended or the

Exchange Act the Sarbanes-Oxley Act the Dodd-Frank Act the listing requirements of the NYSE and other

applicable securities rules and regulations Compliance with these rules and regulations has increased and will

continue to increase our legal and financial compliance costs make some activities more difficult time-

consuming or costly and increase demand on our systems and resources The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires

among other things that we maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over

financial reporting In order to maintain and if required improve our disclosure controls and procedures and

internal control over financial reporting to meet this standard significant resources and management oversight

may be required As result managements attention may be diverted from other business concerns which could

harm our business and operating results Although we have hired additional employees to comply with these

requirements we may need to hire more employees in the future which will increase our costs and expenses
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In addition changing laws regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure

are creating uncertainty for public companies increasing legal and financial compliance costs and making some

activities more time consuming These laws regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations in

many cases due to their lack of specificity and as result their application in practice may evolve over time as

new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies This could result in continuing uncertainty

regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance

practices We intend to invest resources to comply with evolving laws regulations and standards and this

investment may result in increased general and administrative expenses and diversion of managements time

and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities If our efforts to comply with new laws

regulations and standards differ from the activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities

related to practice regulatory authorities may initiate legal proceedings against us and our business may be

harmed

As public company that is subject to these rules and regulations we may find that it is more expensive for

us to obtain director and officer liability insurance and we may be required to accept reduced coverage or incur

substantially higher costs to obtain coverage These factors could also make it more difficult for us to attract and

retain qualified members of our board of directors and qualified executive officers

We are obligated to develop and maintain proper and effective internal controls over financial reporting We

may not complete our analysis of our internal controls over financial reporting in timely manner or these

internal controls may not be determined to be effective which may adversely affect investor confidence in our

company and as result the value of our Class common stock

We are required pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act to furnish report by management on

among other things the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting for 2012 This assessment

will need to include disclosure of any material weaknesses identified by our management in our internal control

over financial reporting as well as statement that our auditors have issued an attestation report on our

managements assessment of our internal controls

We are in the early stages
of the costly and challenging process

of compiling the system and processing

documentation necessary to perform the evaluation needed to comply with Section 404 We may not be able to

complete our evaluation testing and any required remediation in timely fashion During the evaluation and

testing process if we identify one or more material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting

we will be unable to assert that our internal controls are effective

If we are unable to assert that our internal control over financial reporting is effective or if our auditors are

unable to express an opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls we could lose investor confidence in

the accuracy
and completeness of our financial reports which would cause the price of our Class common

stock to decline

We do not intend to pay dividends for the foreseeable future

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not intend to pay any cash

dividends in the foreseeable future We anticipate that we will retain all of our future earnings for use in the

development of our business and for general corporate purposes Any determination to pay dividends in the

future will be at the discretion of our board of directors Accordingly investors must rely on sales of their

Class common stock after price appreciation which may never occur as the only way to realize any future

gains on their investments
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Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

As of December 31 2011 we lease approximately 198000 square feet of space in our headquarters in

Mountain View California We recently entered into an amendment to lease that provides for approximately

158000 additional square feet effective as of January 2012 and approximately another 70000 additional

square feet to be constructed by our landlord The lease term has been extended by ten years from the estimated

date of delivery of the newly constructed building and is currently estimated to expire in 2023 We also lease

additional sales and marketing and customer support offices in Chicago New York Omaha San Francisco San

Mateo and Santa Monica We lease our international headquarters office in Dublin freland and lease additional

sales and marketing offices in Australia Brazil Canada France Germany India Italy Japan the Netherlands

Singapore Sweden and the United Kingdom We also operate data centers in the United States pursuant to

various lease agreements

Item Legal Proceedings

We are subject to legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business including but

not limited to certain pending patent and privacy litigation matters including class action lawsuits Although

occasional adverse decisions or settlements may occur we do not believe that the final disposition of any of these

matters will have material effect on our business Certain of these matters include speculative claims for

substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages and could include claims for injunctive relief We record

liability when we believe that it is both probable that loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably

estimated Periodically we evaluate developments in our legal matters that could affect the amount of liability

that has been previously accrued if any and make adjustments as appropriate Significant judgment is required

to determine both likelihood of there being and the estimated amount of loss related to such matters and our

judgment may be incorrect The outcome of any proceeding is not determinable in advance Until the final

resolution of any such matters that we may be required to accrue for there may be an exposure to loss in excess

of the amount accrued and such amounts could be material

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Our Class common stock has been listed on the New York Stock Exchange LLC NYSE under the

symbol LNKD since May 19 2011 Prior to that date there was no public trading market for our Class

common stock There is no public trading market for our Class common stock The following table sets forth

for the periods indicated the high and low sales price per share of our Class common stock as reported on the

NYSE for the periods indicated

High Low

Year Ended December 31 2011

Second Quarter from May 19 2011 $122.70 $60.14

Third Quarter $115.05 $70.04

Fourth Quarter 95.00 $55.98

On December 31 2011 the last reported sale price of our Class common stock on the New York Stock

Exchange was $63.01 per
share As of December 31 2011 we had 73 holders of record of our Class common

stock and 225 holders of record of our Class common stock The actual number of stockholders is greater than

this number of record holders and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners but whose shares are held in

street name by brokers and other nominees This number of holders of record also does not include stockholders

whose shares may be held in trust by other entities

We have never declared or paid and do not anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends on our capital

stock Any future determination as to the declaration and payment of dividends if any will be at the discretion of

our board of directors and will depend on then existing conditions including our financial condition operating

results contractual restrictions capital requirements business prospects and other factors our board of directors

may deem relevant
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Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed soliciting material or to be filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended or the

Exchange Act or otherwise subject to the liabilities under that Section and shall not be deemed to be

incorporated by reference into any filing of Linkedln Corporation under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended

or the Exchange Act

The following graph shows comparison from May 19 2011 the date our common stock commenced

trading on the NYSE through December 31 2011 of the cumulative total return for our Class common stock

the SP 500 Index and the SNL Kagan New Media Index Such returns are based on historical results and are

not intended to suggest future performance Data for the SP 500 Index and the SNL Kagan New Media Index

assume reinvestment of dividends

Linkedln Corporation

Total Return Performance

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Period Ending

Use of Proceeds from Public Offering and Follow-on Offering of Common Stock

On May 24 2011 we closed our IPO in which we sold 6003804 shares of Class common stock at price

to the public of $45.00 per share The aggregate offering price for shares sold in the offering was approximately

$270.2 million The offer and sale of all of the shares in the IPO were registered under the Securities Act pursuant to

registration statement on Form S-i File No 333-171903 which was declared effective by the SEC on May 18

2011 The offering commenced as of May 18 2011 and did not terminate before all of the securities registered in

the registration statement were sold Morgan Stanley Co Incorporated Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith

Incorporated J.P Morgan Securities LLC Allen Company LLC and UBS Securities LLC acted as the

250

200
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50

05/18/11 05/31/11 06/30/11 07/31/11 08/31/11 09/30/11 10/31/11 11/30/11 12/31/11

Index 05/18/11 05/31/11 06/30/11 07/31111 08/31111 09/30/11 10/31111 11/30/11 12/31111

Linkedln Corporation 100.00 181.29 200.20 224.51 186.93 173.51 199.78 146.51 140.02

SP 500 100.00 100.40 98.73 96.72 91.47 85.04 94.33 94.12 95.08

SNLKaganNewMedia 100.00 101.12 100.19 110.59 106.55 102.17 109.80 104.62 107.83
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underwriters We raised approximately $248.4 million in net proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts and

commissions of approximately $17.9 million and other offering expenses of approximately $3.8 million No

payments were made by us to directors officers or persons owning ten percent or more of our common stock or to

their associates or to our affiliates other than payments in the ordinary course of business to officers for salaries or

as result of sales of shares of common stock by selling stockholders in the offering

On November 22 2011 we closed our follow-on offering in which we sold 2583755 shares of Class

common stock at price to the public of $71.00 per
share The aggregate offering price for shares sold in the

offering was approximately $183.4 million The offer and sale of all of the shares in the follow-on offering were

registered under the Securities Act pursuant to registration statement on Form S-i File No 333- 177710

which was declared effective by the SEC on November 16 2011 The offering commenced as of November 16

2011 and did not terminate before all of the securities registered in the registration statement were sold Morgan

Stanley Co Incorporated Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated J.P Morgan Securities LLC
Allen Company LLC and UBS Securities LLC acted as the underwriters We raised approximately $177.3

million in net proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately $5.3 million

and other offering expenses of approximately $0.8 million No payments were made by us to directors officers

or persons owning ten percent or more of our common stock or to their associates or to our affiliates other than

payments in the ordinary course of business to officers for salaries or as result of sales of shares of common

stock by selling stockholders in the offering

The proceeds from the IPO and our follow-on offering have been used for working capital sales and

marketing activities including further expansion of our product development and field sales organizations and

general corporate purposes We have broad discretion over the uses of the net proceeds and may use portion for

the acquisition of or investment in technologies solutions or businesses that complement our business although

we have no present commitments or agreements to enter into any material acquisitions or investments There

have been no material differences between the actual use of proceeds and intended use of proceeds as originally

described in the IPO or follow-on offering Based on our current cash and cash equivalents balance together with

cash generated from operations we do not expect that we will have to utilize any of the net proceeds to fund our

operations during the next 12 months Pending these uses we intend to invest the net proceeds in short-term

investment-grade interest-bearing securities such as money market funds certificates of deposit commercial

paper
and guaranteed obligations of the U.S government

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information with respect to repurchases of unvested shares of our Class

common stock made pursuant the 2003 Plan during the three months ended December 31 2011 No shares of our

Class common stock were repurchased during the period

Total

Number of Maximum
Shares Number of

Purchased as Shares that

Part of May Yet Be

Total Publicly Purchased

Number of Average Announced Under the

Shares Price Paid Plans or Plans or

Period Purchased per Share Programs Programs

October October 31 2011

November November 30 2011 234 8.27

December 1December31 2011 2607 7.91

2841 $7.94

Under the 2003 Plan participants may exercise options prior to vesting subject to right of repurchase by

us All shares in the above table were shares repurchased as result of us exercising this right and not

pursuant to publicly announced plan or program
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following selected historical consolidated financial data below should be read in conjunction with

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations our

consolidated financial statements the related notes appearing in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K to fully understand factors that may affect the comparability of the

information presented below

The consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 and

the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31 2011 and 2010 are derived from our audited consolidated

financial statements appearing in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K The consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 and

the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 are derived from audited

consolidated financial statements not included in this report Our historical results are not necessarily indicative

of the results to be expected in the future and our interim results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be

expected for the full fiscal year

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

in thousands except per share data

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Net revenue $522189 $243099 $120127 $78773 $32486

Costs and expenses

Cost of revenue exclusive of depreciation and

amortization shown separately below 81448 44826 25857 18589 7384

Sales and marketing 164703 58978 26847 16986 5037

Product development 132222 65104 39444 29366 11578

General and administrative 74871 35064 19480 12976 6812

Depreciation and amortization 43100 19551 11854 6365 2107

Total costs and expenses 496344 223523 123482 84282 32918

Income loss from operations 25845 19576 3355 5509 432
Other income expense net 2903 610 230 1277 773

Income loss before income taxes 22942 18966 3125 4232 341

Provision for income taxes 11030 3581 848 290 13

Netincomeloss 11912 15385 3973 $4522 328

Net income loss attributable to common
stockholders 11912 3429 3973 $4522

Net income loss per
share attributable to common

stockholders

Basic 0.15 0.08 0.10 0.11 0.00

Diluted 0.11 0.07 0.10 0.11 0.00

Weighted-average shares used to compute net income

loss per share attributable to common stockholders

Basic 77185 42446 41184 42389 38092

Diluted 104118 46459 41184 42389 38961

Other Financial and Operational Data

Adjusted EBITDA 98713 47959 14651 5461 3480
Number of registered members at period end 144974 90437 55111 32307 16712

We define adjusted EBITDA as net income loss plus provision for income taxes other income expense

net depreciation and amortization and stock-based compensation Please see Adjusted EBITDA below
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for more information and for reconciliation of adjusted EBITIA to net income loss the most directly

comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles or GAAP

Stock-based compensation included in the statements of operations data above was as follows

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Cost of revenue 1678 439 370 298 87

Sales and marketing 8074 1225 657 513 163

Product development 13625 3248 2346 1214 599

General and administrative 6391 3920 2779 2580 956

Total stock-based compensation $29768 $8832 $6152 $4605 $1805

As of December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents $339048 92951 89979 80495 $17946

Short-term investments 238456

Property and equipment net 114850 56743 25730 21724 9702

Working capital 499268 66734 71885 71486 10175

Total assets 873697 238188 148559 122062 35162

Redeemable convertible preferred stock 87981 87981 87981 12700

Convertible preferred stock 15846 15413 15413 15413

Total stockholders equity 624979 36249 9082 5230 6589

Adjusted EB1TDA

To provide investors with additional information regarding our financial results we have disclosed in the

table below and within this Annual Report on Form 10-K adjusted EBITDA non-GAAP financial measure We
have provided reconciliation below of adjusted EBITDA to net income loss the most directly comparable

GAAP financial measure

We have included adjusted EBITDA in this Annual Report on Form 10-K because it is key measure used

by our management and board of directors to understand and evaluate our core operating performance and trends

to prepare and approve our annual budget and to develop short- and long-term operational plans In particular the

exclusion of certain expenses in calculating adjusted EBITDA can provide useful measure for period-to-period

comparisons of our core business Additionally adjusted EBITDA is key financial measure used by the

compensation committee of our board of directors in connection with the payment of bonuses to our executive

officers Accordingly we believe that adjusted EBITDA provides useful information to investors and others in

understanding and evaluating our operating results in the same manner as our management and board of

directors

Our use of adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool and you should not consider it in isolation

or as substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP Some of these limitations are

although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges the assets being depreciated and

amortized may have to be replaced in the future and adjusted EBITDA does not reflect cash capital

expenditure requirements for such replacements or for new capital expenditure requirements

adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in or cash requirements for our working capital needs
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adjusted EBITDA does not consider the potentially dilutive impact of equity-based compensation

adjusted EBITDA does not reflect tax payments that may represent reduction in cash available to us

and

other companies including companies in our industry may calculate adjusted EBITDA differently

which reduces its usefulness as comparative measure

Because of these limitations you should consider adjusted EBITDA alongside other financial performance

measures including various cash flow metrics net income loss and our other GAAP results The following

table presents reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA for each of the periods indicated

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA
Net income loss $11912 $15385 $3973 $4522 328

Provision for income taxes 11030 3581 848 290 13

Other income expense net 2903 610 230 1277 773
Depreciation and amortization 43100 19551 11854 6365 2107

Stock-based compensation 29768 8832 6152 4605 1805

Adjusted EBITDA $98713 $47959 $14651 5461 $3480
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations in conjunction

with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on

Form 0-K The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans estimates and

beliefs Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements

Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include those discussed below and elsewhere in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K particularly in Risk Factors

This section and other parts of this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain forward-looking statements that

involve risks and uncertainties Forward-looking statements can also be identified by words such as

anticipates expects believes plans predicts and similar terms Forward-looking statements are

not guarantees offuture peformance and the Companys actual results may differ significantly from the results

discussed in the forward-looking statements Factors that might cause such differences include but are not

limited to those discussed in the subsection entitled Risk Factors above which are incorporated herein by

reference The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and

notes thereto included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form

10-K All information presented herein is based on the Company sfiscal calendar Unless otherwise stated

references in this report to particular years or quarters refer to the Companys fiscal years
ended in December

and the associated quarters of those fiscal years The Company assumes no obligation to revise or update any

forward-looking statements for any reason except as required by law

Overview

We are the worlds largest professional network on the Internet and currently have more than 150 million

members in over 200 countries and territories Through our proprietary platform members are able to create

manage and shase their professional identity online build and engage with their professional network access

shared knowledge and insights and find business opportunities enabling them to be more productive and

successful We believe we are the most extensive accurate and accessible network focused on professionals

In May 2011 we closed our initial public offering IPO at which time we sold total of 6003804 shares

of our Class common stock and certain of our stockholders sold total of 3012196 shares of our Class

common stock In November 2011 we closed our follow-on offering at which time we sold total of 2583755

shares of our Class common stock and certain of our stockholders sold total of 7478745 shares of our

Class common stock We received total cash proceeds of $426.5 million net of underwriting discounts and

commissions and other costs associated with these offerings

In 2011 we achieved significant growth as compared to 2010 as our network of registered members and

member engagement continues to increase and we continue to benefit from our expanded product offerings Our

net revenue was $522.2 million in 2011 which represented an increase of 115% from 2010 Our future growth

will depend in part on our ability to increase our member base and member engagement which we believe will

result in increased sales of our hiring solutions marketing solutions and premium subscriptions to new and

existing customers

In 2012 our philosophy is to continue to invest for long-term growth We expect to continue to invest

heavily in our product development efforts to enable our members and customers to derive more value from our

platform In addition we expect to continue to aggressively expand our field sales organization to market our

solutions both in the United States and internationally We also expect to continue to make significant capital

expenditures to upgrade our technology and network infrastructure to improve the ability of our website to

handle expected increases in
usage and to enable the release of new features and solutions To support these

efforts we expect to increase our workforce which will result in an increase of headcount related expenses

including stock-based compensation As of December 31 2011 we had 2116 employees which represented an

increase of 114% compared to the same period last year
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Key Metrics

We regularly review number of metrics including the following key metrics to evaluate our business

measure our performance identify trends affecting our business formulate financial projections and make

strategic decisions We believe our number of registered members unique visitors and page views were

positively impacted by the completion of our IPO in 2011

Number of Registered Members We define the number of registered members in our network as the

number of individual users who have created member profile on our website as of the date of

measurement We believe the number of registered members is key indicator of the growth of our

network and our ability to receive the benefits of the network effects resulting from such growth

Growth in our member base depends in part on our ability to successfully develop and market our

solutions to professionals who have not yet become members of our network Member growth will also

be contingent on our ability to include additional languages on our website and continued international

expansion of our member base We typically experience slower member growth in the third quarter of

the year as result of decreased Internet usage by professionals during the summer months We believe

that higher number of registered members will result in increased sales of our hiring and marketing

solutions and premium subscriptions as customers will have access to larger pool of professional

talent

December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

in thousands

Number of registered members 144974 90437 60% 90437 55111 64%

The number of registered members is higher than the number of actual members due to various factors For

more information see Risk FactorsThe number of our registered members is higher than the number of

actual members and substantial majority of our page views are generated by minority of our members

The number of our registered members increased by 60% in 2011 compared to 2010 and by 64% in 2010

compared to 2009 Over these same periods we experienced even greater increases in our net revenue

While growth in the number of registered members is an important indicator of expected revenue growth it

also informs our managements decisions with respect to those areas of our business that will require further

investment to support expected future membership growth For example as the number of registered

members increases we will need to increase our capital expenditures to improve our information technology

infrastructure to maintain the effectiveness of our solutions and the performance of our website for our

members

Unique Visitors We define unique visitors as users who have visited our website at least once during

month regardless of whether they are member based on data provided by comScore leading

provider of digital marketing intelligence We view unique visitors as key indicator of growth in our

brand awareness among users and whether we are providing our members with useful products and

features thereby increasing member engagement We believe that higher level of member

engagement will result in increased sales of our hiring and marketing solutions and premium

subscriptions as customers will have access to larger pooi of professional talent Growth in unique

visitors will be driven by our international expansion growth in the number of registered members and

improvements to features and products that drive member traffic to our website

December 31

2011 2010 Change

in millions

Unique visitors 84 52 62%

Worldwide data provided by comScore leading provider of digital marketing intelligence Beginning in

August 2009 comScore changed the method by which it counts traffic which makes prior data not

meaningful for period over period comparison purposes
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The number of unique visitors increased by 62% in 2011 compared to 2010 reflecting increased traffic to

our website by growing number of users While this increase in unique visitors helped to drive the increase

in net revenue that we experienced during this period it also provided management with important insights

into the ways in which our users and members were using our website including how they were coming to

our website and which products and features best promoted brand awareness to attract users to our website

Page Views We define page views as the number of
pages on our website that users view during the

measurement period based on data provided by comScore Similar to unique visitors we believe page

views is key indicator for gaining insight into whether we are increasing member engagement and

whether our members are deriving value from our solutions We expect growth in page views will be

driven in part by improvements in products and features that drive member traffic to our website

growth in the number of registered members and international expansion However page views may

not capture all of the value that our members and other users derive from our solutions because part of

the benefit of certain products and features is that the member or user does not need to visit our website

to receive value from our platform For example members can respond to emails they receive from

other members without accessing their Linkedln account or our website

December 31

2011 2010 Change

in millions

Page Views 29420 18059 63%

Worldwide data provided by comScore leading provider of digital marketing intelligence fleginning in

August 2009 comScore changed the method by which it counts traffic which makes prior data not

meaningful for period over period comparison purposes

The number of page views according to comScore increased 63% in 2011 compared to 2010 reflecting

increased use of the information products and features available on our website by our users While similar

to the increase in registered members and unique visitors this increase in page views also helped to drive

the increase in net revenue that we experienced during this period it also provided management with

important insights into the ways in which our users were utilizing the information products and features on

our website which informs managements decision on how to improve these products and features to

provide our users with compelling reasons for continuing to come back to our website

Number of Linkedln Corporate Solutions Customers We define the number of Linkedln Corporate

Solutions customers as the number of enterprises and professional organizations that we have under

active contracts for this product as of the date of measurement Our Linkedln Corporate Solutions

include Linkedln Recruiter Job Slots Linkedln Referral Engine beta Linkedln Recruitment Media

and Linkedln Career Pages We believe the number of Linkedln Corporate Solutions customers is

key indicator of our market penetration in the online recruiting market the productivity of our field

sales organization and the value that our products bring to both large and small enterprises and

professional organizations The number of customers subscribing to our Linkedln Corporate Solutions

product is particularly important to monitor given that we expect revenue from Linkedln Corporate

Solutions to continue to represent significant portion of our total net revenue and we are significantly

investing in our ability to successfully sell this unique product in new and rapidly evolving market

December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

Linkedln Corporate Solutions customers 9236 3865 139% 3865 1585 144%
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The number of Linkedln Corporate Solutions customers increased by 139% in 2011 compared to 2010 and

by 144% in 2010 compared to 2009 During these periods we experienced an increase in net revenue from

sales of our hiring solutions both in terms of absolute net revenue and as percentage of our total net

revenue as further described in Results of Operations below which was and continues to be largely

driven by increases in the number of our customers that have purchased our Linkedln Corporation Solutions

products

Sales Channel Mix Depending on the specific product we sell our hiring and marketing solutions

offline through our field sales organization or online on our website The vast majority of our premium

subscriptions are sold online on our website Our field sales organization uses direct sales force to

solicit customers agencies and resellers This offline channel is characterized by longer sales cycle

where price can be negotiated higher relative
average selling prices longer contract terms higher

selling expenses
and longer cash collection cycle compared to our online channel

Our online sales channel allows members to purchase solutions directly on our website Members can

purchase premium subscriptions as well as certain lower priced products in our hiring and marketing

solutions such as job postings and self-service advertising This channel is characterized by lower
average

selling prices and higher cancellations compared to our offline channel lower selling costs due to our

automated payments platform and highly liquid collection cycle

The following table presents our net revenue by field sales and online sales

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

in thousands

Field sales $287634 55% $135691 56% 64031 53%

Online sales 234555 45% 107408 44% 56096 47%

$522189 l00%$243099 100%$120127 100%

Adjusted EBITDA

To provide investors with additional information regarding our financial results we have disclosed within this

Annual Report on Form 10-K adjusted EBITDA non-GAAP fmancial measure We have provided reconciliation

below of adjusted EBITDA to net income loss the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure

We have included adjusted EBITDA in this Annual Report on Form 10-K because it is key measure used

by our management and board of directors to understand and evaluate our core operating performance and trends

to prepare and approve our annual budget and to develop short- and long-term operational plans In particular the

exclusion of certain expenses in calculating adjusted EBITDA can provide useful measure for period-to-period

comparisons of our core business Additionally adjusted EBITDA is key financial measure used by the

compensation committee of our board of directors in connection with the payment of bonuses to our executive

officers Accordingly we believe that adjusted EBITDA provides useful information to investors and others in

understanding and evaluating our operating results in the same manner as our management and board of

directors

-45-



For additional information on the limitations of adjusted EBITDA see Adjusted EBI1DA in Item

Selected Financial Data for more information

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

in thousands

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA
Net income loss $11912 $15385 $3973
Provision for income taxes 11030 3581 848

Other income expense net 2903 610 230
Depreciation and amortization 43100 19551 11854

Stock-based compensation 29768 8832 6152

Adjusted EBITDA $98713 $47959 $14651

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP The preparation of these

consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of assets liabilities revenue expenses and related disclosures We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an

ongoing basis Our estimates are based on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to

be reasonable under the circumstances Our actual results could differ from these estimates

We believe that the assumptions and estimates associated with revenue recognition allowance for doubtful

accounts stock-based compensation the valuation of goodwill and intangible assets website and internal-use

software development costs our office facility leases and income taxes have the greatest potential impact on our

consolidated financial statements Therefore we consider these to be our critical accounting policies and

estimates For further information on all of our significant accounting policies see Note of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements under Item

Revenue Recognition

majority of our arrangements for hiring solutions and marketing solutions include multiple deliverables

In accordance with authoritative guidance on revenue recognition we allocate arrangement consideration in

multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements at the inception of an arrangement to all deliverables based on the

relative selling price method in accordance with the selling price hierarchy which includes vendor-specific

objective evidence or VSOE if available third-party evidence or TPE if vendor-specific objective evidence

is not available and best estimate of selling price or BESP if neither VSOE nor TPE is available

VSOE We determine VSOE based on our historical pricing and discounting practices for the specific

solution when sold separately In determining VSOE we require that substantial majority of the selling prices

for these services fall within reasonably narrow pricing range We have not historically priced our marketing

solutions or certain products in our hiring solutions within narrow range As result we have only used VSOE

to allocate the selling price of deliverables in limited circumstances

TPE When VSOE cannot be established for deliverables in multiple element arrangements we apply

judgment with respect to whether we can establish selling price based on TPE TPE is determined based on

competitor prices for similardeliverables when sold separately Generally our go-to-market strategy differs from

that of our peers
and our offerings contain significant level of differentiation such that the comparable pricing

of services with similar functionality cannot be obtained Furthermore we are unable to reliably determine what

similarcompetitor services selling prices are on stand-alone basis As result we have not been able to

establish selling price based on TPE
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BESP When we are unable to establish selling price using VSOE or TPE we use BESP in our allocation of

arrangement consideration The objective of BESP is to determine the price at which we would transact sale if

the service were sold on stand-alone basis BESP is generally used to allocate the selling price to deliverables in

our multiple element arrangements We determine BESP for deliverables by considering multiple factors

including but not limited to prices we charge for similar offerings sales volume geographies market

conditions competitive landscape and pricing practices

Because we generally have neither VSOE nor TPE for our hiring solutions and marketing solutions

deliverables the allocation of revenue has been based on our BESPs The process for determining our BESP for

deliverables without VSOE or TPE involves managements judgment Our process considers multiple factors that

may vary depending upon the unique facts and circumstances related to each deliverable Key factors that we

considered in developing our BESPs include prices we charge for similarofferings sales volume geographies and

historical pricing practices If the facts and circumstances underlying the factors we considered change or should

future facts and circumstances lead us to consider additional factors our BESPs could change in future periods

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable balances The allowance is based upon historical

loss patterns the number of days that billings are past due and an evaluation of the potential risk of loss

associated with delinquent accounts We monitor and analyze the accuracy of our allowance for doubtful

accounts estimate by reviewing past collectability and adjusting it for future expectations to determine the

adequacy of our current and future allowance The allowance for doubtful accounts represents our best estimate

but if the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate resulting in an impairment of their ability to

make payments additional allowances may be required As of December 31 2011 the allowance for doubtful

accounts represented approximately 5% of total accounts receivable or approximately $5.5 million change of

1% in our estimate would amount to approximately $1.2 million

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with the authoritative guidance on stock

compensation Under the fair value recognition provisions of this guidance stock-based compensation is

measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense net of estimated

forfeitures over the requisite service period which is generally the vesting period of the respective award As

result we are required to estimate the amount of stock-based compensation we expect to be forfeited based on

our historical experience If actual forfeitures differ significantly from our estimates stock-based compensation

expense and our results of operations could be materially impacted

Detennining the fair value of stock-based awards at the grant date requires judgment We use the Black

Scholes option-pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options and employee stock purchase plan

options The detennination of the grant date fair value of options using an option-pricing model is affected by our

estimated common stock fair value as well as assumptions regarding number of other complex and subjective

variables These variables include the fair value of our common stock our expected stock price volatility over the

expected term of the options stock option exercise and cancellation behaviors risk-free interest rates and

expected dividends which are estimated as follows

Fair Value of Our Common Stock Because our stock was not publicly traded prior to our initial

public offering the fair value of our common stock underlying our stock options was determined by

our board of directors or compensation committee of our board of directors which intended all options

granted to be exercisable at price per share not less than the per share fair value of our common stock

underlying those options on the date of grant Upon completion of our initial public offering on

May 19 2011 our Class common stock was valued by reference to its publicly traded price

Expected Term The expected term was estimated using the simplified method allowed under SEC

guidance
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Volatility As we do not have significant trading history for our common stock the expected stock

price volatility for our common stock was estimated by taking the average historic price volatility for

industry peers based on daily price observations over period equivalent to the expected term of the

stock option grants Industry peers consist of several public companies in the technology industry

similar in size stage of life cycle and financial leverage We did not rely on implied volatilities of

traded options in our industry peers common stock because the volume of activity was relatively low

We intend to continue to consistently apply this
process using the same or similarpublic companies

until sufficient amount of historical information regarding the volatility of our own common stock

share price becomes available or unless circumstances change such that the identified companies are

no longer similar to us in which case more suitable companies whose share prices are publicly

available would be utilized in the calculation

Risk-free Rate The risk-free interest rate is based on the yields of U.S Treasury securities with

maturities similar to the expected term of the options for each option group

Dividend Yield We have never declared or paid any cash dividends and do not presently plan to pay

cash dividends in the foreseeable future Consequently we used an expected dividend yield of zero

Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

When we acquire businesses we allocate the purchase price to the tangible assets and liabilities and

identifiable intangible assets acquired Any residual purchase price is recorded as goodwill The allocation of the

purchase price requires management to make significant estimates in determining the fair values of assets

acquired and liabilities assumed especially with respect to intangible assets These estimates are based on

information obtained from management of the acquired companies and historical experience These estimates can

include but are not limited to

the time and
expenses

that would be
necessary to recreate the asset

the profit margin market participant would receive

cash flows that an asset is expected to generate in the future and

discount rates

These estimates are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and if different estimates were used the

purchase price for the acquisition could be allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities differently from the

allocation that we have made In addition unanticipated events and circumstances may occur which may affect

the accuracy or validity of such estimates and if such events occur we may be required to record charge against

the value ascribed to an acquired asset or an increase in the amounts recorded for assumed liabilities

Website and Internal-Use Software Development Costs

We capitalize certain costs related to the development of our website or software developed for internal-use

In accordance with authoritative guidance we begin to capitalize our costs to develop software when preliminary

development efforts are successfully completed management has authorized and committed project funding and

it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used as intended Such costs are

amortized on straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the related asset generally estimated to be two

to three years Costs incurred prior to meeting these criteria together with costs incurred for training and

maintenance are expensed as incurred and recorded within product development expenses on our consolidated

statements of operations We exercise judgment in determining the point at which various projects may be

capitalized in assessing the ongoing value of the capitalized costs and in determining the estimated useful lives

over which the costs are amortized To the extent that we change the manner in which we develop and test new

features and functionalities related to our website assess the ongoing value of capitalized assets or determine the

estimated useful lives over which the costs are amortized the amount of website and internal-use software

development costs we capitalize and amortize could change in future periods

-48-



Office Facility Leases

We lease our office facilities under operating leases Accounting for these leases requires significant

judgment by management Application of accounting rules and assumptions made by management will determine

whether the lease is accounted for as capital or operating lease or whether we are considered the owner for

accounting purposes in accordance with authoritative accounting guidance on leases

If the lease is considered capital lease or we are considered the owner for accounting purposes we would

record the property and related capital lease obligation on our balance sheet The asset would then be

depreciated over its expected lease term Rent payments for these properties would be recognized as interest

expense and reduction of the capital lease obligation

If the lease is considered an operating lease it is not recorded on our balance sheet and rent expense is

recognized on straight-line basis over the expected lease term

The most significant estimates used by management in accounting for property leases and the impact of

these estimates are as follows

Expected lease term The expected lease term is used in determining whether the lease is accounted for

as an operating lease or capital lease lease is considered capital lease if the lease term exceeds

75% of the leased assets useful life The expected lease term is also used in determining the

depreciable life of the asset or the straight-line rent recognition period Increasing the expected lease

term will increase the probability that lease will be considered capital lease and will generally result

in higher rent expense
for an operating lease and higher interest and depreciation expenses

for capital

lease

Incremental borrowing rate We estimate our incremental borrowing rate using treasury rates for debt

with maturities comparable to the expected lease term and our credit spread The incremental

borrowing rate is primarily used in determining whether the lease is accounted for as an operating lease

or capital lease lease is considered capital lease if the net present value of the lease payments is

greater than 90% of the fair market value of the property Increasing the incremental borrowing rate

decreases the net present value of the lease payments and reduces the probability that lease will be

considered capital lease

Fair market value of leased asset The fair market value of leased property is generally estimated based

on comparable market data Fair market value is used in determining whether the lease is accounted for

as an operating lease or capital lease lease is considered capital lease if the net present value of

the lease payments is greater than 90% of the fair market value of the property Increasing the fair

market value reduces the probability that lease will be considered capital lease

Income Taxes

We record income taxes using the asset and liability method which requires the recognition of deferred tax

assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial

statements or tax returns In estimating future tax consequences generally all expected future events other than

enactments or changes in the tax law or rates are considered Valuation allowances are provided when necessary

to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized

We also provide reserves as necessary for uncertain tax positions taken on our tax filings First we

determine if tax position is more likely than not to be sustained upon audit solely based on technical merits

including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes if any Second based on the largest amount of

benefit which is more likely than not to be realized on ultimate settlement we recognize any such differences as

liability In the event that any unrecognized tax benefits are recognized the effective tax rate will be affected If

recognized approximately $6.1 million of unrecognized tax benefit would impact the effective tax rate at
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December 31 2011 Although we believe our estimates are reasonable no assurance can be given that the final

tax outcome of these matters will be the same as these estimates These estimates are updated quarterly based on

factors such as change in facts or circumstances changes in tax law new audit activity and effectively settled

issues

We follow specific and detailed guidelines in each tax jurisdiction regarding the recoverability of any tax

assets recorded on the balance sheet and provide necessary valuation allowances as required Future realization

of deferred tax assets ultimately depends on the existence of sufficient taxable income of the appropriate

character for example ordinary income or capital gain within the carryback or carryforward periods available

under the tax law We regularly review our deferred tax assets for recoverability based on historical taxable

income projected future taxable income the expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary differences

and tax planning strategies Our judgments regarding future profitability may change due to many factors

including future market conditions and our ability to successfully execute our business plans and/or tax planning

strategies Should there be change in our ability to recover our deferred tax assets our tax provision would

increase or decrease in the period in which the assessment is changed

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Fair Value Measurement

In May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB amended existing rules covering fair

value measurement and disclosure to clarify guidance and minimize differences between generally accepted

accounting principles GAAP in the United States of America and International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS The new authoritative guidance requires entities to provide information about valuation techniques and

unobservable inputs used in Level fair value measurements and provide narrative description of the

sensitivity of Level measurements to changes in unobservable inputs The guidance will be effective for us on

January 2012 and is not expected to have material impact on our financial statements

Comprehensive Income

In June 2011 the FASB issued new authoritative guidance on comprehensive income that eliminates the

option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of shareholders equity

Instead we must report comprehensive income in either single continuous statement of comprehensive income

which contains two sections net income and other comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive

statements In December 2011 the requirement regarding the presentation of reclassification adjustments out of

accumulated other comprehensive income was deferred indefinitely The accounting update except for the

provision deferred is effective for us in our interim period ended March 31 2012 The adoption of this guidance

will require us to change the presentation of comprehensive income and its components which we currently

report within the statements of redeemable convertible preferred stock stockholders equity and comprehensive

income loss

Testing Goodwillfor Impairment

In September 2011 the FASB issued new authoritative guidance that gives companies the option to make

qualitative evaluation about the likelihood of goodwill impairment Companies will be required to perform the

two-step impairment test only if it concludes that the fair value of reporting unit is more likely than not less

than its carrying value The accounting update is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests

performed for fiscal
years beginning after December 15 2011 with early adoption permitted We adopted this

new authoritative guidance for our goodwill impairment test performed during the third quarter of 2011
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth our results of operations for the periods presented as percentage of net

revenue for those periods certain items may not total due to rounding The period-to-period comparison of

financial results is not necessarily indicative of future results

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

as percentage of revenue

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Net revenue 100% 100% 100%

Costs and expenses

Cost of revenue exclusive of depreciation and amortization shown separately

below 16 18 22

Sales and maTKeting 32 24 22

Product development 25 27 33

General and administrative 14 14 16

Depreciation and amortization 10

Total costs and expenses
95 92 103

Income from operations

Other income expense net

Income before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income loss 2% 6% 3%

Net Revenue

We generate revenue from hiring solutions marketing solutions and premium subscriptions

Hiring Solutions Revenue from our hiring solutions is derived primarily from the sale of our Linkedln

Corporate Solutions and Linkedln Jobs products We recognize the net revenue from sales of Linkedln Corporate

Solutions ratably over the subscription period which is typically 12 months and billed annually quarterly or

monthly We also sell LinkØdln Jobs on our website to enterprises and professional organizations of all sizes

These jobs are generally posted for 30 days and revenue from individual job postings is recognized over the

same period

Marketing Solutions Revenue from our marketing solutions is derived primarily from fees we receive from

marketers principally advertising agencies and direct advertisers for display and text ads on our website We
also provide self-service advertising solution that allows marketers to directly create and place ads on

prominent pages on our website Revenue from display or text ads is generally recognized when the

advertisement is displayed on our website
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Premium Subscriptions Revenue from our premium subscriptions is derived primarily from online sales of

our Business Business Plus and Executive subscription products We offer our members monthly or annual

subscriptions Revenue from our premium subscriptions is recognized ratably over the contract period which is

generally one to 12 months

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

in thousands

Revenue by product

Hiring Solutions $260885 $101884 156% $101884 36136 182%

Marketing Solutions 155848 79309 97% 79309 38278 107%

Premium Subscriptions 105456 61906 70% 61906 45713 35%

Total $522189 $243099 115% $243099 $120127 102%

Percentage of revenue by product

Hiring Solutions 50% 42% 42% 30%

Marketing Solutions 30% 33% 33% 32%

Premium Subscriptions 20% 25% 25% 38%

Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

Total net revenue increased $279.1 million in 2011 compared to 2010 Net revenue from our hiring

solutions increased $159.0 million as result of an overall increase in professional hiring demand and further

market penetration of our Linkedln Corporate Solutions product as evidenced by the 139% increase in the

number of Linkedln Corporate Solutions customers as of December 31 2011 compared to December 31 2010

Net revenue from our marketing solutions increased $76.5 million due to the productivity of our expanded field

sales organization and growth in our self service advertising solutions both of which are positively impacted by

increases in the number of our registered members and page views on our website During the same period net

revenue from our premium subscriptions increased $43.6 million as result of an increase in the number of

premium subscribers

Total net revenue increased $123.0 million in 2010 compared to 2009 Net revenue from our hiring

solutions increased $65.7 million as result of an overall increase in professional hiring demand and further

market penetration of our Linkedln Corporate Solutions product as evidenced by the 144% increase in the

number of Lirikedln Corporate Solutions customers as of December 31 2010 compared to December 31 2009

Net revenue from our marketing solutions increased $41.0 million as result of an increase in customers overall

online advertising budgets and improved productivity from our expanded field sales organization Net revenue

from our premium subscriptions increased $16.2 million during the same period as result of an increase in the

number of our premium subscribers and reduction in cancellations from current customers

The following table presents our net revenue by geographic region

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

in thousands

Revenue by geographic location

United States $353834 $176975 100% $176975 88483 100%

Intemational 168355 66124 155% 66124 31644 109%

Total $522189 $243099 115% $243099 $120127 102%

During the year ended December 31 2009 10% of total revenue was derived from customers in the United

Kingdom No other country exceeded 10% of total revenue during any of the other periods presented
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International revenue increased $102.2 million in 2011 compared to 2010 and $34.5 million in 2010

compared to 2009 In addition international revenue represented 32% of total revenue in 2011 compared to 27%

of total revenue in 2010 The increases in international revenue are primarily due to the expansion of our

international field sales organization and our site localization efforts In 2011 we launched eight local languages

bringing the total to fourteen local languages as of December 31 2011 and opened an additional seven offices

outside of the United States We expect international revenue to increase on an absolute basis and as percentage

of revenue in 2012 as we continue to focus on making our platform available in more languages and further

developing our brand across various international geographies

Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue primarily consists of web hosting costs related to operating our website and salaries

benefits and stock-based compensation for our production operations customer support infrastructure and

advertising operations teams Credit card processing fees direct costs related to our research products certain

uncollected valued added taxes or VAT and sales taxes allocated facilities costs costs related to solutions offered

to our customers in our production environment and other supporting overhead costs are also included in cost of

revenue Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2011 we began to pass through VAT and sales tax to our customers on

all our products We currently expect cost of revenue to increase on an absolute basis but to decrease as

percentage of revenue in the near term as we continue to pass through VAT and sales tax to our customers

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

in thousands

Cost of revenue $81448 $44826 82% $44826 $25857 73%

Percentage of net revenue 16% 18% 18% 22%

Headcountatperiodend 338 141 140% 141 86 64%

Cost of revenue increased $36.6 million in 2011 compared to 2010 The increase was primarily attributable to

increases in headcount related
expenses

of $14.3 million web hosting service
expenses

of $7.3 million direct costs

of $4.3 million facility and benefit allocations of $4.8 million and facilities and related costs of $2.8 million

Cost of revenue increased $19.0 million in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily attributable to increases in

headcount related expenses of $5.0 million in part as result of growth in our international operations web

hosting service
expenses

of $3.5 million certain uncollected sales and VAT taxes of $3.1 million consulting and

outside services expenses of $1.6 million data center equipment maintenance expenses of $2.4 million and

facility and employee benefit allocations of $1.9 million

Sales and Marketing

Our sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of salaries benefits stock-based compensation travel

expense and incentive compensation for our sales and marketing employees In addition sales and marketing

expenses include customer acquisition marketing branding advertising and public relations costs as well as

allocated facilities and other supporting overhead costs We plan to continue to invest heavily in sales and

marketing to expand our global footprint grow our current customer accounts and continue building brand

awareness In the near term and consistent with our investment philosophy for 2011 we expect sales and

marketing expenses to increase on an absolute basis and as percentage of revenue and to be our largest expense

on an absolute basis and as percentage of revenue

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

in thousands

Sales and marketing $164703 $58978 179% $58978 $26847 120%

Percentage of net revenue 32% 24% 24% 22%

Headcountatperiodend 844 313 170% 313 125 150%
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Sales and marketing expenses increased $105.7 million in 2011 compared to 2010 The increase was

primarily attributable to an increase in headcount related expenses of $75.4 million as we expanded our field

sales organization We also experienced increases in facility and employee benefit allocations of $16.4 million

marketing and public relations expenses
of $8.1 million and consulting and outside services expenses of $4.0

million Sales and marketing expenses
increased as percentage of revenue in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily

due to building out our global sales organization

Sales and marketing expenses increased $32.1 million in 2010 compared to 2009 The increase was

primarily attributable to an increase in headcount related expenses of $21.2 million as we expanded our field

sales organization We also experienced increases in facility and employee benefit allocations of $5.5 million

marketing and public relations expenses of $3.1 million and consulting and outside services expenses of $1.5

million

Product Development

Our product development expenses primarily consist of salaries benefits and stock-based compensation for

our engineers product managers and developers In addition product development expenses
include outside

services and consulting as well as allocated facilities and other supporting overhead costs We believe that

continued investment in features software development tools and code modification is important to attaining our

strategic objectives and as result we expect product development expense to increase on an absolute basis

However we also expect to gain productivity and leverage in our product development efforts and as result we

expect product development expenses as percentage of revenue to decrease in the near term

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

in thousands

Product development $132222 $65104 103% $65104 $39444 65%

Percentage of net revenue 25% 27% 27% 33%

Headcount at period end 634 383 66% 383 207 85%

Product development expenses increased $67.1 million in 2011 compared to 2010 The increase was

primarily atthbutable to an increase in headcount related expenses of $48.3 million as result of our focus on

developing new features and products to increase member growth and engagement We also experienced

increases in facility and employee benefit allocations of $9.1 million and consulting expenses
of $6.8 million

Product development expense
decreased as percentage of revenue in 2011 compared to 2010 as revenue growth

outpaced the increase in product development expenses which primarily consists of headcount related expenses

Product development expenses increased $25.7 million in 2010 compared to 2009 The increase was

primarily attributable to an increase in headcount related
expenses

of $17.4 million as result of our focus on

developing new features and products to increase member growth and engagement We also experienced

increases in facility and employee benefit allocations of $6.0 million and consulting expenses of $1.4 million
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General and Administrative

Our general and administrative expenses primarily consist of salaries benefits and stock-based

compensation for our executive finance legal information technology human resources and other

administrative employees In addition general and administrative expenses include outside consulting legal and

accounting services and facilities and other supporting overhead costs not allocated to other departments We

expect that our general and administrative
expenses

will increase on an absolute basis in the near term as we

continue to expand our business and incur additional
expenses associated with being publicly traded company

However we expect general and administrative to decrease as percentage of revenue

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

in thousands

General and administrative $74871 $35064 114% $35064 $19480 80%

Percentage of net revenue 14% 14% 14% 16%

Headcount at period end 300 153 96% 153 62 147%

General and administrative expenses increased $39.8 million in 2011 compared to 2010 The increase was

primarily result of an increase in headcount related expenses of $39.1 million to support our overall growth We
also experienced an increase in facilities related costs of $15.8 million and expenses for consulting and outside

services of $10.3 million These increases were partially offset by facility and employee benefit allocations of

$30.3 million

General and administrative expenses increased $15.6 million in 2010 compared to 2009 The increase was

primarily result of an increase in headcount related expenses of $16.1 million to support our overall growth We
also experienced an increase in facilities related costs of $7.6 million and expenses for consulting and outside

services of $3.1 million These increases were partially offset by facility and employee benefit allocations of

$13.4 million

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses primarily consist of depreciation on computer equipment software

leasehold improvements capitalized software development costs and amortization of purchased intangibles We
expect that depreciation and amortization expenses will increase on an absolute basis as we continue to expand

our technology infrastructure

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

in thousands

Depreciation and amortization $43100 $19551 120% $19551 $11854 65%

Percentage of net revenue 8% 8% 8% 10%

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $23.5 million in 2011 compared to 2010 The increase

was primarily the result of our investment in expanding our technology infrastructure to support continued

growth in our member base

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $7.7 million in 2010 compared to 2009 The increase was

primarily the result of our investment in expanding our technology infrastructure to support continued growth in

our member base particularly in the last half of 2010
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Other Income Expense Net

Other income expense net consists primarily of the interest income earned on our cash and cash

equivalents investments foreign exchange gains and losses and changes in the fair value of warrant during

2010 and 2009

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

in thousands

Interest income 169 64 350

Gain loss on foreign exchange 2965 405 51

Net realized gain on sales of short-term investments

Other non-operating expense net 113 269 171

Total other income expense net $2903 $610 230

Other income expense net decreased $2.3 million in 2011 compared to 2010 The decrease in other

income expense net was largely driven by net transaction losses on foreign exchange In December 2011 we

began to hedge risks associated with foreign currency
transactions to minimize the impact of changes in foreign

exchange rates on earnings Hedging strategies that we have implemented or may implement to mitigate this risk

may not eliminate our exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations

Other income expense net decreased $0.8 million in 2010 compared to 2009 The decrease in other

income expense net was largely driven by net transaction losses on foreign exchange coupled with decrease

in interest income as result of lower short-term interest rates

Provision for Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes consists of federal and state income taxes in the United States and income taxes

in certain foreign jurisdictions

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

in thousands

Provision for income taxes $11030 $3581 208% $3581 $848 322%

Income tax expense
increased $7.4 million in 2011 compared to 2010 This increase was primarily

attributable to our geographic mix of income and the significant increase in U.S pre-tax income from $19.3

million for 2010 to $29.0 million for 2011 Due to the expansion in foreign markets the Company incurred

current year losses for which tax benefit has not been recognized The effective tax rates as of December 31

2011 and 2010 were 48% and 19% respectively with the increase resulting from the foreign losses for which the

deferred tax assets have not been recognized

Income tax expense increased $2.7 million in 2010 compared to 2009 This increase was primarily

attributable to our geographic mix of income and the significant increase in pre-tax income from pretax loss of

$3.1 million for 2009 to pre-tax income of $19.0 million for 2010 The effective tax rates as of December 31

2010 and 2009 were 19% and 27% respectively with the increase resulting from the significant increase in

pre-tax income in 2010 compared to 2009

Quarterly Results of Operations Data

The following tables set forth our unaudited quarterly consolidated statements of operations data and our

unaudited statements of operations data as percentage of net revenue for each of the eight quarters ended

December 31 2011 certain items may not foot due to rounding We have prepared the quarterly data on

consistent basis with the audited consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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In the opinion of management the financial information reflects all
necessary adjustments consisting only of

normal recurring adjustments necessary for fair presentation of this data This information should be read in

conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included in Item of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K The results of historical periods are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations

for full year or any future period

For the Three Months Ended

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Costs and expenses

Cost of revenue exclusive of depreciation and

amortization shown separately below

Sales and marketing

Product development

General and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Total costs and expenses

Income from operations

Other income expense net

Income before income taxes

Provision benefit for income taxes

Net income loss

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders

Net income loss per share attributable to common

stockholders

Basic

Diluted

Weighted-average shares used to compute net income loss

per share attributable to common stockholders

Basic

Diluted

24166 22096

53249 46074

42051 35022

24463 20121

13784 11555
_______

157713 134868
________

10028 4608

1575 1788 11

8453 2820 9940

1534 4418 5427

6919 1598 4513

6919 1598 4513

Dec 31 Sep 30 Jun 30 Mar 31 Dec 31 Sep 30 Jun 30 Mar 31
2011 2011 2011 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010

in thousands except per share data

Net revenue $167741 $139476 $121040 $93932 $81696 $61792 $54895 $44716

18403

36019

30414

16673

9602

111111

9929

14844

20638

20953

11633

6565

74633

7063

11835 9842

14831 13055

17188 14822

9092 7667

4845 4201

57791 49587

4001 5308

8305

10454

12141

6672

3940

41512

3204

341 434 357 346

0.07 0.02 0.07

0.06 0.02 0.04

16783

29361

24735

13614

8159

92652

1280

449

1729

349

2078

43726

51459

183

1098

1603

959

$3843

4435 4951

475 658

3960 4293

915 938

0.02 0.02

0.02 0.02

42515 42232

46601 45624

6722

1405

5317

1576

0.04

0.03

43058

49372

138

381

1093

1100

$2712

98531 96276

108612 96276

Stock-based compensation included in above line items

Cost of revenue 714 469

Sales and marketing 2294 2577

Product development 5423 3711

General and administrative 2181 1741

Total stock-based compensation $10612 $8498

2858

1043

1815

1966

44228

89

250

690

905

$1934

69395

103129

312

2105

2888

1510

$6815

122

317

790

1002

$2231

90

277

675

913

$1955
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For the Three Months Ended

Dec 31 Sep 30 Jun 30 Mar 31 Dec 31 Sep 30 Jun 30 Mar 31
2011 2011 2011 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010

in thousands except customer and headcount data

Other Financial and Operational Data

Adjusted EBITDA 34424 24661 26346 13282 $16340 $11077 $11464 9078

Number of registered members at period end 144974 131186 115808 101528 90437 80553 71825 64177

Linkedln Corporate Solutions customers at period

end 9236 7366 6072 4774 3865 2849 2306 1827

Headcount at period end

United States 1641 1452 1251 1099 872 775 636 531

International 475 345 264 189 118 87 57 41

Total 2116 1797 1515 1288 990 862 693 572

We define adjusted EBITDA as net income loss plus provision benefit for income taxes other income expense net

depreciation and amortization and stock-based compensation Please see Adjusted EBITDA in Item Selected Financial

Data for more information

For the Three Months Ended

Dec 31 Sep 30 Jun 30 Mar 31 Dec 31 Sep 30
2011 2011 2011 2011 2010 2010

as percentage of revenue

Jun30 Mar 31
2010 2010

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Net revenue

Costs and expenses

Cost of revenue

Sales and marketing

Product development

General and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Total costs and expenses

Income from operations

Other income expense net

Income before income taxes

Provision benefit for income taxes

Net income loss

Certain items may not total due to rounding

14

32

25

15

94

4%

16

33

25

14

97

1%

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

15 18 18 19 18

30 31 25 24 24

25 26 26 28 27

14 14 14 15 14

92 99 91 94 90

10

4% 2% 7% 6% 8%

100%

19

23

27

15

93

4%

Dec 31 Sep 30
2011 2011

For the Three Months Ended

Jun30 Mar 31 Dec 31 Sep 30 Jun30 Mar 31
2011 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010

in thousands

Additional Financial Data

Net revenue by product

Hiring Solutions

Marketing Solutions

Premium Subscriptions

Total

Net revenue by geographic location

United States

International

Total

Net revenue by field sales and online sales

Field sales

Online sales

Total

84937

49523

33281

$167741

$111970

55771

$167741

95842

71899

$167741

70995

40072

28409

$139476

94005

45471

$139476

74465

65011

$139476

58620

38570

23850

$121040

82739

38301

$121040

66699

54341

$121040

$46333

27683

19916

$93932

$65120

28812

$93932

$50628

43304

$93932

$35958

27939

17799

$81696

$58411

23285

$81696

$48253

33443

$81696

$27274

18836

15682

$61792

$45730

16062

$61792

$33552

28240

$61792

$21723

18308

14864

$54895

$40299

14596

$54895

$30202

24693

$54895

$16929

14226

13561

$44716

$32535

12181

$44716

$23684

21032

$44716

-58-



Reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA
Net income loss

Provision benefit for income taxes

Other income expense net

Depreciation and amortization

Stock-based compensation

Adjusted EBITDA
______ ______ ______ ______ ______ ______

Liquidity and Capital Resources

2011 2010 2009

in thousands

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Data

Purchases of property and equipment 88978 50026 13279

Depreciation and amortization 43100 19551 11854

Cash flows provided by operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows provided by financing activities

133424 54353 21360

338482 55633 13044

452465 4325 1030

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and money market funds Our short-term investments consist of

U.S treasury securities and agency securities As of December 31 2011 we had cash and cash equivalents of

$339.0 million and short-term investments of $238.5 million As of December 31 2011 the amount of cash and

cash equivalents held by foreign subsidiaries was $53.3 million If these funds are needed for our domestic

operations we would be required to accrue and pay U.S taxes to repatriate these funds However our intent is to

permanently reinvest these funds outside the U.S and our current plans do not demonstrate need to repatriate

them to fund our domestic operations We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents and short-term

investment balances together with cash generated from operations will be sufficient to meet our working capital

expenditure requirements for at least the next 12 months

For the Three Months Ended

Dec 31 Sep 30 Jun 30 Mar 31 Dec 31 Sep 30 Jun 30 Mar 31

2011 2011 2011 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010

in thousands

6919 $1598 4513 2078 5317 3960 4293 $1815

1534 4418 5427 349 1405 475 658 1043

1575 1788 11 449 341 434 357 346

13784 11555 9602 8159 6565 4845 4201 3940

10612 8498 6815 3843 2712 2231 1955 1934

$34424 $24661 $26346 $13282 $16340 $11077 $11464 $9078

Year Ended December 31
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Operating Activities

Operating activities provided $133.4 million of cash in 2011 primarily resulting from our improved

operating performance The cash flow from operating activities primarily resulted from changes in our operating

assets and liabilities with deferred revenue increasing $74.8 million and accounts payable and other liabilities

increasing $37.0 million partially offset by an increase in accounts receivable of $54.9 million and an increase in

prepaid expenses
and other assets of $14.1 million The increases in our deferred revenue and accounts

receivable were primarily due to our revenue growth in 2011 as compared to 2010 We had net income in 2011 of

$11.9 million which included non-cash depreciation and amortization of $43.1 million and non-cash stock-based

compensation of $29.8 million

Operating activities provided $54.4 million of cash in 2010 primarily resulting from our improved

operating performance The cash flow from operating activities primarily resulted from changes in our operating

assets and liabilities with deferred revenue increasing $39.5 million and accounts payable and accrued liabilities

increasing $15.6 million partially offset by an increase in accounts receivable of $35.7 million The increase in

our deferred revenue and accounts receivable was primarily due to our revenue growth in 2010 as compared to

2009 The increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities reflects timing of payments due to the growth in

our business activities We had net income in 2010 of $15.4 million which included non-cash depreciation and

amortization of $19.6 million and non-cash stock-based compensation of $8.8 million

Operating activities provided $21.4 million of cash in 2009 priiiarily resulting from our improved

operating performance The cash flow from operating activities primarily resulted from changes in our operating

assets and liabilities with accounts payable and accrued liabilities increasing $8.6 million and deferred revenue

increasing $10.6 million partially offset by an increase in accounts receivable of $9.8 million and an increase of

$2.9 million in prepaid expenses and other assets and deferred commissions The increase in our deferred

revenue and accounts receivable was primarily due to our revenue growth in 2009 as compared to 2008 The

increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities reflects timing of payments due to the growth in our business

activities We had net loss in 2009 of $4.0 million which included non-cash depreciation and amortization of

$11.9 million and non-cash stock-based compensation of $6.2 million

Investing Activities

Our primary investing activities have consisted of purchases of property and equipment and more

specifically our investment to build out our data centers We also continued to invest in technology hardware to

support our growth software to support website functionality development website operations and our corporate

infrastructure Purchases of property and equipment may vary
from period to period due to the timing of the

expansion of our operations and website and internal-use software development

In 2011 we had net purchases of investments of $239.4 million Also we acquired three companies for $7.4

million net of cash acquired

In 2010 we acquired two companies for $4.5 million net of cash acquired

Financing Activities

In 2011 we received $426.5 million in proceeds from our IPO and follow-on offering net of offering costs

With the exception of these offerings our financing activities have consisted primarily of net proceeds from the

issuance of common stock and preferred stock

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have any off balance sheet arrangements in 2011 2010 or 2009
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Contractual Obligations

We lease our facilities in Mountain View California under operating leases that we expect to expire in

2023 We lease other facilities around the world the longest of which expires in 2020 We have several material

long-term purchase obligations outstanding with third parties We do not have any debt or material capital lease

obligations As of December 31 2011 the following table summarizes our contractual obligations and the effect

such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods

Payments Due by Period

Less Than -3 More Than

Total Year Years Years Years

in thousands

Operating lease obligations $186319 $13767 $32929 $33653 $105970

Purchase obligations 43161 $24423 $18394 330 14

Subsequent to December 31 2011 we leased additional facilities in various locations The longest lease

expires in 2022 and aggregate future minimum lease payments are approximately $26.5 million

In February 2012 we entered into additional purchase commitments with provider of data center space for

total future minimum payments of approximately $33.9 million over the next three years

The contractual commitment amounts in the table above are associated with agreements that are enforceable

and legally binding Obligations under contracts that we can cancel without significant penalty are not included

in the table above

Contingent obligations arising from unrecognized tax benefits are not included in the contractual obligations

because it is expected that the unrecognized benefits would only result in an insignificant amount of cash

payments

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

We have operations both within the United States and internationally and we are exposed to market risks in

the ordinary course of our business These risks include primarily interest rate foreign exchange risks and

inflation

Interest Rate Fluctuation Risk

We had cash cash equivalents and short-term investments of $577.5 million and $93.0 million as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively Our cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and money market

funds which have relatively short maturity and as such are relatively insensitive to interest rate changes Our

short-term investments consist of fixed income investments specifically U.S treasury securities and agency

securities Fixed income investments may have their fair market value adversely impacted by rise in interest

rates hypothetical 1% 100 basis points increase in interest rates would have resulted in decrease in the fair

value of our investment portfolio of approximately $2.7 million as of December 31 2011

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk and Foreign Currency Forward Contracts

We have foreign currency risks related to our revenue and operating expenses denominated in currencies other

than the U.S dollar principally the British pound sterling the euro the Australian dollar the Canadian dollar and

the Indian rupee The volatility of exchange rates depends on many factors that we cannot forecast with reliable

accuracy We have experienced and will continue to experience fluctuations in our net income loss as result of

gains losses related to remeasuring certain cash balances trade accounts receivable balances and accounts payable

balances that are denominated in currencies other than the U.S dollar In the event our foreign currency

denominated cash accounts receivable accounts payable sales or expenses increase our operating results may be

more greatly affected by fluctuations in the exchange rates of the currencies in which we do business

-61-



We began to hedge risks associated with foreign currency transactions to minimize the impact of changes in

foreign currency exchange rates on earnings in December 2011 We utilize foreign currency forward contracts to

hedge against the short-term impact of foreign currency fluctuations on certain assets and liabilities denominated

in foreign currencies All balance sheet hedges are marked-to-market through earnings each period

We do not enter into foreign currency forward contracts for speculative or trading purposes As of

December 31 2011 the Company had five outstanding forward contracts with total notional amount of $34.1

million The net unrealized gain resulting from changes in fair value of these forward contracts as of

December 31 2011 was not material

Inflation Risk

We do not believe that inflation has had material effect on our business financial condition or results of

operations If our costs were to become subject to significant inflationary pressures we may not be able to fully

offset such higher costs through price increases Our inability or failure to do so could harm our business

financial condition and results of operations
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Linkedln Corporation

Mountain View California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Linkedln Corporation and subsidiaries

the Company as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations

redeemable convertible preferred stock stockholders equity and comprehensive income loss and cash flows

for each of the three
years

in the period ended December 31 2011 These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have

nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audits included

consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Linkedln Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2011 in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Is DELOITFE TOUCHE LLP

San Jose California

March 2012
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investments

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $5460 and $2672 at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Deferred commissions

Prepaid expenses

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment net

Goodwill

Intangible assets net

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Note 11
REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK Note 12

Redeemable convertible preferred stock Series $00001 par valuenone issued and

outstanding at December 31 2011 and 4357644 issued and outstanding at December 31

2010

Redeemable convertible preferred stock Series $00001 par valuenone issued and

outstanding at December 31 2011 and 6599987 issued and outstanding at December 31

2010

Total redeemable convertible preferred stock

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY Note 12
Convertible preferred stock Series $00001 par value none issued and outstanding at

December 31 2011 and 17238579 issued and outstanding at December 31 2010

Convertible preferred stock Series $0.0001 par valuenone issued and outstanding at

December 31 2011 and 17450991 issued and outstanding at December 31 2010

Common stock $0000 par valuenone issued and outstanding at December 31 2011 and

43308742 issued at December 31 2010

Class and Class common stock $00001 par value40637575 Class and 60842819
Class shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2011 and none issued and outstanding

at December 31 2010

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Accumulated earnings deficit

Total stockholders equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

LINKEDIN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

In thousands except share data

December 31

2011 2010

$339048 92951

238456

111372

13594

10799

12658

725927

114850

12249

8095

12576

$873697

28217

58644

139798

226659

18551

3508

248718

58263

8684

4887

7421

172206

56743

5232

4007

$238188

12886

27601

64985

105472

6625

1861

113958

12700

75281

87981

5884

9962

10

617629 25074

100

7240 4672

624979 36249

$873697 $238188

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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LHKEDIN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

In thousands except per share data

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Net revenue $522189 $243099 $120127

Costs and expenses

Cost of revenue exclusive of depreciation and amortization shown

separately below 81448 44826 25857

Sales and marketing 164703 58978 26847

Product development 132222 65104 39444

General and administrative 74871 35064 19480

Depreciation and amortization 43100 19551 11854

Total costs and expenses 496344 223523 123482

Income loss from operations 25845 19576 3355
Other income expense net 2903 610 230

Income loss before income taxes 22942 18966 3125
Provision for income taxes 11030 3581 848

Net income loss 11912 15385 3973

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 11912 3429 3973

Net income loss per
share attributable to common stockholders

Basic 0.15 0.08 0.10

Diluted 0.11 0.07 0.10

Weighted-average shares used to compute net income loss per share

attributable to common stockholders

Basic 77185 42446 41184

Diluted 104118 46459 41184

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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LINKEDIN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY AND COMPREHENSiVE INCOME LOSS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3120112010 AND 2009

In thousands except shares

Stockholders Equity

BALANCEDecember 31 2008

Cumulative effect of accounting change

for warrant valuation

Issuance of common stock upon exercise

of employee stock options

Vesting of early exercised stock

options

Repurchase of unvested early exercised

stock options

Stock-based compensation

Foreign currency translation

adjustment

Net loss

BALANCEDecember 312009

Issuance of Series convertible

preferred stock upon exercise of

warrant

Issuance of common stock upon exercise

of employee stock options

Vesting of early exercised stock

options

Repurchase of unvested early exercised

stock options

Stock-based compensation

Income tax benefit fromemployee stock

option eAerises

792

198
6270

20

Accumulated

Earnings

Deficit Total

$15956 5230

128 143

1084

792

198
6270

9146

129

15385

$36249

Accumulated

Other
Redeemable

Convertible
Compre

Additional hensive
Preferred Stock Convertible Preferred Stock Common Stock

_____________ ____________________ _____________ Paid-In Income

Shares Amount Shares Amount Warrants Shares Amount Capital Loss

10957631 $87981 34619205 $15413 15 41913101 5778 $23

15

1704436 1083

1871809

10957631 $87981 34619205 $15413 41745728

70365 433

1796826

767

233812

9146

120

43308742

3973

$13725 $20057

20

3973

9082

Compre
hensive

Income

Loss

20

3973

3953

$15385

$15385

1307

Net income

BALANCEDecember 31 2010 10957631 $87981 34689570 $15846

433

1307

767

15385

4672$25074



LINKEDIN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 20112010 AND 2009Continued

In thousands except shares

Stockholders Equity

BALANCEDecember 31 2010

Issuance of common stock upon
initial public offering net of

offering costs

Conversion of preferred stock to

common stock upon initial public

offering

Issuance of common stock in

connection with follow-on

offering net of offering costs

Issuance of common stock upon
oo exercise of employee stock

options

Issuance of common stock in

connection with employee stock

purchase plan

Issuance of common stock related to

acquisitions

Vesting of early exercised stock

options

Repurchase of unvested early

exercised stock options

Stock-based compensation

Income tax benefit from employee

stock option exercises

Change in net unrealized gain on

investments

Net income

BALANCEDecember 31 2011

30292

Redeemable

Convertible

Preferred Stock

Shares Amount

10957631 87981

Convertible Preferred Stock Common Stock
Additional

Shares Amount Capital

43308742 25074

Accumulated

Other

Compre
hensive

Income

Loss

Accumulated

Earnings

Deficit Total

4672 36249

248406

Shares Amount Warrants

34689570 15846

6003804 248405

10957631 87981 34689570 15846 45647201 103822 87981

2583755 177318 177318

3665152 13068 13068

164367 6287 6287

129203 059 8059

3704 3704

21830
30292

1600 1600

103 103

11912 11912

101480394 $10 $617629 $100 7240 $624979

Compre
hensive

Income

Loss

103

11912

$12015

See notes to consolidated financial statements



LINKEDIN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

In thousands

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income loss 11912 15385 3973

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization 43100 19551 11854

Provision for doubtful accounts and sales returns 3109 1811 448

Stock-based compensation 29768 8832 6152

Excess income tax benefit from the exercise of stock options 1600 129
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 54908 35677 9791
Deferred commissions 5271 5798 2115
Prepaid expenses and other assets 14111 4259 795
Accounts payable and other liabilities 36950 15595 8631

Income taxes net 9662 493 357

Deferred revenue 74813 39535 10592

Net cash provided by operating activities 133424 54353 21360

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment 88978 50026 13279
Purchases of investments 251174
Sales of investments 8255

Maturities of investments 3500

Purchases of intangible assets and acquisitions net of cash acquired 7404 4467
Increase decrease in restricted cash and deposits 2681 1140 235

Net cash used in investing activities 338482 55633 13044

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from initial public offering net of offering costs 248803 397
Proceeds from follow-on offering net of offering costs 177700

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 13124 1307 1084

Proceeds from early exercise of employee stock options 4995 3438 680

Proceeds from the issuance of the employee stock purchase plan 6287

Proceeds from exercise of warrant 23

Excess income tax benefit from the exercise of stock options 1600 129

Repurchase of common stock 44 175 734

Net cash provided by financing activities 452465 4325 1030

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 1310 73 138

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 246097 2972 9484

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSBeginning of period 92951 89979 80495

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSEnd of period 339048 92951 89979

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for income taxes 2261 4006 418

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Conversion of preferred stock to common stock 103827

Purchases of property and equipment recorded in accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 10974 2231 2648

Deferred offering costs not yet paid
382 1318 118

Cumulative effect of accounting change for warrant valuation 143

Vesting of early exercised stock options 3704 767 792

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Linkedln Corporation and its subsidiaries the Company Delaware corporation was incorporated on

March 2003 The Company operates an online professional network on the Internet through which the

Companys members are able to create manage and share their professional identities online build and engage

with their professional networks access shared knowledge and insights and find business opportunities enabling

them to be more productive and successful The Company believes it is the most extensive accurate and

accessible network focused on professionals

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company operates in dynamic industry and accordingly can be affected by variety of factors For

example management of the Company believes that changes in any of the following areas could have

significant negative effect on the Company in terms of its future consolidated financial position results of

operations or cash flows scaling and adaptation of existing technology and network infrastructure protection of

customers information and privacy concerns security measures related to the Companys website rates of

revenue growth engagement and usage of the Companys solutions management of the Companys growth new
markets and international expansion protection of the Companys brand and intellectual property competition in

the Companys market qualified employees and key personnel intellectual property infringement and other

claims and changes in government regulation affecting the Companys business among other things

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries All

intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been reclassified

to conform to the current year presentation These changes consisted of reclassifications to separate or combine

certain line items in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of cash flows In addition

trade payable obligations totaling $10.8 million previously reported in other accrued expenses within accrued

liabilities Note at December 31 2010 have been reclassified to include such amounts in accounts payable

These reclassifications did not impact previously reported total current assets total assets total current liabilities

or total liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets or net cash provided by operating activities in

the consolidated statements of cash flows

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Companys consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles GAAP in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses

during the reporting period These estimates are based on information available as of the date of the consolidated

financial statements therefore actual results could differ from managements estimates

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist

primarily of cash and cash equivalents short-term investments foreign exchange contracts and accounts

receivable The Company places its cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments with major financial

institutions throughout the world which management assesses to be of high-credit quality Foreign exchange

contracts are transacted with various financial institutions with high credit standing
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Credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is dispersed due to the large number of customers none of

which accounted for more than 10% of total accounts receivable as of December 31 2011 and 2010 In addition

the Companys credit risk is mitigated by the relatively short collection period The Company records accounts

receivable at the invoiced amount and does not charge interest Collateral is not required for accounts receivable

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable balances The allowance is based upon

historical loss patterns the number of days that billings are past due and an evaluation of the potential risk of

loss associated with delinquent accounts The following table presents the changes in the allowance for doubtful

accounts in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Balance beginning of period $2672 $1100 960

Add bad debt expense 2526 1723 505

Less write-offs net of recoveries and other

adjustments
262 151 365

Balance end of period $5460 $2672 $1100

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company determines the functional
currency

for its foreign subsidiaries by reviewing the currencies in

which its respective operating activities occur Financial information is translated from the functional currency to

the U.S dollar the reporting currency for inclusion in the Companys consolidated financial statements Income

expenses and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates prevailing during the fiscal year and assets and

liabilities are translated at fiscal period end exchange rates The functional currency of the Companys foreign

subsidiaries is generally the U.S dollar Gains and losses resulting from remeasuring foreign currency financial

statements into U.S dollars are included in other income expense net in the accompanying consolidated

statements of operations These gains and losses are net of those realized on foreign currency
forward contracts

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid short-term investments with original maturities of three months or

less at the time of purchase As of December 31 2011 and 2010 cash equivalents consisted of money market

funds

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments consist of U.S treasury securities and agency securities and are classified as

available-for-sale securities The Company may or may not hold securities with stated maturities greater than one

year until maturity After consideration of its risks versus reward objectives as well as its liquidity requirements

the Company may sell these securities prior to their stated maturities As the Company views these securities as

available to support current operations it has classified all available-for-sale securities as short-term

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported as component of

accumulated other comprehensive income loss in stockholders equity For the periods presented realized and

unrealized gains and losses on investments were not material An impairment charge is recorded in the

consolidated statements of operations for declines in fair value below the cost of an individual investment that

are deemed to be other than temporary The Company assesses whether decline in value is temporary based on

the length of time that the fair market value has been below cost the severity of the decline as well as the intent

and ability to hold or plans to sell the investment
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Deferred Commissions

Deferred commissions are the incremental costs that are directly associated with non-cancelable

subscription contracts primarily related to sales of the Companys hiring solutions Deferred commissions consist

of sales commissions paid to the Companys direct sales representatives and are deferred and amortized over the

non-cancelable terms of the related customer contracts which are generally 12 months The commission

payments are generally paid in full the month after the customer contract is signed The deferred commission

amounts are recoverable through the future revenue streams under the non-cancelable customer contracts The

Company believes this is the preferable method of accounting as the commission charges are so closely related to

the revenue from the non-cancelable customer contracts that they should be recorded as an asset and charged to

expense over the same period that the subscription revenue is recognized Short-term deferred commissions are

included in deferred commissions while long-term deferred commissions are included in other assets in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets The amortization of deferred commissions is included in sales and

marketing expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company accounts for derivative instruments and hedging activities pursuant to authoritative

accounting guidance that requires recognition of all derivatives as assets or liabilities in the statement of financial

position and measurement of those instruments at fair value Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted to

fair value through earnings If the derivative is hedge depending on the nature of the hedge its change in fair

value will either be offset against the change in fair value of the hedged asset or liability firm commitment

through earnings or recognized in other comprehensive income loss until the hedged item is recognized in

earnings

The Company began to enter into forward contracts near the end of 2011 to manage currency exposure

related to net assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies for certain foreign denominated assets or

liabilities The Company does not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading purposes As of

December 31 2011 the Company had five outstanding forward contracts with total notional amount of $34.1

million These derivative instruments are not designed for hedge accounting and are adjusted to fair value

through other income expense net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations The net

uurealized gain resulting from changes in fair value of these forward contracts as of December 31 2011 was not

material

The gains and losses on these derivative instruments are intended to offset the impact of foreign exchange

rate changes on the underlying foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities subject to remeasurement and

transaction exposures and therefore these forward contracts do not subject the Company to material balance

sheet risk As of December 31 2011 the outstanding balance sheet hedging derivatives had maturities of less

than 30 days

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization Depreciation and

amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range

from two to five
years Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or expected

useful lives of the improvements Depreciation expense totaled $39.5 million $18.6 million and $11.6 million for

the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Website and Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes its costs to develop its website and internal-use software when preliminary

development efforts are successfully completed management has authorized and committed project funding and

it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used as intended Such costs are
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amortized on straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the related asset which approximates two to

three years Costs incurred prior to meeting these criteria together with costs incurred for training and

maintenance are expensed as incurred

The Company capitalized website and internal-use software costs of $10.9 million $6.4 million and $2.6

million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively The Companys capitalized website

and internal-use software amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the Companys

consolidated statements of operations and totaled $5.4 million $2.9 million and $1.9 million for the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable Recoverability of assets to be held and used

is measured by comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to

be generated by the asset If such assets are considered to be impaired the impairment to be recognized is measured

by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment annually in the third quarter
of the Companys fiscal year and

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of goodwill may not be recoverable

Triggering events that may indicate impairment include but are not limited to significant adverse change in

customer demand or business climate that could affect the value of goodwill or significant decrease in expected

cash flows

In September 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued new authoritative guidance

that gives companies the option to make qualitative evaluation about the likelihood of goodwill impairment

The Company elects to assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value

of the Companys one reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is

necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test The Company is not required to calculate the fair

value of reporting unit unless the Company determines that it is more likely than not that its fair value is less

than its carrying amount If the Company determines that it is more likely than not that its fair value is less than

its carrying amount then the two-step goodwill impairment test is performed The first step identifying

potential impairment compares the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount If the carrying value

exceeds its fair value the second step would need to be conducted otherwise no further steps are necessary as

no potential impairment exists The second step measuring the impairment loss compares the implied fair value

of the goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill Any excess of the goodwill carrying value over the

respective implied fair value is recognized as an impairment loss and the carrying value of goodwill is written

down to fair value Through December 31 2011 no impairment of goodwill has been identified

Intangible Assets

Acquired intangible assets consist of identifiable intangible assets including developed technology

non-compete agreements workforce in place in-process research and development IPRD and patent

resulting from the Companys acquisitions Acquired intangible assets are recorded at fair value net of accumulated

amortization Intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

Deferred Offering Costs

Deferred offering costs consisted primarily of direct incremental accounting fees related to the Companys

initial public offering IPO of its Class common stock in May 2011 and its follow-on offering in November
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2011 Approximately $1.7 million of deferred offering costs related to the IPO were included in other assets on

the Companys consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2010 There were no deferred offering costs

included in other assets as of December 31 2011 Upon completion of the Companys IPO and follow-on

offering these amounts were offset against the proceeds of the offering and included in stockholders equity

Revenue Recognition

In general the Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

ii delivery has occurred or services have been rendered to the customer iiithe fee is fixed or determinable

and iv collectability is reasonably assured Where arrangements have multiple elements revenue is allocated to

the elements based on the relative selling price method and revenue is recognized based on the Companys policy

for each respective element

The Company generates revenue primarily from sales of the following services

Hiring SolutionsHiring Solutions revenue is derived primarily from providing access to the Linkedln

Recruiter product and job postings The Company provides access to its professional database of both

active and passive job candidates with Linkedln Recruiter which allows corporate recruiting teams to

identify candidates based on industry job function geography experience/education and other

specifications Revenue from providing access to the Linkedln Recruiter product is recognized ratably

over the subscription period which consists primarily of annual subscriptions that are billed monthly

quarterly or annually The Company also earns revenue from the placement of job postings on its

website which generally run for 30 days Independent recruiters can pay to post job openings that are

accessible through job searches or targeted job matches Revenue from job postings is recognized as

the posting is displayed or the contract period whichever is shorter

Marketing SolutionsThe Company earns revenue from the display of advertisements both graphic

and text link on its website primarily based on cost per advertisement model Revenue from internet

advertising is recognized net of any related agency commissions as the online advertisements are

displayed on the Companys website Agency commissions are amounts earned by advertising agencies

that act as representatives for advertisers and earn commissions by billing the advertiser the total dollar

value of the advertisers purchase while entering into an agreement with the Company to provide the

advertising for the dollar value of the advertisers purchase less certain percentage representing the

agency commission The typical duration of the Companys advertising contracts is approximately two

months

Premium SubscriptionsThe Company sells various subscriptions to customers that allow users to

have further access to premium services via its Linkedln.com website Revenue from Premium

Subscription services is recognized ratably over the contractual period generally from one to 12

months

Amounts billed or collected in excess of revenue recognized are included as deferred revenue Sales tax is

excluded from reported net revenue Although historical refunds have been minimal the Company estimates

allowances for each revenue type shown above based on information available as of each balance sheet date

This information includes historical refunds as well as specific known service quality issues

majority of the Companys arrangements for hiring solutions and marketing solutions include multiple

deliverables In accordance with recent authoritative guidance on revenue recognition the Company allocates

arrangement consideration in multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements at the inception of an arrangement to all

deliverables based on the relative selling price method in accordance with the selling price hierarchy which

includes vendor-specific objective evidence VSOE if available ii third-party evidence TPE if

VSOE is not available and iii best estimate of selling price BESP if neither VSOE nor TPE is available
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VSOE The Company determines VSOE based on its historical pricing and discounting practices for the

specific product or service when sold separately In determining VSOE the Company requires that substantial

majority of the selling prices for these services fall within reasonably narrow pricing range

The Company has not historically priced its marketing solutions or certain products of its hiring solutions

within narrow range As result the Company has only used VSOE to allocate the selling price of deliverables

in limited circumstances

TPE When VSOE cannot be established for deliverables in multiple element arrangements the Company

applies judgment with respect to whether it can establish selling price based on TPE TPE is detennined based

on competitor prices for similardeliverables when sold separately Generally the Companys go-to-market

strategy differs from that of its peers
and its offerings contain significant level of differentiation such that the

comparable pricing of services with similar functionality cannot be obtained Furthermore the Company is

unable to reliably determine what similarcompetitor services selling prices are on stand-alone basis As

result the Company has not been able to establish selling price based on TPE

BESP When it is unable to establish selling price using VSOE or TPE the Company uses BESP in its

allocation of arrangement consideration The objective of BESP is to determine the price at which the Company

would transact sale if the service were sold on stand-alone basis BESP is generally used to allocate the

selling price to deliverables in the Companys multiple element arrangements The Company determines BESP

for deliverables by considering multiple factors including but not limited to prices it charges for similar

offerings sales volume geographies market conditions competitive landscape and pricing practices

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred and are included in sales and marketing expense in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations The Company incurred advertising costs of $2.4 million

$0.7 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is

recognized on straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award which is generally four years

Office Facility Leases

The Company leases its office facilities under operating lease agreements Office facilities subject to an

operating lease and the related lease payments are not recorded on the Companys balance sheet The terms of

certain lease agreements provide for rental payments on graduated basis however the Company recognizes

rent expense on straight-line basis over the lease period in accordance with authoritative accounting guidance

Any lease incentives are recognized as reductions of rental expense on straight-line basis over the term of the

lease The lease term begins on the date the Company becomes legally obligated for the rent payments or when

the Company takes possession of the office space whichever is earlier

Rental expense principally for leased office space under operating lease commitments was $10.1 million

$4.0 million and $2.8 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Income Taxes

The Company records income taxes using the asset and liability method which requires the recognition of

deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in

the Companys consolidated financial statements or tax returns In estimating future tax consequences generally
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all expected future events other than enactments or changes in the tax law or rates are considered Valuation

allowances are provided when
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

In May 2011 the FASB amended existing rules covering fair value measurement and disclosure to clarify

guidance and minimize differences between generally accepted accounting principles GAAP in the United

States of America and International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS The new authoritative guidance

requires entities to provide information about valuation techniques and unobservable inputs used in Level fair

value measurements and provide narrative description of the sensitivity of Level measurements to changes in

unobservable inputs The guidance will be effective for the Company on January 2012 and is not expected to

have material impact on its financial statements

Comprehensive Income

In June 2011 the FASB issued new authoritative guidance on comprehensive income that eliminates the

option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of shareholders equity

Instead the Company must report comprehensive income in either single continuous statement of

comprehensive income which contains two sections net income and other comprehensive income or in two

separate but consecutive statements In December 2011 the requirement regarding the presentation of

reclassification adjustments out of accumulated other comprehensive income was deferred indefinitely The

accounting update except for the provision deferred is effective for the Company in its interim period ended

March 31 2012 The adoption of this guidance will require the Company to change the presentation of

comprehensive income and its components which is currently reported within the statements of redeemable

convertible preferred stock stockholders equity and comprehensive income loss

Testing Goodwilifor Impairment

In September 2011 the FASB issued new authoritative guidance that gives companies the option to make

qualitative evaluation about the likelihood of goodwill impairment Companies will be required to perform the

two-step impairment test only if it concludes that the fair value of reporting unit is more likely than not less

than its carrying value The accounting update is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests

performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 with early adoption permitted The Company

adopted this new authoritative guidance for its goodwill impairment test performed in the third quarter of 2011

Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures assets and liabilities at fair value based on an expected exit price as defined by the

authoritative guidance on fair value measurements which represents the amount that would be received on the

sale of an asset or paid to transfer liability as the case may be in an orderly transaction between market

participants As such fair value may be based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an

asset or liability The authoritative guidance on fair value measurements establishes consistent framework for

measuring fair value on either recurring or nonrecurring basis whereby inputs used in valuation techniques are

assigned hierarchical level The following are the hierarchical levels of inputs to measure fair value

Level Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in

active markets

Level Inputs reflect quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active

quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets inputs other than quoted prices that are

observable for the assets or liabilities or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by

observable market data by correlation or other means
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Level Unobservable inputs reflecting the Companys assumptions incorporated in valuation

techniques used to determine fair value These assumptions are required to be consistent with market

participant assumptions that are reasonably available

The Companys assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on recurring basis by level within the

fair value hierarchy as of December 31 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows in thousands

December 312011 December 31 2010

Level Level Level Total Level Level Level Total

Assets

Cash equivalents

Money market funds $277463 $277463 $77147 $77147

Short-term investments

U.S treasury

securities 17325 17325

Agency securities 221131 221131

Other current assets

Foreign currency forward

contracts 190 190

Total assets $294788 $221321 $516109 $77147 $77147

Accrued liabilities

Foreign currency forward

contracts 183 183

Total liabilities ... 183 183 $77147 $77147

Acquisitions

In 2011 the Company completed its acquisition of three companies for total consideration of approximately

$17.9 million of which $9.8 million was to be paid in cash and $8.1 million was to be issued in shares of the

Companys Class common stock As of December 31 2011 $1.6 million remains to be paid in cash and an

immaterial number of shares remain to be issued subject to the satisfaction of certain general representations and

warranties These acquisitions have been accounted for under the acquisition method and accordingly the total

purchase price has been allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and the net liabilities

assumed based on their respective fair values on the acquisition date As result of these acquisitions the

Company recorded goodwill in the amount of $12.2 million identifiable definite-lived intangible assets of $6.2

million which was comprised of $4.4 million related to developed technology and $1.8 million related to

non-compete agreements and net liabilities of $0.9 million The Company also recorded $0.3 million of

acquisition-related IPRD accounted for as indefinite-lived intangible assets until the completion or

abandonment of the associated development efforts The overall weighted-average life of the identifiable

definite-lived intangible assets acquired in the purchase of the companies was 4.2 years which will be amortized

on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives The Companys consolidated financial statements

include the operating results of all acquired businesses from the date of each acquisition Pro forma results of

operations for these acquisitions have not been presented as the financial impact to the Companys consolidated

financial statements both individually and in aggregate are not material

In 2010 the Company completed its acquisition of two companies for total consideration of approximately

$5.7 million to be paid in cash As of December 31 2011 $0.6 million remains to be paid in cash subject to the

satisfaction of certain general representations and warranties These acquisitions have been accounted for as

purchases of assets and accordingly the total purchase price has been allocated to the tangible and identifiable

intangible assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values on the acquisition date
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As result of these acquisitions the Company recorded identifiable definite-lived intangible assets of $5.9

million which was comprised of $3.3 million related to workforce in place $2.2 million related to developed

technology and $0.4 million related to non-compete agreements and net liabilities of $0.2 million The overall

weighted-average life of the identified intangible assets acquired in these purchases was 2.2 years These

identifiable intangible assets will be amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

Cash and Investments

The following table presents cash cash equivalents and available-for-sale investments for the periods

presented in thousands

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Market
Cost Gains Losses Value

December 31 2011

Cash 61585 61585
Cash equivalents

Money market funds 277463 277463
Short-term investments

U.S treasury securities 17314 11 17325

Agency securities 221039 100 221131

Total cash cash equivalents and

short-term investments $577401 $111 $8 $577504

December 31 2010

Cash 15804 15804

Cash equivalents

Moneymarketfunds 77147 77147

Total cash and cash

equivalents 92951 92951

The following table presents available-for-sale investments by contractual maturity date as of December 31
2011 in thousands

Estimated

Amortized Fair Market
Cost Value

Due in one year or less $130872 $130903

Due after one year through two years 107481 107553

Total $238353 $238456
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Property and Equipment

The following table presents the detail of property and equipment net for the periods presented in

thousands

December 31

2011 2010

Computer equipment $125955 62253
Software 21614 8443

Capitalized website and internal-use software 24531 13609

Furniture and fixtures 8028 4378
Leasehold improvements 12124 6450

Total 192252 95133
Less accumulated depreciation 77402 38390

Property and equipment net $114850 56743

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is generally not deductible for tax purposes The following table
presents the goodwill activity for

the periods presented in thousands

GoodwillDecember 31 2010

2011 acquisitions 12249

GoodwillDecember 31 2011 $12249

Other Intangible Assets

The following table presents the detail of other intangible assets for the periods presented dollars in

thousands

Weighted-
Gross Net Average

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Remaining
Amount Amortization Amount Life

December31 2011

Patent 628 628
Developed technology 6638 1692 4946 4.3 years

Non-compete agreements 2230 564 1666 1.7 years

Workiorce in place 3259 2036 1223 0.8 years

IPRD 260 260 Indefinite

Total $13015 $4920 $8095 3.2 years

December 31 2010

Patent 628 540 88 0.4 years

Developed technology 2206 272 1934 2.3
years

Non-compete agreements 424 66 358 1.5 years

Workforce in place 3259 407 2852 1.8 years

Total 6517 $1285 $5232 1.9 years
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Amortization expense for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was $3.6 million $1.0

million and $0.2 million respectively Estimated future amortization of purchased intangible assets for future

periods is as follows in thousands

Years Ending December 31

2012 $3990

2013 1560

2014 796

2015

2016

Thereafter
______

Total $7835

The following table presents the detail of accrued liabilities for the periods presented in thousands

December 31

2011

$15709

4806

24600

5839

7690 ______

Total $58644
_______

Other Income Expense Net

The following table presents
the detail of other income expense net for the periods presented in

thousands

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Interest income 169 64 350

Gain loss on foreign exchange 2965 405 51

Net realized gain on sales of short-term investments

Other non-operating expense net 113 269 171

Total other income expense net $2903 $610 230

10 Income Loss Per Share

Basic and diluted net income loss per common share is presented in conformity with the two-class method

required for participating securities Immediately prior to the completion of the Companys IPO on May 19

2011 all shares of outstanding preferred stock automatically converted into 45647201 shares of our Class

common stock Prior to the conversion of the preferred stock holders of Series and Series convertible

preferred stock and Series and redeemable convertible preferred stock were each entitled to receive

non-cumulative dividends at the annual rate of $0.03 $0.05 $0.24 and $0.92 per share per annum respectively

payable prior and in preference to any dividends on any shares of the Companys common stock In the event

dividend was paid on common stock the holders of Series and Series convertible preferred stock and

Series and redeemable convertible preferred stock were entitled to proportionate share of any such

Accrued Liabilities

614

500

Accrued vacation and employee-related expenses

Exercise of unvested stock options

Accrued incentives

Accrued sales tax and value-added taxes

Other accrued expenses

2010

6215

3563

11807

3638

2378

$27601
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dividend as if they were holders of common stock on an as-if converted basis The holders of the Companys
Series and convertible preferred stock and Series and redeemable convertible preferred stock did not

have contractual obligation to share in the losses of the Company The Company considered its preferred stock

to be participating securities and in accordance with the two-class method earnings allocated to preferred stock

and the related number of outstanding shares of preferred stock have been excluded from the computation of

basic and diluted net income loss per common share

Under the two-class method net income loss attributable to common stockholders is determined by

allocating undistributed earnings calculated as net income less current period Series and Series convertible

preferred stock and Series and redeemable convertible preferred stock non-cumulative dividends between

common stock and Series and Series convertible preferred stock and Series and redeemable convertible

preferred stock In computing diluted net income loss attributable to common stockholders undistributed

earnings are re-allocated to reflect the potential impact of dilutive securities Basic net income loss per common
share is computed by dividing the net income loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-

average number of common shares outstanding during the period Shares of common stock subject to repurchase

resulting from the early exercise of employee stock options are considered participating securities and are

therefore included in the basic weighted-average common shares outstanding Diluted net income
per share

attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing the net income attributable to common
stockholders by the

weighted-average number of common shares outstanding including potential dilutive

common shares assuming the dilutive effect of outstanding stock options using the treasury stock method

Immediately prior to the consummation of the Companys IPO of its Class common stock in May 2011
all outstanding shares of preferred stock and common stock were converted to Class common stock As

result Class and Class common stock are the only outstanding equity in the Company The rights of the

holders of Class and Class common stock are identical except with respect to voting and conversion Each
share of Class common stock is entitled to one vote per share and each share of Class common stock is

entitled to ten votes per share Shares of Class common stock may be converted into Class common stock at

any time at the option of the stockholder and are automatically converted upon sale or transfer to Class

common stock subject to certain limited exceptions

Basic net income per share is computed using the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding

during the period Diluted net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common
shares and if dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period The Companys potential
common shares consist of the incremental common shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options The
dilutive effect of outstanding stock options is reflected in diluted earnings per share by application of the treasury
stock method The computation of the diluted net income per share of Class common stock assumes the

conversion of Class common stock while the diluted net income
per share of Class common stock does not

assume the conversion of Class common stock as Class common stock is not convertible into Class

common stock

The undistributed earnings are allocated based on the contractual participation rights of the Class and
Class common shares as if the earnings for the year have been distributed As the liquidation and dividend

rights are identical the undistnbuted earnings are allocated on proportionate basis Further as the conversion of
Class common stock is assumed in the computation of the diluted net income

per share of Class common
stock the undistributed earnings are equal to net income for that computation
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The following table presents
the calculation of basic and diluted net income loss per share in thousands

except per share data

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Class Class Class Class

Basic net income loss per share

Numerator

Allocation of distributed earnings

Less undistributed earnings allocated to preferred

stockholders _________ ________ ________ ________

Allocation of disthbuted earnings attributable to

common stockholders
________ _______ _______ _______

Denominator

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic net income loss per share ________ _______

Diluted net income loss per share

Numerator

Allocation of distributed earnings loss for basic

computation

Reallocation of undistributed earnings as result of

conversion of Class to Class shares

Reallocation of Undistributed earnings to Class shares

Less undistributed earnings allocated to preferred

stockholders _________ ________ ________ ________

Allocation of undistributed earnings _______ ______ _______ ______

Denominator

Number of shares used in basic calculation

Weighted average
effect of dilutive securities Add

Conversion of preferred stock in connection with initial

public offering

Conversion of Class to Class common shares

outstanding

Employee stock options

Restricted stock units

Employee stock purchase plan _______

Number of shares used in diluted calculation

Diluted net income loss per share
_________ ________

The following weighted-average employee stock options were excluded from the calculation of diluted net

income loss per share because their effect would have been anti-dilutive for the periods presented in

thousands

Employee stock options

Restricted stock units
88

Total

1420 $10492 15385 $3973

11956

1420 $10492 3429 $3973

9200 67985 42446 41184

0.15 0.15 0.08 0.10

1420 $10492 $15385 $3973

10492

364 11956

11912 $10856 3429 $3973

9200 67985 42446 41184

17133

85118

9770 9770 4013

22

104118 94888 46459 41184

0.11 0.11 0.07 0.10

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

418 10

10
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11 Commitments and Contingencies

Aggregate Future Lease Commitments

The Company leases its office facilities under operating lease agreements the longest of which is expected
to expire in 2023 The Companys future minimum payments under non-cancelable

operating leases for office

facilities having initial terms in excess of one year as of December 31 2011 are as follows in thousands

Operating
Year Ending December 31 Leases

2012
13767

2013
16271

2014
16658

2015
16828

2016
16825

Thereafter 105970

Total minimum lease payments $186319

Subsequent to December 31 2011 the Company leased additional facilities in various locations The

longest lease expires in 2022 and
aggregate future minimum lease payments are approximately $26.5

million

Legal Proceedings

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business

including but not limited to certain pending patent and privacy litigation matters including class action

lawsuits Although occasional adverse decisions or settlements may occur the Company does not believe that the
final disposition of any of these matters will have material effect on the business Certain of these matters

include speculative claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages and could include claims for

injunctive relief The Company will record liability when it believes that it is both probable that loss has been
incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated The Company periodically evaluates developments in its

legal matters that could affect the amount of liability that it has previously accrued if any and makes

adjustments as appropriate Significant judgment is required to determine both likelihood of there being and the

estimated amount of loss related to such matters and the Companys judgment may be incorrect The outcome
of any proceeding is not determinable in advance Until the final resolution of any such matters that the Company
may be required to accrue for there may be an exposure to loss in excess of the amount accrued and such

amounts could be material

Indemnifications

In the ordinary course of business the Company enters into contractual arrangements under which it
agrees

to provide indemnification of varying scope and terms to business partners and other parties with respect to

certain matters including but not limited to losses arising out of the Companys breach of such agreements and
out of intellectual property infringement claims made by third parties In these circumstances payment may be

conditional on the other
party making claim

pursuant to the procedures specified in the particular contract

Further the Companys obligations under these agreements may be limited in terms of time and/or amount and
in some instances it may have recourse against third parties for certain payments In addition the Company has

indemnification
agreements with certain of its directors and executive officers that require it among other things

to indeninify them against certain liabilities that may arise by reason of their status or service as directors or
officers with the Company The terms of such obligations may vary
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12 Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders Equity

Initial Public Offering

In May 2011 the Company closed its IPO of 9016000 shares of its Class common stock which included

6003804 shares of Class common stock sold by the Company inclusive of 1176000 shares of Class

common stock from the full exercise of the overallotment option of shares granted to the underwriters and

3012196 shares of Class common stock sold by the selling stockholders The public offering price of the

shares sold in the offering was $45.00 per
share The Company did not receive any proceeds from the sales of

shares by the selling stockholders The total gross proceeds from the offering to the Company were $270.2

million After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses payable by the

Company the aggregate net proceeds received by the Company totaled approximately $248.4 million

Follow-on Offering

In November 2011 the Company closed its follow-on offering of 10062500 shares of its Class common

stock which included 2583755 shares of Class common stock sold by the Company inclusive of 1312500

shares of Class common stock from the full exercise of the overallotment option of shares granted to the

underwriters and 7478745 shares of Class common stock sold by the selling stockholders The public

offering price of the shares sold in the offering was $71.00 per share The Company did not receive any proceeds

from the sales of shares by the selling stockholders The total gross proceeds from the offering to the Company

were $178.1 million After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses payable by

the Company the aggregate net proceeds received by the Company totaled approximately $177.3 million

Preferred Stock

Prior to its IPO the Company had outstanding 17238579 shares designated as Series convertible

preferred stock 17450991 shares designated as Series convertible preferred stock 4357644 designated as

Series redeemable convertible preferred stock and 6599987 designated as Series redeemable convertible

preferred
stock Each share of preferred stock was convertible into one share of common stock Immediately

prior to the completion of the Companys IPO on May 19 2011 all shares of outstanding preferred
stock

automatically converted into 45647201 shares of the Companys Class common stock

Warrant

In connection with the line of credit agreement on September 20 2004 the Company issued warrant to

purchase 70365 shares of Series convertible preferred stock with an exercise price of $0.32 per share The fair

value of the warrant based on an option valuation model which approximates binomial lattice model was

insignificant and was reflected as discount to borrowings under the financing The warrant was exercisable for

seven years from the date of issuance In May 2010 the warrant was exercised As result the Company issued

70365 shares of Series convertible preferred stock and received an insignificant amount of proceeds

Common Stock

At December 31 2010 there were 120000000 shares of common stock authorized and 43308742 shares

issued and outstanding Following its IPO on May 19 2011 the Company had two classes of authorized common

stock outstanding Class common stock and Class common stock As of December 31 2011 there were

40637575 shares and 60842819 shares of Class common stock and Class common stock respectively

issued and outstanding
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Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

As of December 31 2011 the Company had reserved the following shares of common stock for future

issuances in connection with the following

Options outstanding 14784701

Restricted stock units outstanding 1139910

Available for future stock option and restricted stock unit

grants 12585455

Available for future employee stock purchase plan options 3335633

Total available for future issuance 31845699

Equity Incentive Plans

The Company has two equity incentive plans the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan the

2003 Plan and the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan the 2011 Plan Under the 2003 Plan 34814756 shares of

common stock were reserved for the issuance of incentive stock options ISOs nonstatutory stock options

NSOs or to eligible participants as of December 31 2010 Upon the IPO 2000000 shares were initially

reserved under the 2011 Plan and all shares that were reserved under the 2003 Plan but not issued were assumed

by the 2011 Plan Following the IPO any shares subject to options or other similarawards granted under the

2003 Plan that expire are forfeited are repurchased by us or otherwise terminate unexercised will become

available under the 2011 Plan As of December 31 2011 the total number of shares available under the 2011 Plan

is 29300703 shares No additional shares will be issued under the 2003 Plan Under the 2011 Plan the Company
has the ability to issue ISOs NSOs stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units RSUs
performance units andlor performance shares The ISOs and NSOs will be granted at price per share not less

than the fair value at date of grant Options granted to date generally vest over four-year period with 25%

vesting at the end of one year and the remaining vest monthly thereafter Options granted generally are

exercisable up to 10
years

The Company began granting RSUs in June 2011 which generally vest over four-

year period with 25% vesting at the end of one year and the remaining vest quarterly thereafter

Early Exercise of Stock Options

The Company typically allows employees to exercise options granted under the 2003 Plan prior to vesting

The unvested shares are subject to the Companys repurchase right at the original purchase price The proceeds

initially are recorded as an accrued liability from the early exercise of stock options see Note Accrued

Liabilities and reclassified to common stock as the Companys repurchase right lapses The Company has

issued common stock of approximately 980000 and 655000 shares during the years ended December 31 2011

and 2010 respectively for stock options exercised prior to vesting During the years ended December 31 2011

and 2010 the Company repurchased 21830 and 233812 shares respectively of common stock related to

unvested stock options at the original exercise price due to the termination of employees At December 31 2011

and 2010 789137 and 981172 shares held by employees and directors were subject to repurchase at an

aggregate price of $4.8 million and $3.6 million respectively

On March 2009 the Companys Board of Directors approved an executive loan program The program

allowed certain executives of the Company to exercise options to purchase common stock of the Company

granted to them by executing promissory notes payable to the Company in an aggregate principal amount not to

exceed $0.8 million per participating executive The loan program contained provisions to ensure compliance

with federal securities laws which prohibit companies from extending credit to certain executives The Company
had the right to repurchase some or all of the shares by cancellation of the notes in advance of filing registration

statement with the SEC As of December 31 2010 $3.6 million of promissory notes payable to the Company

were outstanding but not recorded within the consolidated balance sheet as the notes were considered in

substance non-recourse There were no promissory notes outstanding as of December 31 2011 as they were

repaid in full during 2011
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Concurrent with the effectiveness of the Companys registration statement on Form S-i on May 18 2011

the Companys 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan theESPP became effective The ESPP allows eligible

employees to purchase shares of the Companys Class common stock at discount through payroll deductions

of up to 10% of their eligible compensation subject to any plan limitations The ESPP provides for six-month

offering periods and at the end of each offering period employees are able to purchase shares at 85% of the

lower of the fair market value of the Companys Class common stock on the first trading day of the offering

period or on the last day of the offering period

Employees purchased 164367 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $38.25 in November 2011

As of December 31 2011 approximately 3335633 shares remained available for future issuance

Stock Option Activity

summary of stock option activity for the year ended December 31 2011 is as follows

Weighted

OptiOns Outstanding RemaJng Aggregate

Weighted- Contractual Intrinsic

Number of Average Term Value

Shares Exercise Price in years in thousands

OutstandingDecember 31 2010 15202015 3.97

Granted 4036415 24.51

Exercised 3665152 3.97

Canceled or expired 788577 8.22

OutstandingDecember 31 2011 14784701 9.35 7.83 $794071

Options vested and expected to vest as of December 31

2011 14132939 8.97 7.80 $764340

Options vested and exercisable as of December 31

2011 5195327 3.02 6.97 $311684

Aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the Companys closing stock price of its

common stock and the exercise price of outstanding in-the-money options The Companys closing stock price

as reported on the New York Stock Exchange as of December 31 2011 was $63.01 The total intrinsic value of

options exercised was approximately $177.5 million $6.0 million and $0.7 million for the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted

was $13.28 $3.99 and $1.68 for the years
ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

As of December 31 2011 total unrecognized compensation cost adjusted for estimated forfeitures related

to nonvested stock options was approximately $49.9 million which is expected to be recognized over the next

2.39 years
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The following table summarizes information about outstanding and vested stock options as of December 31

RSU Activity

summary of RSU activity for the
year ended December 31 2011 is as follows

UnvestedDecember 31 2010

Granted

Released

Canceled or expired 15830

UnvestedDecember 31 2011 1139910

As of December 31 2011 total unrecognized compensation cost adjusted for estimated forfeitures related

to RSUs was approximately $69.0 million which is expected to be recognized over the next 3.91 years

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

The fair value of options granted to employees is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option

valuation model This valuation model for stock-based compensation expense requires the Company to make

assumptions and judgments about the variables used in the calculation including the fair value of the Companys
common stock the expected term the period of time that the options granted are expected to be outstanding the

volatility of the Companys common stock risk-free interest rate and expected dividends The Company also

estimates forfeitures of unvested stock options To the extent actual forfeitures differ from the estimates the

difference will be recorded as cumulative adjustment in the period estimates are revised No compensation cost

is recorded for options that do not vest The Company uses the simplified calculation of expected life described

in the SECs Staff Accounting Bulletin No 107 Share-Based Payment and volatility is based on an average of

the historical volatilities of the common stock of several entities with characteristics similar to those of the

Company The risk-free rate is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for periods

corresponding with the expected life of the option The Company uses an expected dividend yield of zero as it

does not anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future Expected forfeitures are based on the

Companys historical experience

2011

Options Outstanding Options Vested and Exercisable

Weighted

Average
Numbers of Remaining

Shares Contractual Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average
Exercise Price Outstanding Life Years Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

$0.06$2.00 553158 4.19 0.91 543882 0.90

$2.32 4910409 7.10 2.32 3239520 2.32

$3.50 2202758 7.79 3.50 688570 3.50

$4.80$6.20 1802653 8.15 5.62 457344 5.50

$8.27$14.46 1510956 8.28 9.77 243697 9.47

$19.63 1856862 8.74 19.63 22314 19.63

$22.59$45.00 1896395 9.25 28.11

$66.38 $78.08 34940 9.59 70.62

$78.70 7280 9.85 78.70

$100.63 9290 9.57 100.63

Total 14784701 7.83 9.35 5195327 3.02

Weighted-

Average
Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value

1155740 76.09

79.69

$76.04



The following table presents the weighted-average assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options

granted during the periods presented

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Volatility 55% 58% 67%

Expected dividend yield

Risk-free rate 2.58% 2.15% 2.37%

Expected tenn in years 6.07 6.08 6.01

The following table presents the weighted-average assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the ESPP

during the periods presented

Year Ended December 31
2011

Volatility

Expected dividend yield

Risk-free rate 0.06%

Expected term in years 0.50

The following table presents the amount of stock-based compensation related to stock-based awards to

employees and nonemployees on the Companys consolidated statements of operations during the periods

presented in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Cost of revenue 1678 439 370

Sales and marketing 8074 1225 657

Product development 13625 3248 2346

General and administrative 6391 3920 2779

Total stock-based compensation 29768 8832 6152

Tax benefit from stock-based compensation 4679 1526 27

Total stock-based compensation net of tax effect $25089 7306 $6125

During the years
ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company capitalized $0.5 million $0.3

million and $0.1 million respectively of stock-based compensation as website development costs Management

modified or accelerated the vesting terms for certain employee options which resulted in an additional $1.4

million and $0.1 million of stock-based compensation expense for the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2009

respectively There were no material modifications to stock option awards for the
year

ended December 31 2010

On February 24 2009 the Companys Board of Directors approved common stock option repricing

whereby previously granted and unexercised options held by current employees with exercise prices above $2.32

were repriced to $2.32 per
share which represented the per share fair value of the Companys common stock as

of the date of the repricing
with no modification to the vesting schedule of the previously issued options As

result 2429750 options originally granted to purchase common stock at prices ranging from $2.50 to $5.56

were repriced under this program This repricing is estimated to result in incremental stock-based compensation

expense
of $1.0 million Expense related to vested shares was expensed on the repricing date and expense related

to nonvested shares is being amortized over the remaining term of the option

13 Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with authoritative guidance which requires the use

of the asset and liability method Under this method deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined
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based upon the difference between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of

assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rate expected to apply to taxable income in the
years

in which the differences are expected to be reversed

The following table
presents domestic and foreign components of income loss before income taxes for the

periods presented in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

$19275 $2644

_______
309 481

______ $18966 $3125

The following table presents reconciliation of the statutory federal rate and the Companys effective tax

rate for the periods presented

U.S federal taxes at statutory rate

State income taxes net of federal benefit

Foreign rate differential

Permanent differences

Stock-based compensation

Change in valuation allowance

Research and development credits

Other

Total

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

35% 35% 34%

12 12
11 10

11 10 32
17 20 24

21 25

48% 19% 27%

2011

United States $28945

Foreign 6003

Total $22942

The following table presents the components of the provision for income taxes for the periods presented in

thousands

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Current

Federal 107 $129

State 204 541 560

Foreign 1307 224 205

Total current 1522 872 894

Deferred

Federal 8258 2847
State 726 247
Foreign 524 109 46

Total deferred 9508 2709 46
Total provision $11030 $3581 $848
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes The

following table presents the significant components of the Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities for the

periods presented in thousands

December31

2011 2010

Deferred tax assets

Accruals and reserves 7104 4458

Net operating loss carryforwards 2685 3832

Tax credit carryforwards 11842 4081

Stock-based compensation 6451 2486

Other 93 199

Total deferred tax assets 28175 15056

Less valuation allowance 6359 2418

Net deferred tax assets 21816 12638

Deferred tax liability

Prepaid expenses 1860 831

Intangible assets 1838 1555

Depreciation 31441 13360

Other 122

Total deferred tax liabilities 35261 15746

Total net deferred tax liabilities $13445 3108

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income if any the

timing and amount of which are uncertain Due to the history of losses the Company has generated in the past in

certain jurisdictions the Company believes that it is not more likely than not that California and Ireland deferred

tax assets will be realized as of December 31 2011 Accordingly the Company has recorded full valuation

allowance on its deferred tax assets The valuation allowance increased by $3.9 million and $6.2 million during

the year
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Pursuant to authoritative guidance the benefit of stock options will only be recorded to stockholders equity

when cash taxes payable is reduced As of December 31 2011 the portion of net operating loss carryforwards

related to stock options is approximately $51.1 million tax-effected

As of December 31 2011 the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax

purposes of approximately $148.3 million which expire at various dates beginning in the
year 2023 if not

utilized The Company had net operating loss carryforwards for state income tax purposes
of approximately

$60.2 million which expire at various dates beginning in the
year 2013 if not utilized

As of December 31 2011 the Company had research and development credit carryforwards for federal income

tax purposes
of approximately $13.1 million which expire at various dates beginning in the year 2023 if not utilized

The Company had research and development credit carryforwards for state income tax purposes
of approximately

$9.4 million which can be carried forward indefinitely The Company had minimum tax credit carrylorwards for

federal income tax purposes
of approximately $0.1 million which can be carried forward indefmitely

Utilization of the net operating loss carryforwards and credits may be subject to substantial annual limitation

due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended and similar

state provisions The annual limitation may result in the expiration of net operating losses and credits before

utilization The Company believes an ownership change as defined under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue

Code existed in prior years
and has reduced its net operating loss carryforwards to reflect the limitation
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As of December 31 2011 the Company had approximately $10.7 million in total unrecognized tax benefits

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows in thousands

BalanceDecember 31 2009 2887

Tax positions related to current yearadditions 1805

BalanceDecember 31 2010 4692

Tax positions
related to current yearadditions 5965

BalanceDecember 31 2011 $10657

If the $10.7 million of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2011 is recognized approximately $6.1

million would decrease the effective tax rate in the period in which each of the benefits is recognized The

remaining amount would be offset by the reversal of related deferred tax assets on which valuation allowance is

placed The Company does not expect any material changes to its unrecognized tax benefits within the next

twelve months

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense

There were no interest and penalties
associated with the unrecognized tax benefits accrued As of December 31

2011 and 2010 penalties
and interest were immaterial

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction as well as many U.S states and

foreign jurisdictions The tax years 2003 to 2010 remain open to examination by the major jurisdictions in which

the Company is subject to tax Fiscal years
outside the normal statute of limitation remain open to audit by tax

authorities due to tax attributes generated in those early years which have been carried forward and may be

audited in subsequent years when utilized

The Company does not provide for federal income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its foreign

subsidiaries as such earnings are to be reinvested indefinitely It is not practicable to determine the income tax

liability that might be incurred if these earnings were to be repatriated

14 Segment and Geographic Revenue Information

The Company considers operating segments to be components of the Company in which separate
financial

information is available that is evaluated regularly by the Companys chief operating
decision maker in deciding

how to allocate resources and in assessing performance The chief operating
decision maker for the Company is

the Chief Executive Officer The Chief Executive Officer reviews financial information presented on

consolidated basis accompanied by information about revenue by product line and geographic region for

purposes
of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance The Company has one business activity

and there are no segment managers who are held accountable for operations operating results or plans for levels

or components below the consolidated unit level Accordingly the Company has determined that it has one

operating segment and therefore one reportable segment
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Revenue by geography is based on the shipping address of the customer The following tables present the
Companys revenue by product line as well as revenue and long-lived assets by geographic region for the
periods presented in thousands

Net revenue

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Net revenue by product

Hiring Solutions
$260885 $101884 36136

Marketing Solutions
155848 79309 38278

Premium Subscriptions 105456 61906 45713

Total
$522189 $243099 $120127

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Net revenue by geographic location

United States $353834 $176975 88483
International

168355 66124 31644
Total

$522189 $243099 $120127

During the
year ended December 31 2009 10% of total revenue was derived from customers in the United

Kingdom No other country exceeded 10% of total revenue during any of the other periods presented

No individual customer accounted for 10% or more of consolidated net revenue or accounts receivable for

any of the periods presented

Long-Lived Assets

December 31

2011 2010 2009

United States $105336 $54454 $25648
International 9514 2289 82

Total property and equipment net $114850 $56743 $25730

15 Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has established 40 1k tax-deferred savings plan covering all employees who satisfy certain

eligibility requirements The 401k plan allows each participant to up to the annual limits established by the
Internal Revenue Service defer up to 75% of their eligible compensation subject to applicable annual limits

pursuant to the limits established by the Internal Revenue Service Effective January 2011 the Company has
elected to match any contributions made by the employees including executives up to 1.5% of an employees
total annual compensation up to the annual limits established by the Internal Revenue Service In the twelve
months ended December 31 2011 matching contributions were $3.3 million

16 Subsequent Events

In the first quarter of 2012 the Company completed two acquisitions for an estimated aggregate purchase
price of $7.3 million The Company has not yet obtained all of the information required to complete the initial
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purchase price allocations but expects to complete them during the first quarter of 2012 These acquisitions were

not significant individually or in aggregate and are not expected to have material impact to the Companys
consolidated balance sheets or results of operations

In the first quarter of 2012 the Company leased additional facilities in various locations The longest lease

expires in 2022 and aggregate future minimum lease payments are approximately $26.5 million

In February 2012 the Company entered into additional purchase commitments with provider of data

center space for total future minimum payments of approximately $33.9 million over the next three years
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer

evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2011 The term

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a- 15e and 15d- 15e under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act means controls and other procedures of company that are

designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by company in the reports that it files or submits

under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the

SECs rules and forms Disclosure controls and procedures include without limitation controls and procedures

designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by company in the reports that it files or submits

under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the companys management including its principal

executive and principal financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Management recognizes that any controls and procedures no matter how well designed and operated can

provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment

in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures Based on the evaluation of our

disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2011 our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer concluded that as of such date our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable

assurance level

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the

evaluation required by Rule 3a- 15d and Sd- 15d of the Exchange Act that occurred during the three months

ended December 31 2011 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal

control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the

Securities and Exchange Conmiission in connection with our 2012 annual meeting of stockholders the Proxy

Statement which is expected to be filed not later than 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended

December 31 2011 and is incorporated in this report by reference

We have adopted Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of our directors officers and

employees including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer The Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics is posted on our website at http//investors.linkedin.com/governance.cfm

We will post any amendments to or waivers from provision of this Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

by posting such information on our website at the address and location specified above

Item 11 Executive Compensalian

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information if any required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated

herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by

reference
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PART 1V

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Consolidated Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements at Item herein

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules not listed above have been omitted because the information required to be set forth therein is not

applicable or is shown in the financial statements or notes herein

Exhibits

See the Exhibit Index immediately following the signature page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

LINKEDIN CORPORATION

Dated March 2012 By

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Is JEFFREY WEINER

Jeffrey Werner

Chief Executive Officer and Director

Each person whose individual signature appears
below herebyauthorizes and appoints Erika Rottenberg and

Steven Sordello and each of them with full power of substitution and resubstitution and full power to act

without the other as his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent to act in his or her name place and

stead and to execute in the name and on behalf of each person individually and in each capacity stated below
and to file any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same with all exhibits

thereto and other documents in connection therewith with the Securities and Exchange Commission granting

unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents and each of them full power and authority to do and perform each and

every act and thing ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them or their or

his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title

Is JEFFREY WEINER

Jeffrey Weiner

Chief Executive Officer and Director

principal executive officer

March 2012

Is STEVEN SORDELLO

Steven Sordello

Is SUSAN TAYLOR

Susan Taylor

Is GEORGE SMP BATTLE

George Skip Battle

Is REID HOFFMAN

Reid Hoffman

Is LESLIE KILGORE

Leslie Kilgore

Is STANLEY MERESMAN

Stanley Meresman

Is MICHAEL MORITZ

Michael Moritz

Is DAVID SZE

David Sze

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer

Vice President Corporate Controller

and Chief Accounting Officer

principal accounting officer

Director

Chair of the Board of Directors

Director

Director

Director

Director

March 12012

March 2012

March 2012

March 12012

March 2012

March 2012

March 12012

March 2012

Date
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit
Incorporated by Reference

Number Exhibit Description Form File No Exhibits Filing Date

3.1 FormofAmendedandRestatedCertificateof s-i 333-171903 3.2 March 112011

Incorporation of Linkedln Corporation

3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of S-i 333-171903 3.4 March 112011

Linkedin Corporation

4.1 Form of Linkedln Corporations Class S-i 333-171903 4.1 May 92011

Common Stock Certificate

4.2 Form of Linkedln Corporations Class 5-1 333-171903 4.2 May 92011

Common Stock Certificate

4.3 Third Amended and Restated Investors Rights S-i 333-171903 4.2 January 27 2011

Agreement by and among Linkedln

Corporation and the investors listed on Exhibit

thereto dated June 13 2008

10.1 Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive S-i 333-171903 10.1 January 27 2011

Plan and Form of Stock Option Agreement

10.2 2011 Equity Incentive Plan and Form of Stock S-i 333-17 1903 10.2 May 2011

Option Agreement under 2011 Equity Incentive

Plan

10.3 Form of Indemnification Agreement by and 5-1 333-171903 10.3 March ii 2011

between Linkedln Corporation and each of its

directors and executive officers

10.4 Offer Letter between Linkedln Corporation S-I 333-17 1903 10.4 January 27 2011

and Jeffrey Weiner dated September 2009

effective June 24 2009 as amended

10.5 Offer Letter between Linkedln Corporation S-I 333-17 1903 10.5 January 27 2011

and Steven Sordello dated June 14 2007

10.6 Offer Letter between Linkedln Corporation S-I 333-171903 10.6 January 27 2011

and David Henke dated October 28 2009

10.7 Offer Letter between Linkedln Corporation S-I 333-17 1903 10.7 January 27 2011

and Dipchand Nishar dated November 17

2008

10.8 Offer Letter between Linkedln Corporation S-I 333-171903 10.8 January 27 2011

and Erika Rottenberg dated May 22 2008

10.9 Form of Stock Purchase Agreements by and 5-1 333-17 1903 10.9 January 27 2011

between Linkedln Corporation and Steven

Sordello and schedule of omitted material

details thereto

10.10 Form of Option Exercise and Repurchase S-i 333-17 1903 10.10 January 27 2011

Agreements by and between Linkedln

Corporation and Jeffrey Weiner Steven

Sordello Dipchand Nishar and Erika

Rottenberg and schedule of omitted material

details thereto

98



Exhibit
Incorporated by Reference

Number Exhibit Description Form File No Exhibits Filing Date

10.11 2010 Executive Bonus Compensation Plan s-i 333-171903 10.11 March 11 2011

10.12 Membership Units Purchase Agreement by S-i 333-171903 10.12 January 27 2011

and between Linkedln Corporation and Reid

Hoffman dated June 13 2008

10.13 Master Services Agreement by and between S-i 333-171903 10.13 January 27 2011

Linkedln Corporation and Equimx Operating

Co Inc dated February 27 2008

i0.l3At Amendment No ito the Master Services S-i 333-171903 10.i3At April 2011

Agreement by and between Linkedln

Corporation and Equinix Operating Co Inc

dated June 2010

10.14 Lease by and between Linkedln Corporation S-i 333-171903 10.14 January 27 2011

and Britannia Hacienda Vifi LLC dated

March 20 2007

10.14A First Amendment to Lease by and between S-i 333-17 1903 i0.14A January 27 2011

Linkedln Corporation and Britanma

Hacienda Vifi LLC dated September 24

2007

i0.i4B Second Amendment to Lease by and between 5-1 333-17 1903 i0.14B January 27 2011

Linkedln Corporation and Bntannia

Hacienda VIII LLC dated June 25 2008

10.14C Third Amendment to Lease by and between S-i 333-171903 10.i4C January 27 2011

Linkedln Corporation and Bntannia

Hacienda Vifi LLC dated December 18

2009

10.14D Fourth Amendment to Lease by and between 5-1 333-171903 10.14D January 27 2011

Linkedln Corporation and Britannia

Hacienda Vifi LLC dated March 2010

l0.14E Fifth Amendment to Lease by and between S-i 333-171903 10.14E January 27 2011

Linkedln Corporation and Britannia

Hacienda VIII LLC dated December 17

2010

10.14F Sixth Amendment to Lease by and between 8-K 001-35 168 10.1 October 28 2011

Linkedln Corporation and Britannia

Hacienda Vifi LLC dated October 25 2011

10.15 Sublease by and between Linkedln S-i 333-171903 10.15 January 27 2011

Corporation and Onmicell Inc dated

January 2011

10.16 Sublease by and between Linkedln s-i 333-17 1903 10.16 January 27 2011

Corporation and Actel Corporation dated

February 18 2010

10.17 2011 EmployeeStockPurchasePlan S-i 333-171903 10.17 May4 2011

10.18 Form of Supplement to Offer Letters by and S-i 333-171903 10.18 May 2011

between Linkedln Corporation and Jeffrey

Weiner Steven Sordelio David Henke

Dipchand Nishar and Erika Rottenberg
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference

Number Exhibit Description Form File No Exhibits Filing Date

10.19 Change of Control Agreement between s-i 333-171903 10.19 May 92011
Linkedln Corporation and Michael Gamson
dated as of May 2011

10.20t 2011 Executive Bonus Compensation Plan S-i 333-171903 10.20 May 2011

10.21 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 10-Q 001-35168 10.1 August 2011

under 2011 Equity Incentive Plan

21.1 List of subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Deloitte Touche LLP

independent registered public accounting

firm

24.1 Power of Attorney see the signature page to

this Annual Report on Form 10-K
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer

Required Under Rule 13a-14a and

15d- 14a of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer

Required Under Rule 13a-14a and 15d-

14a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

as amended

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer

and Principal Financial Officer Required

Under Rule 3a- 14b of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and 18

U.S.C 1350

101 .INSff XBRL Instance Document

101 .SCHtt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101 .CALtt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation

Linkbase

101 .LABtt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101 .PREff XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation

Linkbase

101 .DEF1t XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition

Linkbase

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan

Portions of have been granted confidential treatment by the SEC

if XBRL Extensible Business Reporting Language information is furnished and not filed or part of

registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections ii or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 as

amended is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended and is not otherwise subject to liability under these Sections
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Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is list of subsidiaries of Linkedin Corporation as of December 31 2011

Name of Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Linkedln Technology Limited Ireland non-resident Irish company with tax

residence in Isle of Man
Linkedin Ireland Limited Ireland

Linkedln Australia Pty Limited Australia

Linkedln Technology Canada Inc Canada

Linkedln Netherlands B.V Netherlands

Linkedln Technology Information Private Limited India

Linkedln France SAS France

Linkedln Technology UK Limited United Kingdom

Linkedln Italy S.R.L Italy

Linkedln Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore

Linkedln Japan Ltd Japan

Linkedln Sweden AB Sweden

Linkedln Germany GmbH Germany

Linkedln Representacoes do Brasil Ltda Brazil

Linkedln Spain S.L Spain



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No 333-174454 on Form S-8 of our

report dated March 2012 relating to the consolidated financial statements of Linkedin Corporation and its

subsidiaries appearing in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Linkedln Corporation for the year ended

December 31 2011

Is Deloitte Touche LLP

San Jose California

March 2012



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14a AND 15d-14a
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Jeffrey Weiner certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Linkedin Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15e and 15d15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15f and 15d15f
for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2012

Is Jeffrey
Weiner

Jeffrey Weiner

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14a AND lSd-14a
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Steven Sordello certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Linkedln Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15e and 15d15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a1 5f and 5dl 51
for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external
purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter
in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons perfonning the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2012

Is Steven Sordello

Steven Sordello

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Jeffrey Weiner certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that the Annual Report of Linkedln Corporation on Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2011 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all

material respects the financial condition and results of operations of Linkedln Corporation

Date March 2012

By Is Jeffrey Weiner

Name Jeffrey Weiner

Title Chief Executive Officer

Steven Sordello certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that the Annual Report of Linkedln Corporation on Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2011 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all

material respects
the financial condition and results of operations of Linkedln Corporation

Date March 2012

By Is Steven Sordello

Name Steven Sordello

Title Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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